Haringey Council

Corporate Committee

TUESDAY, 26TH NOVEMBER, 2013 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Adje, Amin (Vice-Chair), Diakides, Griffith, Jenks, Khan, Meehan

(Chair), Whyte, Williams and Wilson

AGENDA

APOLOGIES (IF ANY)
URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda items where they appear. New items will
be dealt with at items 16 and 21).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a matter
who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered:

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest becomes
apparent, and

(i) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw
from the meeting room.

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not
registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a pending
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the
disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests are
defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct.



10.

DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS

To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, section B, Paragraph
29 of the Council’s Constitution.

MINUTES (PAGES 1 - 14)

To consider and agree the unrestricted minutes of the meeting held on 19 September
2013.

PENSION FUND: ACTUARIAL VALUATION 31ST MARCH 2013 (PAGES 15 - 58)

Report of the Director of Corporate Resources to consider the draft actuarial valuation
report as at 31%' March 2013, including the methodology and assumption used by the
actuary.

PENSION FUND QUARTERLY UPDATE (PAGES 59 - 72)

Report of the Director of Corporate Resources to report the following in respect of the
three months to 30" September:

Investment asset allocation
Investment performance
Responsible investment activity
Budget management

Late payment of contributions
Communications

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME IT SYSTEM - CONTRACT RENEWAL
(PAGES 73 - 78)

Report of the Interim Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development.
TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE (PAGES 79 - 88)

Report of the Director of Corporate Resources to update the Committee on the
Council’s treasury management activities and performance in the quarter to 30"
September 2013.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT - 2014/15 - 2016/17
(PAGES 89 - 116)

Report of the Director of Corporate Resources to present the proposed Treasury
Management Strategy Statement and draft Prudential Indicators for 2014/15 to
2016/17 to this Committee prior to them being scrutinised by Overview & Scrutiny
Committee, represented to Corporate Committee in January 2014 and finally to full
Council for final approval.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - 2013/14 QUARTER 2 (PAGES 117 -
170)

Report of the Director of Corporate Resources to advise the Committee of the work
undertaken during the first quarter by the Internal Audit Service in completing the
2013/14 annual audit plan together with the responsive and housing benefit fraud
investigation work, and to provide details of the work undertaken by Council’s Human
Resources business unit in supporting disciplinary action taken across all
departments by respective Council Officers and consultants employed by the Council.

EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS UPDATE (PAGES 171 - 178)
Report of Grant Thornton.

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER (PAGES 179 - 192)

Report of Grant Thornton.

SENIOR STAFF STRUCTURES UPDATE (PAGES 193 - 206)
Report of the Chief Executive.

DELEGATED DECISIONS, SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS, URGENT ACTIONS (PAGES
207 - 214)

Report of the Head of Legal Services to inform the Corporate Committee of non
executive delegated decisions, significant actions and any urgency decisions taken by
the Chair.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE
To consider any items admitted at item 2 above.
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following items are likely to be subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as they contain exempt information as defined in Section
100a of the Local Government Act 1972; paragraphs 1, 2 and 3, information relating
to any individual, information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual and
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information).

EXEMPT MINUTES (PAGES 215 - 224)
To consider and agree the exempt minutes of the Corporate Committee meeting held

on 19 September 2013, and to received the minutes of the CEJCC meeting held on 2
July 2013 and the Special Committees held on 1 and 23 October 2013.



19. LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME IT SYSTEM - CONTRACT RENEWAL
(PAGES 225 - 226)

To consider exempt information pertaining to agenda item 8.

20. DELEGATED DECISIONS / SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS / URGENT ACTIONS (PAGES
227 - 230)

To consider exempt information pertaining to agenda item 15.

21. ANY EXEMPT ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

David McNulty Helen Chapman

Head of Local Democracy Principal Committee Coordinator
and Member Services Level 5

Level 5 River Park House

River Park House 225 High Road

225 High Road Wood Green

Wood Green London N22 8HQ

London N22 8HQ
Tel: 020 8489 2615
Email: helen.chapman@haringey.gov.uk

Monday 18 November 2013



Page 1 Agenda Item 5

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2013

Councillors:  Adje, Allison, Amin (Vice-Chair), Egan, Griffith, Jenks, Khan, Meehan
(Chair), Williams and Wilson
Apologies: Councillor Diakides, Councillor Whyte, Keith Brown
Also present: Michael Jones
Roger Melling
John Raisin
MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY
CNCL258. | APOLOGIES (IF ANY)
Apologies for absence were received from ClIr Diakides, for whom Clir
Egan was substituting, from Clir Whyte, for whom ClIr Allison was
substituting, and from Keith Brown.
CNCL259. | URGENT BUSINESS
There were no new items of urgent business.
CNCL260. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
CNCL261. | DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS
There were no such items.
CNCL262. | MINUTES
RESOLVED
That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2013 be approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chair.
CNCL263. | PENSION FUND QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE UPDATE
The Committee received the Pension Fund quarterly update. It was
noted that the Fund had increased to £881m as at the end of July 2013,
and the overall performance for the fund demonstrated the influence of
moving to passive management arrangements.
The Committee asked about the variance in the budgeted and actual
Pensions & Benefits expenditure, as indicated in the budget
management position at paragraph 16 of the report, and it was agreed
that a response on this issue would be provided by officers. In response | HoT&
to a question regarding the lack of engagement on social issues by P
BlackRock, it was reported that this was an issue that officers raised with
the company on a regular basis, whose response was that they were




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2013

focussing on governance matters.
RESOLVED

That the information provided in respect of the activity in the three
months to 30" June 2013 be noted.

CNCL264.

PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS AND ISA 260
AUDIT REPORT

The Committee received the Pension Fund Annual Report and
Accounts, and ISA 260 audit report.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the date of the
next triennial valuation, it was reported that it was expected that this
would be completed by the end of the current calendar year. It was
confirmed that the Chief Financial Officer was the post responsible for
the co-ordination of the Fund Management and Pension Administration
arms of the Pension Service. The Committee asked why Pensions AGM
meetings were no longer held, and it was advised that a decision had
been taken to discontinue these on the basis of available resources and
low attendance at previous meetings; it was noted that there was no
requirement to hold such meetings. In response to a question from the
Committee regarding performance assessment in compliance with
Myners Principles, it was reported that officers continue to routinely meet
with investment managers, and that arrangements for Committee
Members to also meet with investment managers could be arranged
should Members wish.

It was confirmed, in response to a question from the Committee, that no
matters had been referred on to the Pensions Ombudsman. With regard
to the movement in the actuarial deficit as set out on page 54 of the
agenda, in particular ‘investment returns lower than expected’, it was
agreed that officers would provide information on what the anticipated
investment return had been. Officers provided some clarification around
Additional Voluntary Contributions, where individuals wished to transfer
additional funds further to their usual pension payments, and it was
noted that such payments were reflected in a specific line in the Pension
Fund accounts. It was confirmed that 90% of the Fund was passively
managed, with the remaining 10% managed actively in property and
private equity.

With regard to the reported £200m increase in liabilities, officers advised
that this was due to the way in which liabilities were calculated and
confirmed that this matter was taken very seriously; the outcome of the
forthcoming triennial valuation would be important with regards to
providing more information around this issue.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding whether there
were any tax implications from investing overseas, it was agreed that a
briefing on this would be provided outside the meeting. It was also
agreed that this issue would be a topic for discussion at the next meeting
of the Pensions Working Group.

ADF /
HoT&

HoT&




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2013

The Fund’s external auditor, Subarna Banerjee, from Grant Thornton,
provided an outline of the audit findings for the Pension Fund and
confirmed for the record that Grant Thornton remained independent of
the Pension Fund. The Committee was asked whether anyone was
aware of any fraud against the Fund, and it was noted that no
declaration was made that anybody was aware of any such fraud. It was
anticipated that the auditors would be providing the Fund with an
unqualified audit opinion.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding late payments
to the Fund, it was reported that all contributing bodies were being
encouraged to set up direct debits or standing orders for payments and
that in the most recent quarter there had only been one late payment.
Officers were working to ensure that this position continued to improve.

It was noted that new requirements for the governance of Pensions
Funds were being consulted upon; changes are planned to come into
force from 1 April 2014. Appropriate arrangements would be established
in order to comply with these changes and the Corporate Committee will
be properly consulted before implementation.

RESOLVED

That the Committee approve the Pension Fund Annual Report and
Accounts for 2012-13.

The Committee thanked all Council staff involved in preparing the
Pension Fund accounts for their efforts, and thanked Grant Thornton for
their work on the audit.

CNCL265.

AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR PENSION FUND INVESTMENT
ADVISORY SERVICES

The Committee received the report on the award of contract for Pension
Fund Investment Advisory Services. A mini-competition process had
been entered into under the framework agreement undertaken by
Norfolk County Council, as a result of which the report recommended
that the Committee approve the award of the Pension Fund Investment
Advisory Services contract to Mercer Ltd for a period of 3 years.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the difference in
price between firms C and D, it was noted that the difference was
significant. Officers reported that they were confident in the quality of
both companies C and D.

RESOLVED

That the Committee approve the award of the Pension Fund Investment
Advisory Services contract to Mercer Ltd for a period of 3 years from 6"
November 2013 with the Council having the option to offer an extension
for a further year, at an estimated cost of £240,000 over the initial period.




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2013

CNCL266.

PENSION FUND: LONDON COLLECTIVE INVESTMENT VEHICLE

The Committee received the report on the London Collective Investment
Vehicle, and was asked to support the establishment of such a vehicle
and approve the expenditure of up to £25,000 as a contribution towards
its establishment.

In response to a question from the Committee, it was understood that a
number of other boroughs had indicated their support for the proposal,
subsequent to the production of the report. The Chief Executive
indicated that there was broad support for the proposal at chief executive
level across London boroughs. With regard to the likelihood of Haringey
joining any such vehicle once established, it was reported that this would
depend on the outcome of this piece of work; it was emphasised that
such a vehicle would only be entered into if it were in the best interests
of the Pension Fund to do so.

The Committee asked about the contribution for which approval was
sought — it was reported that the Council would expect the project to be
developed in line with the proposals set out in paragraph 5.8 of the
report. It was confirmed that officers would be in a position to ensure that
the money was being spent appropriately and that value for money was
being achieved. In response to a question regarding the potential for
more money being sought at a later date, it was reported that there was
no intention that a greater contribution would be required. In the event
the further funding were needed, such a request would need to come
back to the Committee. It was anticipated that undertaking this activity
voluntarily at this stage would be preferable to the potential of being
forced to at a later date.

RESOLVED

i) That the Committee should support further investigations into
the potential establishment of a London-wide Collective
Investment Vehicle (CIV).

ii) That the Committee approve expenditure of up to £25,000 as
a contribution towards the legal and other related costs in
connection with the possible establishment of the CIV.

CNCL267.

PENSION FUND: ASSET ALLOCATION ADVICE

The Committee received the Pension Fund Asset Allocation report,
which reflected the fourth of four sets of asset allocation moves to the
strategic benchmark. As set out in paragraph 13.4 of the report, it was
intended that a report setting out recommendations for adjusting the
asset allocation policy would be brought to the next meeting of the
Committee. Prior to consideration of this report, it was agreed that
training on the different asset classes and investment vehicles should be
arranged for all Committee Members in order to support the decision-
making process. Officers would identify some suitable dates for this
training and seek the availability of Members in due course.

ADF /
HoT&




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2013

As the current contract for Pensions Investment Advisory Services was
coming to an end, the Committee wished to place on record its thanks to
Aon Hewitt for their advice over the course of the contract.

RESOLVED

That the asset allocation moves set out in the Advice Table on page 6 of
appendix 1 to the report be implemented.

CNCL268.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2013/14 MID-YEAR ACTIVITY AND
PERFORMANCE UPDATE

The Committee received the Treasury Management 2013/14 Mid Year
Activity and Performance Update report.

In response to a question from the Committee, the Director of Corporate
Resources confirmed that she was satisfied that the mechanisms in
place to monitor the fundamental principles of the Council’s Treasury
Management policy were robust. With respect to the ‘A’ rating for
Natwest SIBA on the table in paragraph 14.3, it was noted that this was
assessed on a different style of rating from the money market funds, and
that investment of a limited proportion of funds within this type of account
was fully in accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy. It was
further noted that this was an instant access account, and so funds could
be retrieved quickly from this account if required; investment positions
were reviewed on a daily basis. It was clarified that the y-axis of the
graph in paragraph 15.2 of the report related to millions of pounds.

The Committee asked about the deposits shown in the table in
paragraph 15.4 of the report, and it was confirmed that these were all
short term investments, ranging in duration from overnight up to 32 days.
With regard to where these investments were reflected within the
Statement of Accounts, it was confirmed that these were the ‘Short Term
Investments’ line on the Balance Sheet. The Committee queried the
expected interest amount of £40k as set out in paragraph 16.2 of the
report, on the basis of the interest rates quoted, and it was agreed that
officers would double-check this calculation for accuracy.

Post-meeting note: Further to the query raised by the Committee with
regard to Paragraph 16.2, it was confirmed that, while this Paragraph of
the treasury update report stated that anticipated income in the half year
to September is £40,000, this is in fact the anticipated income for a
quarter only. The average investment balance is approximately £50
million and at an average return of 0.32%, the half yearly anticipated
income is £80,000.

RESOLVED

That Members note the treasury management activity and performance
during the first half of 2013/14.

ADF /
HoT&

CNCL269.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2012/13 AND ISA 260 AUDIT REPORT




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2013

The Committee received the Statement of Accounts 2012/13 and ISA
260 audit report. It was noted that the report reflected a significant
improvement from the previous year, and the auditors’ report indicated
that there would be an unqualified audit opinion.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the level of
reserves, it was reported that the level reflected in the statement of
accounts was partly due to the timing of transactions, and there had also
been a small increase due to underspends; the audit report moreover
indicated that the Council’s level of reserves was comparatively low. The
Committee noted that publicity was not included in this year’s report, but
had been previously, and asked why this was. Officers reported that it
was not a statutory requirement to include publicity details and it was
therefore omitted in order make the statement of accounts as succinct as
possible. It was agreed that a briefing on the publicity figures would be
circulated outside the meeting, but would not form part of the formal ADF
accounts. Paul Dossett, Grant Thornton, advised that it had been a
requirement to include publicity in the accounts in previous years under
CIPFA guidance, but that this requirement had changed and it was no
longer a requirement.

The Committee asked about the net loss indicated in off-street parking
services, and it was agreed that officers would seek a response to this ADF
from the service. In response to a question regarding the Annual
Governance Statement, the Director of Corporate Resources advised
that, while this was not a fully comprehensive list, it covered all
substantive and material matters as required.

Paul Dossett introduced the ISA 260 audit report, and advised that,
against the context of the audit problems encountered in the previous
year, the auditors were this year in a position to provide an unqualified
audit opinion and Value for Money conclusion well within the statutory
deadline. Key issues were set out in the executive summary, which
recognised the considerable effort that had been made to improve the
quality of the accounts and documentation since last year and noted that
an area for continued improvement was property, plant and equipment
and the documentation around these issues. It was noted that no
additional fees had been incurred this year.

With regard to the unadjusted misstatements listed within the report, the
Committee asked what steps were being taken to ensure that such
matters could be avoided in future. Nick Walkley, Chief Executive,
advised that as part of the restructure of Place and Sustainability, a new
function had been established to deal with asset valuations more
comprehensively than previously and that this should assist. Paul
Dossett assured the Committee that his view was that an unqualified
opinion would be given by the deadline, and that this would indicate that
the Council had managed its resources effectively this year.

The Committee asked about the reduction in audit fee for this year. It
was reported that some of this reduction was due to additional fees




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2013

incurred last year not being incurred this year, but the reduction was
largely as the result of the closure of the central Audit Commission
function, which had led to an increase in competition.

With regard to the issues which required an answer outside the meeting,
it was reported that these would be responded to within two weeks of the
meeting — any cases where this would not be possible would be raised
directly with the Chair.

RESOLVED

i) That the Committee note the contents of the report and the
oral updates provided at the meeting by Grant Thornton.

ii) That the Committee approve the Statement of Accounts
2012/13, subject to any final changes required by the
conclusion of the audit, being delegated to the Chief Financial
Officer in consultation with the Chair.

iii) That the Committee note the ISA 260 report of the auditors,
Grant Thornton, and approve the management responses in
the Grant Thornton action plan contained within the ISA260
report.

The Chief Executive placed on record his thanks to Council officers for
their efforts which had led to such a significant improvement in the final
accounts since the previous year and also to Grant Thornton for their
work on the audit of the accounts. The Committee also expressed their
thanks to Council officers and to Grant Thornton.

CNCL270. | EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
The Committee received the update report from Grant Thornton.
The Committee noted the reference in the report to proposed changes to
the 2014/15 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting, and
requested that Members receive a briefing on these changes. It was
agreed that officers would brief Committee Members on these issues. ADF
RESOLVED
That the report be noted.
CNCL271. | EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT - FINANCIAL RESILIENCE

The Committee received the follow up report on the Review of the
Council’'s Arrangements for Securing Financial Resilience.

The Committee noted that the report indicated some concerns regarding
the arrangements for the Corporate Committee, and asked whether
there were any steps that could be taken in the interim period until the
new senior management structure was in place. Paul Dossett advised




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2013

that it was valid to wait until new arrangements were in place

before making any changes; Grant Thornton’s general view was that
dedicated Audit Committees were the best way of ensuring that there
was adequate focus on audit issues. It was noted that the new
governance arrangements for pensions, planned to start from 1 April
2014, would mean that Corporate Committee agendas may no longer
include pensions items, and this would enable more time for
consideration of audit matters. It was advised that an interim report on
the options for the new pensions arrangements would be brought to the
next Corporate Committee meeting for consideration, with final
recommendations to be made in the new year.

The Committee commented that the agenda for this meeting had been
heavy for a single meeting. With regards to the report’s findings around
financial control, the Committee welcomed the good progress that had
been made and thanked officers for the notable improvements.

The Committee discussed the need to balance having a prudent level of
reserves and that at times concerns are expressed about councils’ levels
of reserves being too high. Paul Dossett advised that it was sensible in
the current financial climate to ensure that reserves were adequate to
cover unforeseen expenditure and to meet challenges as they arose.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

ADF

CNCL272.

INTERNAL AUDIT - QUARTERLY UPDATE

The Committee received the Internal Audit update report for 2013/14
Quarter 1. With regard to the limited assurance report provided in
respect of the Alexandra Palace Regeneration Programme, it was
reported that all recommendations of the audit report had been accepted
by the Alexandra Palace and Park Board and that progress was being
made in the implementation of these recommendations. A follow up audit
would undertaken, and the outcome reported back to the Corporate
Committee.

The Committee asked about the performance against targets as set out
in Table 1 of the report, and it was reported that the Quarter 2 report to
the Board would demonstrate that progress was being made against the
targets, and that it was expected that all targets would be achieved by
Year End. It was noted that while recovery of benefit overpayments was
not always possible, prosecution was very important in terms of acting
as a deterrent.

The Committee expressed concern regarding the length of time of some
of the cases of suspension as set out in appendix C. Jacquie
McGeachie, Interim Head of Human Resources and Organisational
Development, advised that the four cases with very long periods of
suspension had all now been resolved, and that from now on, a case
review would be triggered as soon as a suspension period reached 30




Page 9

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2013

days, in order to identify how to progress the case more quickly.

The Committee asked about the increase in Interim Head positions and
other consultants, and asked for an explanation of how the Council was
acting to reduce its reliance on these types of post. The Chief Executive
advised that some of these posts were as the result of recent
restructures, but that he had been concerned with the overall level of
consultants reported, and had asked the Interim Head of Human
Resources and Organisational Development to look into certain areas
where numbers appeared particularly high. As a result, the number of
consultant positions within CYPS had reduced by 6, and an action plan
was in place to address the remainder of these posts. It was noted that a
further 12 consultant positions were due to come to an end by the end of
October.

In response to a request from ClIr Allison for a more detailed report into
the audit for St Michael’s Primary School, it was agreed that the Chief
Financial Officer would look into whether it was possible to release this
information and would respond to Clir Allison outside the meeting. With
regard to schools’ audits in general, it was reported that progress on
Priority 1 recommendations would be expected as quickly as possible,
and certainly by the time of the follow up audit arranged with the
management of the school. It had previously been agreed that the Chair
of Governors and Headteachers of schools where there did not appear
to be adequate progress with audit recommendations would be
summoned to answer questions from the Corporate Committee.

RESOLVED

i) That the Committee note the audit coverage and counter-fraud
work completed during the first quarter 2013/14.

ii) That the Committee confirm that managers’ actions taken
during the quarter to address the outstanding
recommendations are appropriate.

iii) That the Committee note the information received from the HR
business unit.

DCR

CNCL273.

CORPORATE RISK REGISTER

The Committee received the report on the current corporate risk register
and Corporate Risk Management Policy and Strategy. It was noted that
there had been a significant review of corporate risks this year, and it
was now focussing on the most critical issues for the Council. It was
noted that action plans were in place for all the risks listed to ensure that
risk was properly managed. The Committee was further asked to review
and approve the Corporate Risk Management Policy and Strategy,
which had been slightly updated to reflect changes to job titles and
update the references to the Corporate Plan since last year.

In response to a question from the Committee, the Chief Executive




Page 10

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2013

advised that he was satisfied that risk was being managed adequately in
the Council, but that there was further work to do at team level. It was
important for risk to be appropriately owned and managed at every level
within the Council, rather than having too much being monitored at
corporate level.

The new Corporate Risk Register was welcomed as an excellent
combination of generic and borough-specific risks by Paul Dossett of
Grant Thornton.

RESOLVED

i) That the Committee note the current version of the Corporate
risk register.

ii) That the Committee approve the current corporate Risk
Management Policy and Strategy.

CNCL274.

PROPOSAL TO REVIEW AND RESTRUCTURE THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT TEAM ARRANGEMENTS

The Committee received the report of the Chief Executive on proposals
to review and restructure the Senior Management Team arrangements.
It was noted that this did not represent a complete solution, but was
intended as part of a wider process of cultural change in order to ensure
that the Council was able to adapt more effectively to change in future. It
was felt that the current structure emphasised directorates too heavily, at
the expense of the corporate Council. The intention was that it would be
easy for residents to understand the roles of the new functional units,
which would replace directorates. The proposals were also intended to
deliver a smaller and more focussed leadership team.

The Committee was asked to approve the start of a formal consultation
period on the proposals, and the Chief Executive advised that he would
be happy to attend Group meetings, or meet with Councillors on an
individual basis to discuss the proposals. Consultation would also
include key stakeholders including schools, the health service, police
and Job Centre Plus. A further report would then be brought back to the
Committee. It was noted that further work was currently required around
how policy and strategic development work would be managed, and a
review on this function would be undertaken and reported back to the
Committee in due course.

The Committee welcomed the aims of the report to increase efficiency
and reduce costs, but expressed concern regarding the changes
affecting the statutory posts of Section 151 Officer and Monitoring
Officer, as both positions had specific roles and responsibilities as set
out in statute. The Chief Execute advised that both of these functions
would be retained within the proposed new structure, with the Chief
Operating Officer post incorporating the Section 151 responsibilities, and
the Assistant Director of Governance taking the role of Monitoring
Officer; it was emphasised that each of these post-holders would be
appropriately qualified for these respective statutory functions.




Page 11

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2013

Concern was expressed regarding the potential short-term costs
associated with redundancies, and whether affected staff would be
receiving payments over and above their contractual entitlements. It was
reported that it was important not to fetter the Council’s ability to
negotiate, but that there was no intention for payments additional to
contractual entitlements to be made. It was noted that decisions on
individual circumstances would need to be approved by cross-party
Committees set up under Section K Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution.

It was noted that the fourth paragraph of section 3.4 of the report should
be amended to read “To exemplify this the Cabinet will set, in
consultation with the Senior Leadership team, the strategic direction and
broad financial envelope for the budget...”

In response to a question around the way in which cultural change would
be achieved, it was reported that there was a need to emphasise
corporate values by focussing on leadership and management
development and encouraging and reinforcing cultural behaviours, and
corporate campaigns running across the year were emphasising these. It
was also important to try and change the culture so that there was a
greater focus on priorities. It was also reported that management
meetings had been refreshed in order to support cultural change; the
corporate leadership team was now meeting on a monthly basis, with the
group of 100 most senior managers meeting every other month. A new
corporate messaging system was also now in place.

The Committee asked how the new arrangements would work alongside
the Cabinet system, and it was reported that, even under the current
structure, Directors reported to a number of different Cabinet Members.
The important issue was felt to be that there was clear accountability for
each Council function. The Committee welcomed the clearer job titles
that were proposed, but asked for clarification of the position of Head of
Office. It was reported that the Head of Office would combine support for
the Leader and Cabinet and the executive administrative support, and it
was agreed that the Chief Executive would provide the Committee with a
copy of the job description for this role.

The Committee asked about the impact the proposals would have on the
ALMO. It was reported that renewing the management agreement was a
critical task which would need to be undertaken in the next two years,
and it was felt that having a single post-holder for both the client side
and ALMO was the most effective way of overseeing this process. The
Chief Executive advised that there had been an initial discussion with
Homes for Haringey Board Members, and that there would be a formal
discussion of the proposals by the Board on 30™ September. In terms of
legal issues around having a single post-holder for the Council and the
ALMO, Raymond Prince, Assistant Head of Legal, advised that his
inquiries, to include discussions with another borough where such an
arrangement was already in place, revealed that there was no legal
barrier to this proposal. It was reported that appointment to the joint post
would be undertaken by a joint committee of the Council and HfH Board,




Page 12

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2013

the details of which needed to be discussed further.

With regard to cost savings, it was reported that these proposals would
not lead to significant savings in and of themselves, but that there was a
commitment to saving money, and this stage would then lead to a more
thorough review at the next management level down. With regards to
effects on the Pension Fund, it was recognised that this was an issue,
and officers were currently looking at ways of addressing this.

With regard to pay and reward, the Committee felt that it was important
for salaries for new appointments to reflect current market rates, rather
than what previous post-holders were paid.

RESOLVED
That the Committee agree:

e For the Head of Paid Service to implement consultation, in line
with the Council’'s Restructure Policy, with Councillors, staff.
Trade Unions and partners on the proposals.

e For the Head of Paid Service to implement the proposals
including any changes that were accepted as a result of
consultation.

¢ Notwithstanding the above point to provide a progress report back
to the Committee in November.

e That following consultation and compliance with the Council’s
Restructure Policy the Head of Paid Service will arrange for
redundancy letters to be issued to those employees who have not
secured a role in the new structure or been redeployed as a result
of the process.

e Open engagement with Homes for Haringey on the proposals set
out in the paper.

e The approach to development of Heads of Service as set out in
the report.

e To accept the findings of the Pay and Reward review and agree
its recommendations for future consultation as se tout in the
exempt appendix to the report.

e A review of the senior managers’ employment contract and for a
report to come back to the Committee in November 2013.

CNCL275.

DELEGATED DECISIONS, SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS, URGENT
ACTIONS

The Committee received the report on Non Executive delegated
decisions and significant actions taken by Directors and any urgent
actions taken by Directors in consultation with the Chair of the Corporate
Committee.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

CNCL276.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE




Page 13

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2013

There were no urgent items of business.

CNCL277. | EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following
items, as they contained information defined as exempt in Section 100a
of the Local Government Act 1972, paragraphs 1, 2 and 3, information
relating to any individual, information which is likely to reveal the identity
of an individual and information relating to the financial or business
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information).

CNCL278. | EXEMPT MINUTES
RESOLVED
That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2013 be
approved and signed by the Chair.

CNCL279. | PENSION FUND INVESTMENT ADVISER TENDER RESULTS
The Committee considered the exempt information pertaining to agenda
item 8.

CNCL280. | PROPOSAL TO REVIEW AND RESTRUCTURE THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS
The Committee considered the exempt information pertaining to agenda
item 17..

CNCL281. | ANY OTHER EXEMPT ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

There were no new items of exempt urgent business.

The meeting closed at 9.50pm.

COUNCILLOR GEORGE MEEHAN

CHAIR




Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15 Agenda ltem 6

Haringey
Iltem
Report for: Corporate Committee | number
26" November 2013
Title: Pension Fund: Actuarial Valuation 31st March 2013
Report authorised ' d
by : J EW { AMIR
Director of Corporate Resources
George Bruce, Head of Finance - Treasury &
Lead Officer: Pensions
George.bruce@haringey.gov.uk
020 8489 3726
Ward(s) affected: N/A Report for Non Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 To consider the draft actuarial valuation report as at 31t March
2013, including the methodology and assumption used by the

actuary.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 Not applicable.

3. Recommendations

3.1 To agree the assumptions and methodology used by the Actuary to
determine the actuarial funding level and standardised employer
contribution rate.

4. Other options considered

4.1 None.

Page 1 of 5



Haringey

Page 16

5. Background information

5.1

The Pension Fund Actuary is responsible for determining the
funding level of the overall scheme and of each employer. The
funding level and therefore the contribution rates payable are highly
dependent on the assumptions concerning future economic
conditions. Although the actuary is responsible for setting the
assumptions, there is a process of consultation that enables the
Council and other employers to challenge the draft valuation report.

6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and financial implications

6.1

6.2

The result of the actuarial valuation is a snapshot of the funding
position of the Pension Fund. The funding level has remained at
70% with favourable investment returns offset by a reduction of the
discount rate linked to UK Government Gilt yields.

The recommended assumptions are prudent, but do reflect the fact
that the Committee is expected to agree an investment strategy
targeting a return above that achievable from bonds.

7. Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

The Council as administering authority is required under Regulation
36 of the Administration Regulations 2008 to obtain (a) an actuarial
valuation of the assets and liabilities of the pension fund, (b) a report
by the actuary in respect of the valuation and (c) a rates and
adjustment certificate prepared by an actuary. This must be done
every 3 years from the 31 March 2010.

The valuation report mentioned in (b) must contain a statement of
the demographic assumptions used in making that valuation and
these assumptions must relate to actual events that have occurred
in relation to members of the LGPS since the last valuation.

The rates and adjustment certificate must specify a common
employer contribution rate and any individual adjustments for each
year of the 3 years period beginning on 1 April.

Members should note that only the valuation report is contained
within this report.

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1

Page 2 of 5

Not applicable.



Haringey

Page 17

9. Head of Procurement Comments

9.1

Not applicable.

10. Policy Implications

10.1

None.

11. Use of Appendices

1141

Appendix 1: Hyman’s Robertson’s 2013 Actuarial Valuation Initial
Results

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

121

Not applicable.

13. Actuarial Valuation

13.1

13.2

13.3

Page 3 of 5

Introduction

The Council has appointed Douglas Green of Hymans Robertson as
Scheme Actuary. Hymans are required to carry out an actuarial
valuation of the fund every three years to determine the funding
level (comparison of assets with the value of promised future
benefits) and the future contribution levels payable by the Council
and other employers. The ongoing valuation is calculated as at 31
March 2013. Scheme benefits and the contributions payable by
employees are determined by the Government.

The Actuary will be attending the meeting to present the initial
valuation results. Prior to the meeting, training will be provided on
the basis and assumptions used in the valuation. The report is for
the fund as a whole and does not discuss individual employer rates.
The actuarial assumptions, which the Committee is invited to
approve, are explained in appendix D to the Actuary’s report.

Whole Fund Initial Results

A summary of the results are shown on page 1. The highlights are:

The funding level has improved marginally from 69.2% to 70.0%.
In monetary terms the deficit is £73 million greater at £369 million.
The standard contribution rate has increased by 7% to 35.5%.



Page 18

Haringey
13.4Pages 11 and 13 explain the change in the deficit and also the
future service rate. The main reason for the increased deficit is the
lower discount rate applied to pension liabilities, reflecting the
current yield on government bonds. Investment returns have
exceeded the rate assumed by the Actuary.

13.5 The cost of future pension provision (page 13) has risen by 3.1% to
20.4% of salaries. Although the planned changes to the benefit
structure in 2014 will reduce the cost by 2.1%, changes in the
assumed investment rate (discount rate) add 4.7% to costs.

13.6 It is noticeable from page 4, that the outcomes for the valuation
assumptions that are controllable by the Council (investment
returns, retirements & salary increases) have positively impacted the
results, where as the assumptions that are outside the Council’s
control (gilt yields, longevity and inflation during the valuation
period) have had a negative impact on the results.

Future Contribution Rates

13.7The. Actuary determines contribution rates separately and
specifically for each employer, including the Council. Currently the
Council pays 22.9% and other employers, of which there are 41,
pay rates of between 17% and 34% and in some cases also pay
annual lump sums to cover past service deficits.

13.8 The Actuary has already consulted on the contribution rates payable
by the Council from April 2014 to March 2017 and the framework
thereafter. Estimated contribution rates for other employers have
been circulated and a meeting will be set up enabling these
employers to discuss the valuation with the Actuary.

13.9 Following consultation with other employers, the Actuary may be
asked to undertake additional modelling to test the impact of

changing the contribution rates that they pay during the next
valuation cycle.

Next Steps

13.10The subsequent steps in the valuation process are summarised
below.

December

Receive feedback from individual employeré on their estimated
funding level and contribution rates.

Page 4 of 5



Page 19

Haringey

Carry out any additional contribution rate modelling.

Prepare draft Funding Strategy Statement (“FSS”).

January 2014

Present draft FSS to Corporate Committee

Consult on draft FSS with other employers.

March 2014

Present final Actuarial report including schedule of contributions

from April 2014 to March 2017 together with the FSS to the
Corporate Committee.

Page 5 of 5



Page 20



London Borough of Haringey Pension Fund
2013 Actuarial Valuation
Initial Results

HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON

The Spirit of Independence

November 2013




Contents

November 2013

Page 22

Executive summary

Scope, reliances and limitations

Events since 2010

2013 — Our proposed approach and assumptions
2013 — Initial results

2013 — Risk assessment

Next steps

Appendix A: About the pension fund
Appendix B: About the valuation
Appendix C: Demographic assumptions
Appendix D: 2013 valuation assumptions

PAGE



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Executive summary

Bryan T Chalmers
Actuary

On behalf of your team at Hymans Robertson, we are delighted to present the initial results of the triennial

Douglas Green
Actuary

valuation of the London Borough of Haringey Pension Fund as at 31 March 2013.

Purpose

The purpose of this document is to communicate the initial results at whole fund level and explain our approach
to the valuation. Our analysis includes a range of alternative bases which will allow you to assess the risks and

then together arrive at the very best strategy for the Fund.

High level results
The tables below summarise the financial position of the Fund and the marked-related (common) contribution
rates as at 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2013.

Past Service Position

31 March 2010
)

31 March 2013
(Em)

Past Senvice Liabilities 960 1,232
Market Value of Assets 664 863

Surplus / (Deficit) (296) (369)
Funding Level 69.2% 70.0%

Contribution Rates
Employer future senice rate (incl. expenses)

31 March 2010
(% of pay)

31 March 2013
(% of pay)

Past Senice Adjustment (20 year spread) 11.2% 15.1%
Total employer contribution rate (incl. expenses) 28.5% 35.5%
Employee contribution rate 6.8% 6.6%
Expenses 0.5% 0.5%

High level assumptions

The above results are based on our proposed set of assumptions for this valuation which are summarised below

along with the 31 March 2010 assumptions.

31 March 2010

31 March 2013

Financial assumptions

Discount Rate 6.1% 4.6%
Salary Increases 5.3%* 4.3%**
Price Inflation / Pension Increases 3.3% 2.5%

*Salary increases were 1% p.a. until 31 March 2012 followed by the long term rate shown thereafter

** The reduction in real salary growth at 31 March 2013 reflects salary freezes and an expectation of constrained growth for the next

valuation cycle.

November 2013




2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Scope, reliances and limitations

Scope

This document has been requested by and is provided to Haringey Council in its capacity as Administering
Authority to the London Borough of Haringey Pension Fund. It has been prepared by Hymans Robertson LLP
to support a discussion on funding strategy with the Fund as part of the 2013 funding valuation.

This document should not be released or otherwise disclosed to any third party (including Fund employers)
without our prior written consent, in which case it should be released in its entirety. Hymans Robertson LLP
accepts no liability to any other party unless we have expressly accepted such liability.

The valuation results are inextricably linked to the data provided to us and the assumptions that we use in our
calculations. It is possible that as part of our ongoing discussions you may find that there is additional
information you should provide us with. In a similar way, you may feel that one or more of our proposed
assumptions are not suitable for the Fund and you may wish to explore the use of alternatives. Until both of
these areas are definitively agreed by all relevant parties, the results in this document will remain “initial” and
could be subject to change before the final valuation report is signed off. This document is a “component report”
of the eventual final aggregate valuation report.

The results contained in this document are for the Fund as a whole. It does not set out the valuation results for
individual employers, which will be derived at a later date. Employers come in different shapes and sizes and
their valuation results are not uniform. We would advise against extrapolating the results contained in this
document to predict possible contribution rates for employers at this stage.

Reliances and limitations

This document has been prepared for the purpose of reviewing the funding strategy and employer contributions
to the Fund and nothing contained within it affects any member’s benefits. Furthermore, none of the figures
should be used for accounting purposes (e.g. under FRS17 or IAS19) or for any other purpose (e.g. a
termination valuation under Regulation 38(1)).

The results of the valuation are dependent on the quality of the data provided to us by the Administering
Authority for the specific purpose of this valuation. We have previously issued a separate report confirming that
the data provided is fit for the purposes of this valuation and have commented on the quality of the data
provided. The data used in our calculations is as per our report of November 2013.

The figures in this report are based on our understanding of the benefit structure of the LGPS as at 31 March
2013 and the changes taking effect from 1 April 2014. Details of this will be provided in our final valuation
report.

Actuarial Standards
The following Technical Actuarial Standards’ are applicable in relation to this report and have been complied
with where material:

o TAS R - Reporting;

o TAS D - Data;

° TAS M — Modelling; and
° Pensions TAS.

' Technical Actuarial Standards (TASs) are issued by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) and set standards for certain items of actuarial
work, including the information and advice contained in this report.

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Events since 2010

Since the previous formal valuation of the Fund at 31 March 2010 various events have taken place, which have
had an effect on the estimated cost of the Fund.

Changes in the Fund’s membership

The membership profile of the Fund has changed since the previous valuation. New employee members have
joined the Fund whilst others have left the Fund, retired or died. Whilst membership changes were anticipated
at the previous valuation, the actual changes have inevitably not exactly matched our expectations. The chart
below summarises both the number of members in each membership category at 31 March 2010 and 31 March
2013.

9,000 8758

8,000

6999 6710

5910

7000 6624

6,000 +—

5,000 +——
2010

4,000 - m 2013
3,000 +———
2,000 ——

1,000 +——

0 .
Employee Deferred Pensioner

Maturity

The membership data that we have been provided with suggests that the Fund is gradually maturing. In other
words, the proportion of the total membership attributable to employee members is gradually receding, meaning
that the burden (as a percentage of current contributing members payroll) on contributing members of meeting
the cost of the Fund’s liabilities is becoming progressively greater. If this trend were to continue, the result
would be that in future the overall contribution rate would become much more heavily influenced by the past
service funding level, rather than simply the cost of new benefits being earned in future by contributing
members.

Another measure of the maturity of the Fund is to look at the average age of its membership and the expected
remaining future working lifetime (FWL). This is set out in the table below:

Average Age (years) FWL (years)
Membership Profile 2010 2013 2010 2013
Employees 51.4 51.3 8.3 9.8
Deferred Pensioners 50.8 51.3 - -
Pensioners 66.0 66.3 - -

Note that the ages presented here are weighted by liability.

The expected future working lifetime indicates the anticipated length of time that the average employee member
will remain as a contributor to the Fund. Note that it allows for the possibility of members leaving, retiring early
or dying before retirement.

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Other financial and demographic changes

The table below summarises the actual and expected values for the various assumptions. Further details are
given below.

Assumption/measure | Actual | Expected | Difference | Impact
Asset return

Over 3 year period 27.0% 19.4% 7.6% Positive
Annual 8.3% 6.1% 2.2%

Pre-retirement experience

Early leavers 1956 1662 18% Positive
Il health retirements 24 126 -81% Positive
Salary increases (p.a.) 1.8% 3.1% -1.3% Positive
Post-retirement experience

Pension increases 3.5% 3.3% 0.2% Negative
Amount of pension ceasing over 3 year

period (£m) 1.79 2.07 -14% Negative
Assumption/measure 2010 2013 Difference Impact
Fixed interest gilts 4.5% 3.0% -1.5% Negative
Index linked gilts 0.7% -0.3% -1.0% Negative
Inflation (RPI) 3.8% 3.3% -0.5% Positive
Assets

The performance of the Fund’s investments has been more than the expected return over the three year period
to 31 March 2013. This has had a positive effect on the past service position of the Fund at this valuation.

The Fund’s investment strategy has remained largely unchanged since 2010, with around 84% of the Fund
invested in riskier assets (such as equities, property and alternatives). The experience of the last three years
serves to underline the fact that, whilst these riskier assets are expected to outperform more risk averse
investments (such as government bonds and cash) over the long-term, they are susceptible to volatility in the
short-term.

Liabilities
The decrease in the real yield since 2010 has itself served to increase the value of the Fund’s liabilities.

The discount rate used to value the Fund’s future benefit payments is based on the return on fixed interest gilts,
whilst the benefits themselves are projected to increase in line with both salary and price inflation. Therefore,
the “real” return available on gilts (i.e. the return on fixed interest gilts net of inflation) is a key indicator in the
measurement of liabilities.

All other things being equal, a decrease in real gilt yield serves to increase the value placed on the Fund’s
liabilities and vice versa.

Future service

The difference in the real gilt yield between 2010 and 2013 has itself led to an increase in the future service
rate.

There is a similar relationship between real gilt yields and the future service contribution rate. All other things
being equal, the fall in real gilt yields since 2010 will serve to push up the expected cost of new benefits earned
by employee members in future.

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

-

Note that volatility in the market value of the Fund’s equity-type investments has no immediate effect on the
future service contribution rate, as opposed to the immediate and often tangible effect it can have on the past
service position (i.e. the effect on the deficit at any given time). The effect on the future service rate may
manifest itself at a later date, when the assumptions used to calculate it are updated to take account of this
experience.

Pre-retirement experience

Early leavers

There were more early leavers than anticipated. This serves to decrease the Fund’s liabilities, as broadly
speaking deferred benefits are assumed to grow at a slower rate (price inflation) than those for active members
(salary inflation).

lll health retirements

There were fewer ill health retirements than expected. This serves to decrease the Fund’s liabilities, as ill health
benefits are costly. Those who retire early through ill health not only receive their benefits before their normal
retirement age but are also credited with additional service, both of which place a strain on the Fund.

Non-ill health early retirements

We do not make any assumption about non ill-heath early retirements. Whilst the level of ill health in the
population is linked to certain underlying factors that can be analysed, events such as redundancy are often
made for commercial reasons and are far more difficult to predict. Where such early retirements have been
granted, this will serve to increase the Fund’s liabilities (except where pensions have been specifically reduced
to reflect their early payment). Such an increase is usually offset by a lump sum payment from the retiree’s
employer (a “strain” payment). However, as time elapses it is unlikely that this payment will exactly match the
liability it was originally intended to cover (for example, the member may go on to live much longer than
expected).

Salary increases
Salaries have increased at a slower rate than expected over the last three years. This serves to decrease the

Fund’s liabilities, as members’ retirement benefits are ultimately linked to final salary.

Post-retirement experience

Once retired, members (and possibly their dependants) will receive pension benefits for as long as they survive.
The key factors that influence the cost of these benefits to the Fund are therefore pensioner mortality and
increases to pensions in payment.

Pension increases
Pensions have increased more than expected over the last three years. This has had a slightly adverse impact
on the funding position.

Pensioner longevity

The amount of pensions ceasing over the last three years was less than was anticipated. Whilst this is
obviously good news for the Fund’s pensioners, it inevitably places a bigger financial burden on the Fund. Note
that when we analyse pensioner deaths and derive our assumptions for the future, we do not simply base our
analysis on the number of pensioners dying. Rather, we look at the amount of pension that subsequently
ceases to be paid out by the Fund. This is a more relevant figure, as the cost to the Fund will be more heavily
influenced by those who are in receipt of larger pensions.

Having assessed the events that have affected the Fund since the previous valuation, we can now formulate an
approach to this 2013 valuation which will incorporate this information into our long-term assumptions for the
Fund.

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

New Scheme from April 2014

From 1 April 2014, the way in which benefits accrue in the LGPS will fundamentally change. The main change
is that benefits will no longer be based on members’ final salary at retirement, but will be based on members’
Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE). Details of the changes coming in on 1 April 2014 (the 2014
scheme) are set out in Appendix B.

Our calculation of the future service rate at the 2013 valuation is based on the 2014 scheme benefits, which
comes into effect from 1 April 2014. This is consistent with the application of the contribution rates determined
at the 2013 valuation, which also come into effect from 1 April 2014.

Having assessed the events that have affected the Fund since the previous valuation, we can now formulate an
approach to this 2013 valuation which will incorporate this information into our long-term assumptions for the
Fund.

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

2013 — Our proposed approach and assumptions

For our valuation approach, please see Appendix B and our briefing note titled ‘2013 Valuation approach’ dated
March 2013.

Similarly, please see our briefing note titled ‘2013 Valuation assumptions’ which sets out our central
recommended assumptions for the 2013 valuation. This can be found in Appendix D.

Details of our recommended assumptions for the Fund for this valuation are set out below, following discussions
of our central recommendations.

Financial assumptions

The table below summarises the financial assumptions that we believe are most appropriate for the valuation of
members’ benefits at this valuation. The corresponding assumptions from the 2010 valuation are shown for
reference.

31 March 2013

| 31March2010 |

Financial assumptions

| Nominal |

Real

| Nominal |

Real

Discount Rate

6.1%

2.8%

4.6%

2.1%

Salary Increases*

5.3%**

2.0%

433%™

1.8%

Price Inflation / Pension Increases

3.3%

2.5%

*Excluding promotional increases.

**1% p.a. for 2010/11 and 2011/12, reverting to the long term assumption shown thereafter.

*** The reduction in real salary growth at 31 March 2013 reflects salary freezes and an expectation of constrained growth for the next
valuation cycle.

A further explanation of how we have derived these assumptions is set out below.

Discount rate

As set out in our briefing note (Appendix D), we recommend that Funds adopt the same Asset Outperformance
Assumptions (AOA) as was adopted at the 2010 valuation, unless significant changes in the Fund’s investment
strategy have taken place.

The table below details the composition of the discount rate at 31 March 2013:

31 March 2013

Discount rate

Nominal

Real

"Gilt-based" discount rate 3.0% 0.5%
Asset Outperformance Assumption 1.6% -
Funding basis discount rate 4.6% 2.1%

Price inflation / pension increases

Due to changes in the construction of the CPI index since 2010, we expect the average long term difference

between RPI and CPI to be 0.8% p.a. Please see Appendix D for further details.

The table below confirms our assumption for CPl/pension increases at this valuation:

November 2013



. 2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Assumed pension increases 31 March 2013

Market-derived RPI 3.3%
RPI to CPI adjustment 0.8%
CP1/ pension increases 2.5%

Salary increases

Please see Appendix D for further details. The general salary growth assumption for the Fund as at 31 March
2013 is set equal to the long term rate of RPI plus 1% p.a. At 2010, the salary growth was 1% p.a. for 2 years
and RPI plus 1.50% p.a. thereafter.

The reduction in the assumption in excess of inflation taken at 31 March 2013 for the long term salary increase
assumption reflects salary freezes and an expectation of constrained growth for the next valuation cycle.

The table below summarises our proposed salary increase assumption:

Assumed salary increases | 31 March 2013
Market-derived RPI 3.3%
Salary increase in excess of inflation 1.0%
Total salary increase 4.3%

Note that this assumption is made in respect of the general level of salary increases (e.g. as a result of inflation
and other macroeconomic factors). We also make a separate allowance for expected pay rises granted in the
future as a result of promotion. This assumption takes the form of a set of tables which model the expected
promotional pay awards based on each member’s age and class. Please see Appendix C.

Longevity
In setting the assumptions for longevity, there are two principal factors that we must consider:
° The life expectancy for members based on what we know today — known as “baseline longevity”.

o How this life expectancy is forecast to improve in the future — known as the “longevity improvement”.

At the 2010 valuation, for baseline longevity we used the “SAPS” tables which are a standard set of tables
published by the actuarial profession based on the longevity experience of occupational pension funds.

We then allowed for future longevity improvements in line with the medium cohort projections with a minimum
level of improvement of 1% p.a.

Baseline longevity - VitaCurves

As previously advised, the longevity assumptions that have been adopted at this valuation are a bespoke set of
VitaCurves that are specifically tailored to fit the average membership profile of the Fund. These curves are
based on the data you have provided us with for the purposes of this valuation.

Longevity improvement
Please see our briefing note which can be found in Appendix D which sets out the 3 key considerations to make
when setting the future longevity improvement assumption.

The above assumptions give the following sample average future life expectancies (in years) for members:

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Actives & Deferreds Current Pensioners

Assumed life expectancy at age 65 Male Female Female
2010 valuation - baseline 18.9 21.6 . 21.6
2010 valuation - improvements 23.3 26.1 21.9 24.7
2013 valuation - baseline 19.3 22.0 19.0 21.6
2013 valuation - improvements 24.2 26.6 22.0 24 1

Further details of the mortality assumptions adopted for this valuation can be found in Appendix C. Note that
the figures for actives and deferreds assume that they are aged 45 at the valuation date.

Demographic assumptions

We are in the unique position of having a very large local authority data set from which to derive our other
demographic assumptions. This year, as in previous years, we have made full use of this to analyse the trends
and patterns that are present in the membership of local authority funds and tailor our assumptions to reflect
LGPS experience.

As with the financial and longevity assumptions, these demographic assumptions affect both the past service
and future service valuation results. Further details on these assumptions are set out below.

Withdrawals (early leavers)
See Appendix D and table in Appendix C.

lll-health early retirements
See Appendix D and table in Appendix C.

Retirement age
See Appendix D. In addition to this, we have assumed that any new deferred members since 31 March 2010 will
retire at age 65.

In order to ensure that we are treating these accrued benefits correctly in our valuation calculations, we are
explicitly calculating the appropriate retirement age for each member (rather than simply using the age provided
in the membership data extract). This is the same approach as we took at the 2010 valuation.

50:50 option under the new LGPS structure
See Appendix D.

Other demographic assumptions
See Appendix D and tables in Appendix C.

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Further comments on the assumptions

Level of prudence

As required for Local Government Pension Scheme valuations, our proposed approach to this valuation must
include a degree of prudence. This has been achieved by explicitly allowing for a margin of prudence in the
Asset Outperformance Assumption.

For the avoidance of doubt, we believe that all other proposed assumptions represent the “best estimate” of
future experience. This effectively means that there is a 50% chance that future experience will be better or
worse than the chosen assumption.

Taken as a whole, we believe that our proposed assumptions are more prudent than the best estimate. The
assessed liability value on a “neutral” best estimate (not prudent) basis would perhaps be 20% lower than the
figures shown here.

Selecting a set of final assumptions

The assumptions presented here are not the only ones that could be adopted for the valuation. It can be
tempting to opt for a combination of assumptions that give the most favourable valuation results. However,
whilst this approach may offer some short term benefits (for example, temporarily showing a higher funding level
and lower contribution requirement for the Fund and its employers) there is a long term risk that the cost of the
Fund is being underestimated. This can increase the risk of even greater deficits arising in the future, possibly
at very inopportune times.

Conversely, it may seem attractive to choose a set of assumptions that are extremely cautious and that result in
a much higher deficit, on the grounds of prudence. This could prompt a call for much higher contributions from
employers in the short term, possibly unnecessarily so, which may be unsustainable and therefore not in the
best interests of employers in the long term.

We believe that our proposed set of valuation assumptions, taken as a whole, are the most appropriate for the
Fund as at 31 March 2013. We consider that the valuation results they yield give the best balance between
prudence and a realistic assessment of the financial position of the Fund.

We have used these proposed assumptions to calculate the initial valuation results at 31 March 2013.

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

2013 — Initial results

Past service — funding level and deficit

The table below shows the initial results for the past service position of the whole fund at 31 March 2013.
These 2013 figures are based on our proposed valuation assumptions, as set out in the previous section. The
final results of the previous valuation at 31 March 2010 are also shown for reference.

Past Service Position (£m) (Em)
Past Sence Liabilities
Employees 399 427
Deferred Pensioners 205 293
Pensioners 355 513
Total Liabilities 960 1,232
Market Value of Assets 664 863
Surplus / (Deficit) (296) (369)
Funding Level 69.2% 70.0%

Why the past service position has changed

The chart below illustrates the various factors that have led to the deficit rising between the previous valuation
and this one.

Surplus / (deficit) at last valuatien

Interest on surplus / (deficit)

Investm ent returns greater than expected
Contributiens greater than cost of accrual
Actual experience over the period

Change in dempgraphic assumptions

Change in base mortality assumption

Change in longevily im provements assumption
Change in financial assumptions

Other experience items

Surplus / (deficit) at this valuation  [369)

(400} (350 (3hn) (250 (2ﬁn) (150 (1hn) {50 0 50 100

fm

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Further comments on the items in this chart:

° There is an interest cost of £59m. This is broadly three years of compound interest at 6.10% p.a. applied
to the previous valuation deficit of £296m.

° Investment returns being higher than expected since 2010 lead to a gain of £51m. This is roughly the
difference between the actual and expected three-year return applied to the whole fund assets from the
previous valuation of £664m, with a further allowance made for cashflows during the period.

° The impact of contributions compared to accrual is a profit of £23m.
° The impact of the change in demographic assumptions has been a loss arising of around £4m.
° The change in mortality assumptions (baseline and improvements) has given rise to a gain of £8m. This

is mainly due to the change in assumed baseline longevity

o The change in financial conditions between the previous valuation has led to a loss of £137m. This is due
to a decrease in the real discount rate between 2010 and 2013. This has been partially been offset by the
0.3% p.a. increase in our assumption of the gap between RPI and CPI.

° Other experience items, such as changes in the membership data, have served to increase the deficit at
this valuation by around £43m.

lllustrative results from alternative assumptions — past service position
These initial valuation results are based on our proposed set of assumptions, which we believe are appropriate
to the Fund’s circumstances. However, they are by no means the only set of assumptions that could be used.

The table below illustrates the funding level and deficit that would arise from using various combinations of the
two most influential assumptions - namely investment return and longevity.

Past service position Asset Outperformance Assumption

2013 Valuation
(improvements 1)

2
>
()
(=]
c
o
|

2013 Valuation
(improvements 2)

The shaded box contains the initial results for this valuation, based on our proposed set of assumptions. Some
points to note from this table are:

° “Improvements 1” are the longevity improvements that we are proposing for this valuation.

° “Improvements 2” are a more cautious set of improvements that, in the short term, assume the ‘cohort
effect’ of strong improvements in life expectancy currently being observed amongst a generation born
around the early and mid 1930s will continue to strengthen for a few more years before tailing off. This is
known as “non-peaked”.

Having looked at the past service position, we must also analyse the future service costs and the contribution
rates that arise from this valuation.

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Contribution rates — future service rate

The table below shows the initial results for the future service cost for the whole fund as at 31 March 2013.

Again, these 2013 figures are based on our proposed set of assumptions and the corresponding results from
the previous valuation in 2010 are shown for reference.

Valuation Date | 31 March 2010 | 31 March 2013

Future service rate % of pay % of pay
Employer future senice rate (excl. expenses) 16.9% 19.9%
Expenses 0.5% 0.5%
Total employer future service rate (incl. expenses) 17.3% 20.4%
Employee contribution rate 6.8% 6.6%

Why the future service rate has changed
The chart below illustrates the various factors that have led to the employer future service rate rising between

the previous valuation and this one.
S

Future service rate at last valuation
Change in mortality assumption -0.1%

Change in demographic assumptions I 0.3%

Change in financial assumptions 4.7%
Impact of LGPS 2014 -2.1%

Other experience items 0.3%

Future service rate at this valuation 20.4%

10.0% 15.0% 20.0%

% of pay

-5.0% 0.0% 5.0% 25.0%

As can be seen from this chart, the factors that have had the biggest impact on the future service rate between
2010 and 2013 are broadly similar to those discussed for the past service position, other than asset returns.

In addition to this, the impact of the LGPS 2014 scheme has resulted in a reduction in the future service cost of
2.1% p.a of payroll compared to the pre 2014 scheme.

Contribution rates — total contribution rate

The table below shows the initial results for the total (common) contribution rate, which consist of the future
service rate plus the additional contributions required to repay the deficit (the past service adjustment).

Valuation Date | 31 March 2010 | 31 March 2013

Total contribution rate % of pay % of pay
Future seniice rate (incl. expenses) 17.3% 20.4%
Past senvice adjustment (20 year spread) 11.2% 15.1%
Total employer contribution rate 28.5% 35.5%

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

For consistency, | have based my calculation of the past service adjustment on the same deficit recovery period
as the previous valuation, namely 20 years. Theoretically, this period could be reduced or extended to suit the
circumstances of the Fund at 31 March 2013. In practical terms, a reduction to the recovery period of one year
would effectively increase the past service adjustment by roughly 0.7% and vice versa.

However, whilst extending the deficit recovery period on the grounds of affordability is an option, we believe this
would be inadvisable given the current funding position. There are other ways to meet the need for affordable
contributions for employers without jeopardising the health of the Fund in the long term which we will discuss
later.

lllustrative results from alternative assumptions — total contribution rate

The table below illustrates the future service rate (top), past service adjustment (middle) and total contribution
rate (bottom) that would arise from using various combinations of the two most influential assumptions - namely
investment return and longevity.

Contribution rates Asset Outperformance Assumption
1.4% 1.6% 1.8%
20.4%

15.1%
35.5%

2013 Valuation
(improvements 1)

2013 Valuation
(improvements 2)

2
>
Q
(2]
c
o
-

The shaded box contains the initial results for this valuation, based on our proposed set of assumptions. The
definitions of “Improvements 1” and “Improvements 2” are as described in the previous section.

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

2013 — Risk assessment

The valuation results depend critically on the actuarial assumptions that are made about the future of the Fund.
If all of the assumptions made at this valuation were exactly borne out in practice then the results presented in
this document would represent the true cost of the Fund as it currently stands at 31 March 2013.

However, no one can predict the future with certainty and it is unlikely that future experience will exactly match
all of our assumptions. The future therefore presents a variety of risks to the Fund and these should be
considered as part of the valuation process. In particular:

o The main risks to the financial health of the Fund should be identified.

° Where possible, the financial significance of these risks should be quantified.

o Consideration should be given as to how these risks can then be controlled or mitigated.
° These risks should then be monitored to assess whether any mitigation is actually working.

This section investigates the potential implications of the actuarial assumptions not being borne out in practice.

Set out below is a brief assessment of the main risks and their effect on the valuation results, beginning with a
look at the effect of changing the main assumptions and then focusing on the two most significant risks —
namely investment risk and longevity risk.

Sensitivity of valuation results to changes in assumptions

Broadly speaking, there are two particular risks that are generally of most interest to pension funds — the
performance of the Fund’s investments and improvements in life expectancy compared to our assumptions. A
further analysis of both is given below.

Investment risk

As the assets of the Fund are taken at their market value, volatility in investment performance can have an
immediate and tangible effect on the funding level and deficit. This is particularly relevant because the Fund is
invested predominantly in riskier assets such as equities and equity-type investments (e.g. property). A rise or
fall in the level of equity markets has a direct impact on the financial position of the Fund, which may seem
obvious.

Less obvious is the effect of anticipated investment performance on the Fund’s liabilities (and future service
cost). Here it is the returns available on government bonds that are of crucial importance, as the discount rate
that we use to place a value on the Fund’s liabilities is based on gilt yields at the valuation date. As described
earlier, the discount rate used to value the Fund’s future benefit payments is based on the return on fixed
interest gilts, whilst the benefits themselves are projected to increase in line with inflation. Therefore, the return
available on index-linked gilts is a key factor in the valuation of the Fund’s liabilities (and future service cost).

The table below shows how the funding level (top), deficit (middle) and total contribution rate (bottom) would
vary if investment conditions at 31 March 2013 were different. The level of the FTSE 100 Price index is taken
as a suitable proxy for asset performance whilst the index-linked gilt yield is taken as a yardstick for the
valuation of liabilities.

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

=
2
=
=
o
°
o
X
=
-l
x
)
T
=

6412

FTSE 100 Price Index

The shaded box contains the initial results for this valuation. Note that this does not take account of the
performance of all asset classes held by the Fund (e.g. property, bonds, cash) but it does serve to highlight, in
broad terms, the sensitivity of the valuation results to investment conditions at the valuation date.

Note that the scenarios illustrated above are by no means exhaustive. They should not be taken as the limit of
how extreme future investment experience could be.

Longevity risk

The valuation results are also very sensitive to unexpected changes in future longevity. All else being equal, if
longevity improves in the future at a faster pace than allowed for in the valuation assumptions, the funding level
will decline and the required employer contribution rates will increase.

Recent medical advances, changes in lifestyle and a greater awareness of health-related matters have resulted
in life expectancy amongst pension fund members improving in recent years at a faster pace than was originally
foreseen. Itis unknown whether and to what extent such improvements will continue in the future.

For the purposes of this valuation, we have selected assumptions that we believe make an appropriate
allowance for future improvements in longevity, based on the actual experience of the Fund since the previous
valuation.

The table below shows how the valuation results at 31 March 2013 are affected by adopting different longevity
assumptions. See page 13 for further details. The bottom row represent the impact of pensioners living one
year longer than the life expectancy under improvements 2.

Longevity assumption Funding level Deficit (Em) Future service rate
2013 valuation (improvements 1) 70% (369) 20.4%
2013 valuation (improvements 2) 67% (419) 21.8%
1 year extra 65% (458) 22.6%

This is not an exhaustive list of the assumptions used in the valuation. For example, changes to the assumed
level of withdrawals and ill health retirements will also have an effect on the valuation results. However, the
table contains those assumptions that typically are of most interest and have the biggest impact.

Note that the table shows the effect of changes to each assumption in isolation. In reality, it is perfectly possible
for the experience of the Fund to deviate from many of these assumptions between valuations and so the
precise effect on the funding position is therefore more complex.

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Other risks to consider

The table below summarises the effect that changes in some of the other valuation assumptions and risk factors
would have on the funding position. Note that these are probably unlikely to change in such a way that would
rank them as amongst the highest risks facing the Fund and therefore the analysis is qualitative rather than
quantitative.

Impact
Factor | Funding level | Future service rate
Greater level of ill health retirement Decreases Marginal
Reduced level of withdrawals Decreases Marginal
Rise in average age of employee members Marginal effect Increases
Lower take up of 50:50 option No impact Increases

One further risk to consider is the possibility of future changes to Regulations that could materially affect the
benefits that members become entitled to. It is difficult to predict the nature of any such changes but it is not
inconceivable that they could affect not just the cost of benefits earned after the change but could also have a
retrospective effect on the past service position (as the move from RPI to CPI-based pension increases already
has).

Managing the risks

Whilst there are certain things, such as the performance of investment markets or the life expectancy of
members, that are not directly within the control of the pension fund, that does not mean that nothing can be
done to understand them further and to mitigate their effect. Although these risks are difficult (or impossible) to
eliminate, steps can be taken to manage them.

Ways in which some of these risks can be managed could be:

o Set aside a specific reserve to act as a cushion against adverse future experience (possibly by selecting
a set of actuarial assumptions that are deliberately more prudent).

° Take steps internally to monitor the decisions taken by members and employers (e.g. relating to early /ill
health retirements or salary increases) in a bid to curtail any adverse impact on the Fund.

° Pooling certain employers together at the valuation and then setting a single (pooled) contribution rate
that they will all pay. This can help to stabilise contribution rates (at the expense of cross-subsidy
between the employers in the pool during the period between valuations).

° Carrying out a review of the future security of the Fund’s employers (i.e. assessing the strength of
employer covenants).

o Carry out a bespoke analysis of the longevity of Fund members and monitor how this changes over time,
so that the longevity assumptions at the valuation provide as close a fit as possible to the particular
experience of the Fund. This is effectively what Club Vita does.

° Undertake an asset-liability modelling exercise that investigates the effect on the Fund of thousands of
possible investment scenarios that may arise in the future. An assessment can then be made as to
whether long term, secure employers in the Fund can stabilise their future contribution rates (thus
introducing more certainty into their future budgets) without jeopardising the long-term health of the Fund.
This is exactly what our comPASS tool does.

° Purchasing ill health liability insurance to mitigate the risk of an ill health retirement impacting on solvency
and funding level of an individual employer.

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

° Monitoring different employer characteristics in order to build up a picture of the risks posed. Examples
include membership movements, cash flow positions and employer events such as cessations.

We would be delighted to set out in more detail the risks that affect the Fund and discuss with you possible
strategies for managing them.

Stabilisation of contribution rates (comPASS)

There can be occasions when the market-related employer contribution rate is not affordable or achievable in
practice in the short term. This can occur in times of tight fiscal control or where budgets have been set in
advance of new employer contribution rates being available.

In view of this possibility, the Administering Authority has carried out extensive modelling to explore the long
term effect on the Fund of capping future contribution increases (and decreases). By adopting such a strategy,
this effectively means that employers will pay slightly less than the market-related contribution rate in “bad”
times and in turn will pay slightly more than the market-related rate in “good” times.

The comPASS modelling that we carry out makes an explicit allowance for the possible future investment risks
that the Fund may encounter over the period of stabilisation. By doing so, the aim is to justify whether or not the
long-term health of the Fund will be adversely impacted by the application of a cap on changes to contribution
rates.

The results of the modelling are in a separate paper dated 50 August 2013.

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Next steps

Next steps

This report sets out the initial results of the 2013 valuation at whole fund level. We have presented a set of
valuation results based on our recommended set of actuarial assumptions and also show how these results
would change if a variety of alternative approaches were taken.

The next steps in the process are as follows.

° The next step is for the Administering Authority and the Actuary to agree on the final actuarial
assumptions that will ultimately be adopted for the valuation. This may simply be a ratification of the
assumptions that we have proposed. On the other hand, you may feel that some of these assumptions
are not appropriate for the Fund and you may want to look at some additional scenarios that you feel
more closely reflect the Fund’s experience.

° Once the final assumptions have been agreed, we will quantify the valuation results for each individual
employer that participates in the Fund. When we present you with these results, we will set out the
theoretical contribution rates that each employer should pay for the next three years from 1 April 2014.

o Of course, the contribution rate that each employer should pay in theory may be different to what they will
actually pay in practice. Any deviation will be based on their own circumstances and a range of factors
including (amongst other things) their perceived security, whether they are going to be pooled with other
employers or any budgetary constraints that they may be bound by. We expect there to be a consultation
period where you gather together all of these issues and come back to us with a set of final
contribution rates for each employer.

° We understand that you may require additional input from us before agreeing the final contribution rates.
Some employers may accept their proposed contribution rates quite readily whilst others may want to
explore their options. You may want us to look at the viability of different contribution strategies that
are proposed by individual employers.

o Once a set of final contribution rates have been agreed for all employers, we will provide you with a final
valuation report which will clearly set out the final valuation results and will meet all the relevant
regulatory requirements. Included in this report will be the Certificate of Rates and Adjustments, which
will certify the minimum contribution rates to be paid by each employer for the three year period beginning
on 1 April 2014. This final valuation report must be provided to you no later than 31 March 2014.

| would be happy to discuss any aspect of these initial results at our scheduled meeting.

5})/% d /EMM D}M—VL L

Bryan T Chalmers Douglas Green
Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries
8 November 2013 8 November 2013

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Appendix A: About the pension fund

The purpose of the Fund is to provide retirement benefits to its members. It is part of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) and is a multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme.

Defined benefit pension scheme

In a defined benefit scheme such as this, the nature of retirement benefits that members are entitled to is known
in advance. For example, it is known that members will receive a pension on retirement that is linked to their
salary and pensionable service according to a pre-determined formula.

However, the precise cost to the Fund of providing these benefits is not known in advance. The estimated cost
of these benefits represents a liability to the Fund and assets must be set aside to meet this. The relationship
between the value of the liabilities and the value of the assets must be regularly assessed and monitored to
ensure that the Fund can fulfil its core objective of providing its members with the retirement benefits that they
have been promised.

Liabilities
The Fund’s liabilities are the benefits that will be paid in the future to its members (and their dependants).

The precise timing and amount of these benefit payments will depend on future experience, such as when
members will retire, how long they will live for in retirement and what economic conditions will be like both
before and after retirement. Because these factors are not known in advance, assumptions must be made
about future experience. The valuation of these liabilities must be regularly updated to reflect the degree to
which actual experience has been in line with these assumptions.

Assets

The Fund’s assets arise from the contributions paid by its members and their employers and the investment
returns that they generate. The way these assets are invested is of fundamental importance to the Fund. The
selection, monitoring and evolution of the Fund’s investment strategy are key responsibilities of the
Administering Authority.

As the estimated cost of the Fund'’s liabilities is regularly re-assessed, this effectively means that the amount of
assets required to meet them is a moving target. As a result, at any given time the Fund may be technically in
surplus or in deficit.

A contribution strategy must be put in place which ensures that each of the Fund’'s employers pays money into
the Fund at a rate which will target the cost of its share of the liabilities in respect of benefits already earned by
members and those that will be earned in the future.

The long-term nature of the Fund

The pension fund is a long-term commitment. Even if it were to stop admitting new members today, it would still
be paying out benefits to existing members and dependants for many decades to come. It is therefore essential
that the various funding and investment decisions that are taken now recognise this and come together to form
a coherent long-term strategy.

In order to assist with these decisions, the Regulations require the Administering Authority to obtain a formal
valuation of the Fund every three years. Along with the Funding Strategy Statement, this valuation will help
determine the funding objectives that will apply from 1 April 2014.

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

LGPS 2014

On 31 May 2012 the Local Government Association (LGA) and trade unions announced the outcome of their
negotiations on the new LGPS proposals (for England and Wales) that are to take effect from 1st April 2014.
The main elements of the proposed LGPS 2014 scheme are as follows:

° A Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) scheme using CPI as the revaluation factor (the current
scheme is a final salary scheme).

° The accrual rate would be 1/49th (the current scheme is 1/60th).
° Reversion to a two year vesting period (it is currently 3 months).
° There will be no normal scheme pension age; instead each member’s Normal Pension Age (NPA) will be

their State Pension Age (the current scheme has an NPA of 65).

° Average member contributions to the scheme would be around the same as the current scheme with the
rate determined on actual pay (the current scheme determines part-time contribution rates on full time
equivalent pay). While there would be no change to average member contributions, the lowest paid would
pay the same or less and the highest paid would pay higher contributions on a more progressive scale
after tax relief.

° Members who have already or are considering opting out of the scheme could instead elect to pay half
contributions for half the pension, while still retaining the full value of other benefits. This is known as the
50/50 option (the current scheme has no such flexible option).

° For current scheme members, benefits for service prior to 1st April 2014 are protected, including
remaining ‘Rule of 85’ protection. Protected past service continues to be based on final salary and current
NPA. Specific protection - the ‘underpin’ - is proposed to apply to members who were within 10 years of
age 65 in April 2012. Some of these members would see their Normal Pension Age increase due to
movements in the State Pension Age. So for these members a calculation will be done on retirement at
65 to ensure they will get a pension at least equal to that which they would have received in the LGPS
2008.

° Where scheme members are outsourced they will be able to stay in the scheme on first and subsequent
transfers (currently this is a choice for the new employer).

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Appendix B: About the valuation

It is important to realise that the actual cost of the pension fund (i.e. how much money it will ultimately have to
pay out to its members in the form of benefits) is currently unknown. This cost will not be known with certainty
until the last benefit is paid to the last pensioner. The core purpose of this valuation is to estimate what this cost
will be, so that the Fund can then develop a strategy to meet it.

Such a valuation can only ever be an estimate — as the future cannot be predicted with certainty. However, as
actuaries, we can use our understanding of the Fund and the factors that affect it to determine an anticipated
cost which is as sensible and realistic as possible. A decision can then be made as to how much is set aside
now to meet this anticipated cost. The pace of this funding can vary according to the level of prudence that is
built into the valuation method and assumptions.

For this valuation, as for the previous valuation, our calculations identify separately the expected cost of
members’ benefits in respect of scheme membership completed before the valuation date (“past service”) and
that which is expected to be completed after the valuation date (“future service”).

Past service

The principal measurement here is the comparison at the valuation date of the assets (taken at market value)
and the value placed on the Fund’s liabilities (calculated using a market-based approach). By maintaining a link
to the market in both cases, this helps ensure that the assets and liabilities are valued in a consistent manner.
Our calculation of the Fund’s liabilities also explicitly allows for expected future pay and pension increases.

The funding level is the ratio of assets to liabilities at the valuation date. A funding level of less/more than 100%
implies that there is a deficit/surplus in the Fund at the valuation date.

The funding target is to eliminate any deficit (or surplus) over a specified period and therefore get back to a
funding level of 100%. To do so, additional contributions may be required to be paid into the Fund, either via
lump sums or by increasing the employer’s contribution rate. These additional contributions are known as the
past service adjustment.

Future service

In addition to benefits that have already been earned by members prior to the valuation date, employee
members will continue to earn new benefits in the future. The cost of these new benefits must be met by both
employers and employees. The employers’ share of this cost is known as the future service contribution rate.

For these initial valuation results for the Fund as a whole, | have calculated the future service rate as the cost of
benefits being earned by members over the year following the valuation, taking account of expected future
salary increases until retirement. If new entrants are admitted to the Fund to the extent that the overall
membership profile remains broadly unchanged (and if the actuarial assumptions are unchanged) then the
future service rate should be reasonably stable.

This funding method we have used is known as the Projected Unit Method. As well as the whole fund, it is
appropriate for individual employers that continue to admit new entrants to the Fund.

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

However, some participating employers may have a policy of not admitting new entrants. In this case, the
membership profile will inevitably begin to age. Under these circumstances, the Projected Unit Method is
arguably no longer appropriate and will not promote sufficient stability in the future service rate. For these
employers, we will adopt a funding method known as the Attained Age Method, which effectively looks at the
cost of benefits that members will earn over the entirety of their remaining working lifetime (rather than just the
year following the valuation).

When we come to issue the valuation results for individual employers, we will make clear which of these
methods has been used to calculate each employer’s future service rate.

Combining this future service rate with any past service adjustment required to repay a deficit (or reduce a
surplus) gives us the total contribution rate. The total rate for the Fund as a whole is known as the common
contribution rate. This is really just a notional figure. In practice, each individual employer will have a
contribution rate which reflects their own particular circumstances.

The sensitivity of valuation results

The aim of this valuation is not only to determine these important figures but also to demonstrate their sensitivity
to a number of key influences. This will promote an understanding of how the expected cost of the Fund may
change in response to uncertain future events (e.g. changes in life expectancy or investment returns).

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Appendix C: Demographic assumptions

Death in Service tables:

Incidence per 1000 active members per annum

Male officers Male Manuals ROl ClulEs Female Manuals
and Post 98 and Post 98

20 0.26 0.32 0.14 0.17
25 0.26 0.32 0.14 0.17
30 0.31 0.38 0.20 0.26
35 0.36 0.45 0.34 0.43
40 0.61 0.77 0.54 0.68
45 1.02 1.28 0.88 1.1
50 1.63 2.04 1.29 1.62
55 2.55 3.19 1.70 2.13
60 4.59 5.74 2.18 2.72
65 7.65 9.56 2.79 3.49

lll Health Early Retirements tables:

Tier 1
Incidence for 1000 active members per annum
Male Officers & Post Female Officers & Post
Male Manuals Female Manuals
98 Males 98 Females
Il Health Il Health Il Health Il Health
FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT
25 0.00 0.00 0.76 0.60 0.19 0.15 0.99 0.79
30 0.00 0.00 1.39 1.11 0.25 0.20 1.44 1.15
35 0.19 0.15 2.08 1.66 0.50 0.40 1.98 1.58
40 0.32 0.25 3.02 2.42 0.76 0.60 2.88 2.30
45 0.69 0.55 4.16 3.33 1.01 0.81 3.78 3.02
50 1.76 1.41 6.17 4.94 1.89 1.51 5.04 4.03
55 6.91 5.53 14.61 11.69 7.01 5.61 13.54 10.83
60 12.16 9.73 23.42 18.74 14.86 11.89 23.81 19.05
65 23.10 18.48 45.15 36.12 26.71 21.37 45.15 36.12

November 2013




2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Tier 2
Incidence for 1000 active members per annum

Male Officers & Post 98 Female Officers & Post 98

Male Manuals

Female Manuals

Males Females
Il Health Il Health Il Health Il Health

FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT
25 0.00 0.00 0.80 0.64 0.20 0.16 1.05 0.84
30 0.00 0.00 1.47 1.18 0.27 0.21 1.53 1.22
35 0.20 0.16 2.21 1.77 0.54 0.43 2.10 1.68
40 0.33 0.27 3.21 2.57 0.80 0.64 3.06 2.45
45 0.74 0.59 4.42 3.53 1.07 0.86 4.02 3.21
50 2.37 1.90 8.31 6.65 2.54 2.03 6.78 5.43
55 5.34 4.27 11.29 9.03 5.42 4.33 10.47 8.37
60 4.58 3.66 8.82 7.05 5.60 4.48 8.96 717
65 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Tier 3

Incidence for 1000 active members per annum
Female Officers & Post 98

Male Officers & Post 98

Y EIERYERTEIS

Female Manuals

Males Females
Il Health Il Health Il Health lIl Health

FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT
20
25 0.00 0.00 0.48 0.38 0.09 0.07 0.55 0.44
30 0.09 0.07 0.77 0.62 0.15 0.12 0.77 0.61
35 0.12 0.10 1.16 0.93 0.30 0.24 1.1 0.88
40 0.21 0.17 1.61 1.29 0.39 0.31 1.53 1.22
45 0.48 0.38 2.32 1.86 0.62 0.50 1.96 1.56
50 0.26 0.21 0.68 0.54 0.24 0.20 0.58 0.46
55 0.37 0.30 0.77 0.61 0.45 0.36 0.76 0.61
60 0.21 0.17 0.42 0.33 0.25 0.20 0.42 0.33
65 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Withdrawal

Less than 2 years’ service

Incidence for 1000 active members per annum

Male Officers Male Manuals Female Officers Female Manuals Post 98 Males Post 98 Females

Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals

FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT FT FT PT

1000.00

25 200.83 334.72 201.20 335.01 194.07 269.50 194.43 269.79 368.19 736.38 258.74 431.17
30 142.53 237.46 143.05 237.91 162.69 225.89 163.17 226.27 261.24 522.40 216.89 361.38
35 111.38 185.51 112.17 186.19 140.45 194.94 141.07 195.43 204.11 408.11 187.19 311.79
40 89.71 149.31 90.77 150.23 116.92 162.22 117.80 162.92 164.33 328.47 155.80 259.40
45 73.64 122.28 75.03 123.55 96.49 133.73 97.50 134.54 134.71 268.98 128.49 213.73
50 56.96 94.68 57.28 95.02 73.34 101.75 73.60 101.96 104.26 208.28 97.73 162.71
55 49.47 82.09 49.77 82.44 56.73 78.59 56.97 78.78 90.46 180.57 75.53 125.58
60 29.97 49.75 30.13 49.94 26.40 36.55 26.52 36.65 54.81 109.43 35.13 58.39

November 2013




2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

More than 2 years’ service
Incidence for 1000 active members per annum

Male Officers Male Manuals Female Officers EINEICRVERTES Post 98 Males Post 98 Females

Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals

FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT
20 119.85 199.76
25 79.17 131.95 79.31 132.06 76.50 106.24 76.64 106.35 145.14 290.28 101.99 169.97
30 56.18 93.60 56.39 93.78 64.13 89.05 64.32 89.20 102.98 205.93 85.50 142.46
35 43.90 73.12 44.22 73.40 55.37 76.84 55.61 77.04 80.46 160.88 73.79 122.91
40 35.36 58.85 35.79 59.22 46.09 63.95 46.44 64.22 64.78 129.48 61.42 102.26
45 29.03 48.18 29.59 48.71 38.04 52.72 38.44 53.04 53.10 106.03 50.65 84.25
50 22.45 37.31 22.58 37.46 28.91 40.11 29.01 40.19 41.10 82.10 38.52 64.14
55 19.50 32.35 19.62 32.50 22.36 30.98 22.46 31.06 35.66 71.18 29.77 49.50
60 11.82 19.60 11.88 19.69 10.41 14.41 10.46 14.45 21.61 43.14 13.85 23.02

Promotional salary scale
Promotional Salary Scales

Female Manuals

25 135 116 100 100 118 105 100 100
30 169 134 100 100 137 111 100 100
35 192 146 100 100 151 116 100 100
40 208 153 100 100 163 121 100 100
45 222 154 100 100 166 122 100 100
50 236 154 100 100 166 122 100 100
55 239 154 100 100 166 122 100 100
60 239 154 100 100 166 122 100 100
65 239 154 100 100 166 122 100 100

November 2013



2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Longevity assumptions 31 March 2013

Longevity - baseline Vita curves
Longevity - improvements

CMI Model version used CMI_2010

Starting rates CMI calibration based on data from

Club Vita using the latest available
data as at December 2011.

Long term rate of improvement Period effects:

1.25% p.a. for men and women.
Cohort effects:

0% p.a. for men and for women.
Period of convergence Period effects:

CMI model core values i.e. 10 years
for ages 50 and below and 5 years for
those aged 95 and abowe, with linear
transition to 20 years for those aged
between 60 and 80.

Cohort effects:

CMIl core i.e. 40 years for those born
in 1947 or later declining linearly to 5
years for those born in 1912 or
earlier.

Proportion of convergence remaining at 50%

mid point

We have suggested a longevity improvement assumption based on the latest industry standard and combined
information from our longevity experts in Club Vita. The start point for the improvements has been based on
observed death rates in the Club Vita data bank over the period.

In the short term we have assumed that the ‘cohort effect’ of strong improvements in life expectancy currently
being observed amongst a generation born around the early and mid 1930s will start to tail off, resulting in life
expectancy increasing less rapidly than has been seen over the last decade or two. This is known as ‘peaked’.

In the long term (post age 70) we have assumed that increases in life expectancy will stabilise at a rate of
increase of 1 year per decade for men and women. This is equivalent to assuming that longer term mortality
rates will fall at a rate of 1.25% p.a. for men and women.

However, we have assumed that post age 90 improvements in mortality are hard to achieve, declining between
ages 90 and 120 so that no improvements are seen at ages 120 and over. The initial rate of mortality is
assumed to decline steadily above age 98.

November 2013



’ 2013 VALUATION — INITIAL RESULTS

Appendix D: 2013 valuation assumptions

November 2013



Catherine McFadyen
Actuary

Steven Scott
Actuary

Page 51 HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON

The Spirit of Independence

2013 valuation assumptions June 2013

2013 valuation assumptions

Introduction

We recently outlined the approach we will take to the 2013 valuation in which we identified the
distinction between the measurement of the funding position and the management of
contribution rates.

The valuation assumptions determine the measurement of the funding position and application
of these should result in a prudent measurement of the past service liabilities.

Our assumptions fall into two categories — financial and demographic.

Financial assumptions typically try to predict the size of benefits. For example, how large
members’ final salaries will be at retirement and how their pensions will increase over time. In
addition, the financial assumptions also help us to estimate the cost of these benefits in today’s
money.

Demographic assumptions typically try to forecast when benefits will come into payment and
what form these will take. For example, when members will retire (e.g. at their normal
retirement age or earlier), how long they will survive and whether they will exchange some of
their pension for tax free-cash.

Financial assumptions
The discount rate and inflation assumptions are set with reference to the market's expectations
of future economic conditions at the valuation date.

It is important that the financial assumptions reflect the period over which past service benefits
are expected to be paid. The majority of benefits are paid many years in the future. In the period
before the benefits are paid the assets are invested with the aim of achieving a return on these
assets. So it is appropriate to allow for this investment return to determine how much money is
needed now to make these future benefit payments. This process requires the use of a discount
rate. All other things being equal, a lower discount rate results in more money being needed
now and vice versa.

Discount rate

The discount rate should reflect the returns that the Fund expects to earn on its investments over
the long term. We do this by considering the expected return on the lowest risk investments held
(government bonds) and applying a margin to allow for the greater returns that are expected to
be generated by the equity-type investments held (equities, property etc). We refer to this
additional margin as the Asset Outperformance Assumption (AOA).

Although we have seen a downward shift in the expected returns on risky assets since the 2010
valuation, we believe the expected returns in excess of the returns on government bonds to be
broadly unchanged since 2010.

Briefing Note 01



Page 52 HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON

2013 valuation assumptions

For the 2013 valuation, for consistency in measuring progress against a funding plan, we
recommend Funds adopt the same AOA as was adopted at the 2010 valuation, unless
significant changes in the Fund’s investment strategy have taken place since 2010.

Inflation / pension increases
As per the previous valuation, the ‘breakeven’ RPI inflation assumption will be derived from the
yields available on fixed-interest and index-linked government bonds.

LGPS benefit increases are linked to CPI and, as a market for CPI linked government bonds
does not exist, we must set our pension increase assumption relative to expected RPI by making
an appropriate deduction to reflect the differences between the construction of the RPI and CPI
indices, namely the differences between the “basket” of goods and services and the impact of
the “formula effect”.

Due to changes in the construction of the CPI index since 2010 (specifically, how changes in
clothing and footwear are measured) we expect the average long term difference between RPI
and CPI to be 0.8% p.a. (2010: 0.5% p.a.). This compares to a difference of 0.5% p.a. at March
2013 and1the Office for Budget Responsibility’s (OBR) estimate of the long run difference of
1.4% p.a.

This change has the effect of reducing the value placed on past service liabilities by circa 4% to
5%.

Salary growth
Although annual pay growth in recent years has generally been lower than the rate of inflation,
our assumption for general salary growth is based on what we expect over the long term.

Since 2010, average increases to public sector pay have been restricted to broadly 1% p.a. Itis
expected that public sector pay will continue to be restricted until at least 31 March 2016 (as per
the Chancellor’'s announcement in the 2013 budget). Rather than explicitly recognise the current
public sector pay restrictions (as we did in 2010), our recommended approach in 2013 is to set a
lower long term rate of salary growth. This reflects both shorter term pay constraints and the
belief that general economic growth and hence pay growth may be at a lower level than
historically experienced for a prolonged period of time. This assumption is also more
appropriate for many types of employer, including academies and private contractors who are
not subject to the short term restrictions. To that end, our recommended general salary growth
assumption as at 31 March 2013 is set equal to the long term rate of RPI + 1% p.a. (2010: RPI +
1.5% p.a.).

This change (from 1.5% to 1.0% above RPI) has the effect of reducing past service liabilities for
active members by circa 5% to 6%.

We also make a separate allowance for expected salary growth as a result of promotion, which
is considered separately under ‘Demographic assumptions’.

' Working paper No. 2 - The long-run difference between RPI and CP! inflation, November 2011

Briefing Note 02



Page 53 HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON

2013 valuation assumptions

Assumptions as at 31 March 2013
The following table shows our 2013 valuation financial assumptions, based on the methodology
described and market conditions as at 31 March 2013.

Assumption Approach Rate as at 31 March 2013
Discount rate Gilts + AOA 4.6% p.a.
Gilt yield FTSE published yields 3.0% p.a.
AOA No change 1.6% p.a.
RPI Inflation Implied from FTSE 3.3% p.a.

published yields

Pension increases RPI less 0.8% p.a. 2.5% p.a.
General salary growth RPI +1.0% p.a. 4.3% p.a.

Demographic assumptions

Longevity

Of all the demographic factors, longevity is the one that presents the greatest uncertainty.
Subscribers to Club Vita benefit from a greater understanding of longevity risk, in particular the
specific risk relative to their own scheme.

To help illustrate the scale and uncertainty of this risk, our valuation calculations will separate out
the value of the liabilities based on current observed life expectancies (what we call ‘baseline’
longevity) and the value of liabilities allowing for a possible level of future improvements to
longevity.

Baseline Longevity

The baseline longevity for all LGPS funds advised by Hymans Robertson will be based on Club
Vita tables. For funds subscribing to the full Club Vita service, the baseline assumptions will be
a series of bespoke VitaCurves applied to each member depending on socioeconomic factors.
For all other funds, a fund specific baseline table will be created based on whole fund
experience.

Future improvement to longevity

At the 2010 valuations, the rate of future longevity improvements was assumed to be in line with
the medium cohort projections with a minimum level of improvement of 1% per annum.
Following the release of the CMI? projections model (“the CMI model”), the ‘cohort’ projections
are now outdated.

Future trends in longevity are highly uncertain, but the custom and practice in recent years has
been to assume that lifespans will continue to lengthen, although there has been considerable
variation in how fast and how long this improvement is expected to last.

There are 3 key considerations to make when setting the future longevity improvement
assumption:

2 Continuous Mortality Investigation, which is supported and funded by the Actuarial Profession

Briefing Note 03



Page 54 HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON

2013 valuation assumptions

1 Short term rate of improvements
The first step is to consider if the rate of improvements has ‘peaked’ or will continue to rise
before peaking in the future (‘non-peaked)’. Assuming that the rate of improvements has
‘peaked’ still means that life expectancy will continue to improve, but that it will do so at a
lower rate than it is currently. A ‘non-peaked’ assumption is more prudent (i.e. results in
higher liabilities) than a ‘peaked’ assumption.

2 Long term rate of improvements
The second step to consider is the long term assumed rate of improvements. Over the
last 100 years, life expectancy has increased at the rate of 0.7 years per decade (for
men), but over the last 10 years has increased at the rate of 2.4 years per decade.

The key question here is - what is the likely impact of medical science and individual
behaviour on future longevity? The higher the long term rate, the more prudent the
assumption.

3 Improvements for the ‘oldest old’
The third step to consider is the likely rate of improvements for the eldest in our society.
Will the over 90s continue to experience the same improvements in life expectancy they
have enjoyed prior to this? Credible historical evidence on the historic rates of
improvement for this age group is hard to come by.

We have previously advocated a long-term approach to funding for longevity improvements in
assessing the cash contributions that we recommend are paid by local authorities. We still feel
that a “wait and see” approach is most appropriate as:

e The longevity risk faced by funds is mitigated in part by the link between Normal Retirement
Age to State Pension Age for future service benefits (which in turn, is expected to increase in
the future in line with increases in life expectancy);

e The LGPS ‘employer cost cap’ is expected to include longevity as a cost control mechanism,
thus mitigating the impact of future longevity improvements; and

e Local authority funds have a long term time horizon over which to fund improvements in
longevity if they emerge.

Bearing the above in mind, our recommended assumption for the future rate of longevity
improvements is as follows;

° The current rate of improvements has reached a peak.
° Long term rate of 1.25% p.a. (or around 1 year per decade).
° Longevity improvements for the over 90s will decline.

The net effect of these changes will be to increase the past service liabilities of a typical LGPS
fund by circa 2% to 3%.

We will continue to review the appropriateness of this assumption at future valuations.

As part of the 2013 valuation calculations we will calculate the value of past service liabilities and
employer contributions on two possible models for longevity improvements, as well as pure
baseline longevity, so that you can ‘stress test’ the impact of future experience on employer
contributions. The first model is as described above. The second model for future
improvements, which we will term ‘further improvements’, assumes that the current rate of
improvements has not yet reached a peak.

Briefing Note 04



Page 55 HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON

2013 valuation assumptions

Retirement demographics

Assumptions such as the rate at which members are assumed to leave local government
employment with a deferred pension and the assumed incidence of ill-health early retirements
affect the assessed cost of benefits accrued to date (“past service liabilities”) and the cost of
benefits accrued in future (“future service rate”).

The starting point for our 2013 valuation assumptions was to analyse past experience over 2007
to 2010.

Withdrawals (excluding ill health)

When setting our withdrawal assumption at the 2010 valuation we allowed for the member’s age
and the period of past service to identify the likelihood of withdrawal (those with a lower service
are more likely to withdraw).

This should more accurately reflect the rate of withdrawals each year in your fund and therefore
place a more accurate value on the past service liabilities and the future service rate.

Our analysis of withdrawal experience confirms our belief that withdrawals are dependent on the
period of past service. We also observed fewer withdrawals over 2007 to 2010 than we would
expect from our 2010 assumption. We have made small adjustments to the likelihood of
withdrawals at each age so our assumption better reflects recent experience.

The rate of withdrawals will no longer have an impact of the future service rate calculated for
your scheme, which will be calculated on the CARE benefit basis at the 2013 valuation.

[l health early retirements

The 2010 valuation was the first to recognise the three tier ill health structure introduced from 1
April 2008. We set our ill health retirement assumption based on the limited information
available at that time and we can now evaluate this assumption based on actual ill health
retirements over 2008 to 2010.

The evidence from 2008 to 2010 shows that:

e There are fewer ill health retirements occurring than was assumed at the 2010 valuation;

e The ages at which members take ill health early retirement are generally increasing; and

e The split of total ill health retirements between each tier is broadly in line with what was
assumed in 2010.

We have made small adjustments to the ill health early retirement assumptions to reflect this
experience.

Retirement age (non ill health)
The retirement age for current active members is assumed to be:

e Rule of 85 for those born prior to 31 March 1960 and protected under current
regulations;

e 65 for all other members if they attain age 65 before 1 April 2022; otherwise

e State Pension Age.

Deferred members are assumed to retire at age 60 if they left active status before 1 April 2008,
otherwise, they are assumed to retire at age 62.

All members are assumed to work for a minimum of one year past the valuation date.

Briefing Note 05



Page 56 HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON

2013 valuation assumptions

50:50 option

From 1 April 2014, members can elect to pay half the standard level of contributions for half the
accrued benefit (i.e. an accrual rate of 1/98ths). This option will affect future service only (past
service is protected) and the employer’s cost will fall as a result of members choosing this
option.

As contribution rates are set once at each actuarial valuation, we need to make an assumption
about the likely incidence of members taking the 50:50 option. Accurately predicting take-up of
the 50:50 option will be challenging without any objective evidence. Forecasting the outcome
will be made more difficult still by the uncertain impact of auto-enrolment which has not yet been
implemented by most LGPS employers (members will be auto-enrolled and re-enrolled in the full
benefits scheme).

In evaluating the cost savings from pension reform, the Government Actuary’s Department
(GAD) assumed that 10% of scheme members will take up the 50:50 option. In the absence of
any other information, we believe this is a reasonable assumption to make. Therefore, our
standard assumption at the 2013 valuation will be to assume that 10% of members (uniformly
distributed across the age, service and salary range) will choose the 50:50 option.

This assumption will reduce employer future service costs by circa 0.5% to 0.8% of pay.

We will be able to further refine this assumption at future valuations, based on the evidence
gained from 1 April 2014.

Other demographic assumptions

Our assumption for pay growth has historically been split into general inflationary pay increases
and promotional pay growth. Our analysis shows no reason to change the level of assumed
promotional pay growth at the 2013 valuation.

At the 2013 valuation we propose no change to our proportions married assumption set in 2010.
Additionally, we have decided to keep our recommended commutation assumption constant for
this valuation at 50% of HMRC limits for service to 1 April 2008 and 75% of HMRC limits for
service from 1 April 2008.

Briefing Note 06



Page 57

HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON

2013 valuation assumptions

Impact

The following table shows the expected impact of our recommended 2013 valuation
assumptions (relative to our recommended 2010 assumptions) on both the funding level and
the future service contribution rate. The figures shown allow for changes to market conditions
since 31 March 2010 in addition to changes in our assumption setting approach and are that
expected for a typical LGPS fund.

Impact on
future
Impact on service
Assumption 31 March 2010 31 March 2013 past service S
b contribution
liabilities
rate
% of pay
Discount rate 6.1% 4.6% 128%-35% ©8%-10%
Long term pay growth 5.3% 4.3% $4%-6% $2%-3%
Pension increases 3.3% 2.5% 010%-15% $2%-3%
Longevity
Baseline Club Vita Club Vita Variable Variable
Future improvements Meodlum coh_ort CMI projections 12%-3% 11%-2%
(1% underpin)
Withdrawals 2010 2013 <1% No impact
lll health retirements 2010 2013 0<1% 0<1%
Promotional salary growth 2010 No change No impact No impact
Cash commutation 75% max 75% max No impact No impact
50:50 option take up n/a 10% No impact $0.5%-0.8%

We believe that the recommended 2013 valuation assumptions set out in this note will be
appropriate for the majority of LGPS funds. As ever, we welcome discussion on the suitability
of these assumptions and your usual Hymans contact will be happy to consider deviation from
the recommended assumptions where this is appropriate for your Fund. Please get in touch
with your usual contact at Hymans if you have any questions.

London | Birmingham | Glasgow | Edinburgh T 020 7082 6000 | www.hymans.co.uk | www.clubvita.co.uk
RO B ERTSON This communication has been compiled by Hymans Robertson LLP, and is based upon their understanding of legislation and events as at [date] 2012. It is designed to be a general information summary and may be subject to

change. It is not a definitive analysis of the subject covered or specific to the circumstances of any particular employer, pension scheme or individual. The information contained is not intended to constitute advice, and

should not be considered a substitute for specific advice in relation to individual circumstances. Where the subject of this document involves legal issues you may wish to take legal advice. Hymans Robertson LLP accepts no

liability for errors or omissions or reliance on any statement or opinion.
cLue

Hymans Robertson LLP and Hymans Robertson Financial Services LLP (registered in England and Wales - One London Wall, London EC2Y 5EA - 0C310282 and OC310836 respectively) are authorised and regulated by the
Financial Services Authority. A member of Abelica Global. © Hymans Robertson LLP.



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53 Agenda ltem 7

Haringey
Iltem
Report for: Corporate Committee | number
26" November 2013
Title: Pension Fund Quarterly Update
Report authorised j
by‘:) "Pﬁ\/\/\?f 15 l ‘({ Y
Director of Corporate Resources
George Bruce, Head of Finance — Treasury & Pensions
Lead Officer: george.bruce@haringey.gov.uk
020 8489 3726
Ward(s) affected: N/A Repbrt for Non Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 To report the following in respect of the three months to 30th September
2013:

¢ Investment asset allocation
Investment performance
Responsible investment activity
Budget management

Late payment of contributions
Communications

2. Cabinet Member Introduction
2.1 Not applicable.
3. Recommendations

3.1 That the information provided in respect of the activity in the three months to
30™ September 2013 is noted.

4. Other options considered

4.1 None.

Page 1 of 13



Haringey

Page 60

5. Background information

5.1

5.2

5.3

This report is produced on a quarterly basis to update the Committee on a
number of Pension Fund issues. The Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations require the Committee to review investment performance on a
quarterly basis and sections 13 and 14 provide the information for this.
Appendix 1 shows the targets which have been agreed with the fund
managers.

The Pension Fund has a responsible investment policy and section 15 of this
report monitors action taken in line with it. The remainder of the report
covers various issues on which the Committee or its predecessor body have
requested they receive regular updates.

Following the request at the Committee’s meeting in September 2012,
information on communication with stakeholders has been provided by
officers in Human Resources and included in section 18.

6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications

6.1

The investment performance figures in section 14 show the impact of the
introduction of passive fund managers in that generally the variance from
target has reduced. The continuing negative performance over five years
reflects the underperformance of the previous active managers which is likely
to continue to show for the next few years. The quarterly performance is very
close to target.

7. Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications

7.1

7.2

7.3

Page 2 of 13

The Council as administering authority for the Haringey Pension Fund
(“Fund”) has an obligation to keep the performance of its investment
managers under review. In this respect the Council must, at least every three
months review the investments made by investment managers for the Fund
and any other actions taken by them in relation to it;

Periodically the Council must consider whether or not to retain the
investment managers. In particular members should note the continuing
negative performance and the reason stated in this report as to why this is
the case;

In carrying out its review proper advice must be obtained about the variety of
investments that have been made and the suitability and types of investment;



Page 61

Haringey
7.4 All monies must be invested in accordance with the Council’s investment
policy and members of the Committee should keep this duty in mind when
considering this report and have regard to advice given to them.

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1 There are no equalities issues arising from this report.

9. Head of Procurement Comments

9.1 Not applicable

10. Policy Implications

10.1 None.

11. Use of Appendices

11.1 Appendix 1: Investment Managers’ mandates, benchmarks and targets.
12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

12.1 Not applicable

Page 3 of 13



Page 62

£T o p abed

-Kemuspun si eapiwwo) ajelodio) Jaquisidas auy 1e paaibe oljojuod Aunba ayy jo burouejegas e gN

00 0°00F |000L |€LE'098 |SEL'C Goe‘'9e | 2Se'9S | 8e9'vve | €82'02S Iviol
80 00 80 6669 Gel'e 44 gli'e |0 2 yseo
(o 0'S (187 9GL've |0 9SL‘ve 0 0 Aunb3 a1eAlLd
(2°€) oot €9 6eecvs |0 0 6eC'vs |0 Apedoid
ey oSk |8€l ISO'6LL | O 0 0 ez'ee 028'G6 SHID payul) Xapu|
0 oL - [goL  |o9s'e8 |, i 0 99668 .
(1-0) 0¥ 6€ vie'ee |0 0 0 ¥82'9l 0€0°LI selyinb3 ueder xa oyoed
L0 Ly 8y LS |0 0 0 6YL'ee aev's selynb3 assueder
el 9'8 6'6 GoL'¥8 |0 0 0 290'0v eVY9'vv selynb3 ueadoin3
(20 £'Ge ogve |688‘Lle |0 0 0 Zvl'6l JAANA]! seljinb3 eouswy YUON
6'¢ gLl |¥le |eer'v8l [0 0 0 v02'ee 612’29l sennb3a MN
% % S0003 | S0003 S0003 | s0003 | s0003 S0003
Me| pun4g |eiauar)
aoueleAp | youag | JO0 % felol asnoy-uj | uoayjued | 3490 » [eba] | yooyoelg

€10¢ Jequaydes ,0¢ e sbuipjoH pund

L'EL

ajepdn uswWiSaAU| ‘€|

KobBuuiey




Haringey

Page 63

14. Investment Performance Update: to 30" September 2013

Appendix 1 provides details of the benchmarks and targets the fund managers
have been set. The tables below show the performance in the quarter July to
September 2013.

14.1 Whole Fund

Return Benchmark | (Under)/Out
July-Sept 2013 1.70% 1.82% (0.12%)
One Year 14.36% 14.97% (0.61%)
Three Years 8.57% 8.98% (0.41%)
Five Years 9.01% 9.69% (0.68%)

* Performance in the quarter was very close to target. Underperformance
over longer periods is driven by private equity and property.

* The negative three and five year returns are carried forward from previous
manager structures.

14.2 BlackRock Investment Management

Return Benchmark Variance
July-Sept 2013 2.28% 2.03% 0.25%
One Year 16.98% 16.81% 0.17%

e Total Value at 30/09/13: £520.3 million

¢ BlackRock manages equities and index linked passively.

* At asset class level, Blackrock’s returns are either in line with or in excess of the
benchmark.

14.3 Legal & General Investment Management

Return Benchmark Variance
July - Sept 1.22% 1.04% 0.18%
2013
One Year 11.92% 12.69% (0.77%)

e Total Value at 30/09/13: £244.6 million

o At investment level, L&G is able to add value over index benchmarks
through timing transactions. The underperformance over one year is due
to their portfolio being out of alignment with the benchmark. Rebalancing
has been undertaken since the quarter end.

Page 5 of 13



Page 64

Haringey
14.4 CBRE Global Investors
Return Benchmark | (Under)/Out
July - Sept 1.42% 2.40% (0.98%)
2013
One Year 4.41% 5.39% (0.98%)
Three Years 3.66% 5.22% (1.56%)
Five Years (0.03%) 1.76% (1.79%)

e Total Value at 30/09/13: £56.4

e For both the quarter and year, CBRE have underperformed their benchmark by
1%. The target is to out perform by 1% p.a.

¢ Recently, the UK portfolio has exceeded benchmark, but the overall portfolio
has suffered from exposure to ltalian and German funds.

14.5 Pantheon

Return Distributions | Drawdowns %
in period in period drawndown
July — Sept (2.52%) £0.32m nil
2013
One Year 11.71% £3.88m £3.68m
Since inception 3.81% £5.37m £31.09m 66.6%

e Total Value at 30/09/13: £36.3

¢ Distributions exceeded drawdowns during the quarter as the funds moved into
the distribution phase of their cycles.

e The performance target is the MCSI Worlds plus 5.75%, which for 12 months is
27.25% and 5 years 14.25%. Actual returns for five years net of fees is 6.6%.
The funds are still relatively young for a true picture of long term returns to
emerge. The performance benchmark (MSCI plus 5% net of fees) is
challenging.

14.6 In house cash

Value Average Average Return

Credit Rating | Maturity (days)
At 30/09/13 £2.73m AAA 1 0.33%
At 30/06/13 £3.18m AAA 1 0.33%
At 31/03/12 £5.51m AAA 1 0.31%
At 31/12/12 £5.08m AAA 1 0.37%

Page 6 of 13



Page 65

€1 Jo 7 abed

Japjoyaleys buipsebas syjuswabebug
9A1109]109 uo dnour) Buplopn
J0]1SaAU| 3y} Yum suoissnasiq

"SONSs| 9ourUIBAOD
a1e10d109 Buipsebal xo4 Ainjusn
skg/ d10D smeN yum yuswebebug

‘030 #8y)

Buroelda. 0} piebas yum POSoIOIA Yum
PIoy a19m Syjje} uoissao9ns Jejwis ‘030
mau J1ay} Jo Juswiulodde ay) puiyeq
$88204d UOISSB0INS BY) pue)SIopuUN

01 lI8ys yoIng [eAoy 8y yum jow 93

"99IWIWOD Jpne 8y} jo uoiyisodwos

8y} pue 3iom ay} Jo aouenodul

3y} pue sassao0.d Jipne jo ssuepodwi ay)
UO MBIA SI0)JSBAUI 8y} uo Awapedy apiojeq
8y} Aq paiosuods ,Jusas woolpleog

9y} ul 80Ud||99X3, 3y} Je axods yoonjorlg

$9Nss| uoljesaunway / 8dUBUIBAOD) 2°G|

44dv1

[eJouar) B jebo]

joowoelg

"sjue|d Jamod mau 1o} (Yd3)

Aouaby uonosejold [ejuswiuoiAug
8y} Agq pasodo.d spiepueys uonnjjod
uogted poddns 0} eweqQ Moeleg
spIsald SN 03 8j0im Ajusoai jeyy
S]8sse Ul Uqp06$ UNM SI0)SaAul 0G
1sowse Jo dnoJb e Jo auo sem {44V

"'SUOYD

Anliqeureisns Jisy) uo Ajpeoiq aiow

SE ||om se s}ebie) Juswabeuew Jojem
Jisy} uo Buissnooy Ajjeoyioads ojur|

ol yum Ajsaisusixe pabebus aney Asy|

"S8WI} £g SONSS| |BI00S pue sau)
€| P8JOA0D 219M SONSS] [BJUSLIUOIIAUD
yoiym 1e sbunssw Auedwos

28 papuaye O ¥  Japenb sy uj

"suoljelado buroely
Injssaoons uj Aejd eouspuadap Jojem jey)
sobuajreyo Asy sy} pue ssaooid Bupjoeyy
8y} u Buisn s[eojwayo Jo aInso|osip
8y} bunowoud ul ypom s, Auedwons ay)
SBM 8]ou Jeinoiped JO “siejew 9oueuIsnob
8jelodioo [eseusb pue ‘Buipoda.
Auiqeurelsns ‘sbueyo ayewn|o feqojb
‘Aojod sybu uewny jeqo)6 s,Auedwos sy
‘uoilonpoid seb @ |10 [euonusAuOSUN pue
(Bunjoely) seb sjeys Joj Buunyoe.y olNeIPAY
PapN|oul siy| ‘senss| aoueuIdnob pue jeioos
‘|eJUSWILOAIAUS SNOLIBA SSNasIp 0] Auedwioo
ABiaua [eqolb ‘abrel B yum 18W Mo0NOR|g

S9NSS| [ejudWIUOIIAUT LG

d4dv1

Jeisusn) » |eba]

3ooyyoelg

€10¢ Jequiedas ,0€ PapUS SYUOW 831y} 3U} Ul AJIATOY JUsWISeAU| a|qisuodsay ‘G

Kabuuiey

— e

X




Page 66

€1 Jo g 3bed

Juswabebus

“aouspuadapul Ji8y} O} SE SUIadU09d O}
anp SJ0108JIp PJeOq/SI0J0BIIP SAIINOIXD
uoU JO UOH09|8 Jsuiebe pajon-SewalsIS

BIPU| ' JUOWBYDIY ‘09)SOAU|

‘sispjoya.teys wus) 6uoj Jo sisaisul
yum paubie Buieq jou ueld diysisumQ
9afojdwz yum swieduod o} anp podal

uoljelaunwal jsuiebe paloA -Bjuepep
‘2Inoni)s
SY Ul Juswae JaldiyNW YIm sulaouod

0} anp uejd aJeys souewopad ayl

Jo Juswpuawe ay) Jsuiebe pajoA-D1g

zJapenb ul sa]0A Aoy

-diysioumo ayeaud

ojul yoeq |j1oq buniey 0} prebas yum
sJopjoyaseys Buisoddo om} pue ||8Q
[oBYDIN Yyum aoed »00) suoissnosiq

"passnosip aJam awweiboid Buimolq
9[ISIym pue yJomawelj soueldwod
pue Jpne s,Auedwod ay} yoiym

1e SyD Joj sepiwwo) Ayjiqisuodsey
[e100g a1ei0dio) ay} Jo uewiey) mau
ay] yum aoeid ooy Hunssw Jayunj v

10dag @ouJO @y} OJUO SI0}0d.Ip JUSPISSIP
Jnoj Jo uoneuiwou s, sy ul Auedwod ay)

JO Jop|oyaieys Jofew e 4] anjeA pJeoqiels
poddns 0] pajon Moonoejg— jodaq 99110

‘ss9004d sajes ybnoioy} S,8911WWOD pJeoq
Juspuadapul 8y} pue ajeuoljel s ,pjeoq

8y} ‘sispjoyaJleys 0} pasayo Buieq wniwaid
yseo ay} 0} anp S)saIdlul 1seq siepjoysieys
ay) Ul 8q p|NOM SIY} 1By} Sem M3IA

s joonoelg ‘Auedwod o1gnd e se ajnoaxs
0] JN2IYIP 89 pInom siy} 1eyy buinbie sem
lleq 1eeyoI “Auedwoo aointes asudiajus

ue 0] wiojsuel} 0} Builu) a1058194)

si Auedwod sy} “yexuew buindwoo jeuosiad
ay} ui auloap ay} Aq pajoedwi Ajo1anes
ssauisng s,jjoq ‘ayeaud Auedwod aye)

0} PIq JO JNOAEJ U| PaJOA Yo0.qoe|g— U] ||I8d

zJapenb ul S810A Aa)]

-aoe|d Ul ybisiano/aouspuadspul jo

SjoAs| 8y} pue saonoeid uolessunwais s0od
spJeoq 8y} jo uonisodwod ay)} Uo pasusd
Jopenb ay) ui Juswaebeuew jsuiebe Hunoa
10} SewWay] ulew ay| "suoisesdo QgL L JeA0
UO PaJOoA Yoonor|g Salepuew Yjog SSoIoy

44dV1

[eJsusr) ¥ [eba

3oouxoe|g

Kobuiiey

3

m—

X




Page 67

£T Jo 6 @bed

"sjonddns pajeoipap a|buis asn 0)

aJem saloljod 118y} 19A8MOY ‘Aingsures
pue 09S3] UM pjay osje ajom
suoissnosip apis Jaliddng "seuo}oe;) 1asn
-lnw ul ysepe|bueg ui painjoejnuew
aJe saylojo Yewld S se ‘sajoljod

apis Ja|ddns sy SSNIsIp 0} SPOO} ysiiig
pajeIoossy yim pjay asam sbunesiy

"uoljeloge||0o Aisnpui pue Juswabeuew
ureyo A|ddns ‘6uioinos ajqisuodseau

uo snooj rejnojped yum ‘sswwesfoud
aA10adsal J13y) JnOge alow ules)

01 s182046 pue si9ieIal HN Jo Jequinu

B yum 19w Asy) ‘pus Jey} 0] "10108S 199016
pue |iejal ay) ssoioe saooeld Ayjiqeurelsns

pue Ayjiqisuodsai ayei0diod ay)

puejsiapun o} Bujess ‘ seuas Juswabebus
dljeway] e yoouapun 3oonoe|g

Aanoe yuaswebebugz 810 £°'GL

44dV1 Jessuen @ [ebe doouoe|g
‘panosdde Ajgrewnyn
SEM uoljoesue.) siy} J9AOMOH “saiped
pajsalalul 18410 10} yosess ayenbapeul
pue 1910 YsSed YIM Sulaouod
0} anp siapjoyaieys woij Auedwod
8y} Anq 0} Joy0 sisupeRd 8)eT JOA|IS "aousliadxe pue SIS JIvY} Jo Ynsas e se
pue jjoQ [9eydIN isuiebe pajoa-ou| ||loQ | pleoq 8y} 0} anjeA ppe pjnom sjuswiuiodde
8] paJapisuod }oonoe|g: pJjeog
44dVv1 [elauap @ |eba Jjoouoelg

Kobupiey




Page 68

Haringey

16. Budget Management - six months to 30" September 2013

Prior Actual Variance
year (under)/
overspend
£'000 £'000 £'000
Contributions & Benefit related expenditure
Income
Employee Contributions 4,400 4,273 127
Employer Contributions 16,000 14,675 1,325
Transfer Values in 2,000 864 1,136
Total Income 22,400 19,812 2,588
Expenditure
Pensions & Benefits (20,000) | (20,351) 351
Transfer Values Paid (2,600) (632) (2,068)
Administrative Expenses (400) (291) (109
Total Expenditure (23,000) | (21,174) (1,826)
Net of Contributions & Benefits | 600)| (1,362) | 762
Returns on investment
Net Investment Income 1800 1,164 636
Investment Management Expenses (800) (857) (443)
Net Return on Investment 1000 807 193

Total 400 (5655) 955

Page 10 of 13



\ 104
5

Haringey

Page 69

17. Late Payment of Contributions

17.1 The table below provides details of the employers who have made late

payments during the last quarter.

Employer Occasions | Average Average
late Number of monthly

days late | contributions(£)

Fusion 1 4 19,600
TLC 1 4 4,183

18. Communication Policy

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

Two sets of regulations govern pension communications in the LGPS: The
Disclosure of Information Regulations 1996 (as amended) and Regulation 67
of the Local Government Pensions Scheme (Administration) Regulations
2008 as amended.

In March 2011, the Council approved the Pensions Administration Strategy
Statement (PASS). The PASS sets out time scales and procedures which are
compliant with the requirements of the Disclosure of Information Regulations.
The PASS is a framework within which the Council as the Administering
Authority for the Fund can work together with its employing bodies to ensure
that the necessary statutory requirements are being met.

In June 2008 the Council approved the Policy Statement on Communications
with scheme members and employing bodies. The Policy Statement
identifies the means by which the Council communicates with the Fund
members, the employing bodies, elected members, and other stakeholders.
These cover a wide range of activities which include meetings, workshops,
individual correspondence and use of the internet. In recent times, the
Pensions web page has been developed to provide a wide range of
employee guides, forms and policy documents. Where possible, Newsletters
and individual notices are sent by email to reduce printing and postage
costs.

The requirement to publish a Communications Policy Statement recognises
the importance that transparent effective communication has on the proper
management of the LGPS.

18.5 During the second quarter of 2013-14, the Pension Fund accounts and

Page 11 of 13

annual report for the year ended 315t March 2013 have been added to the
Pension fund web page. Guidance notes on the new Pension Fund scheme
to be introduced from 15t April 2014 have also been inserted on the web

page.



£T Jo Z1 dbed

%001 [elol

-N-Q gm
s99) Jo ss04B 9%G°0 + | snid xapuj pUom IDSIN Aunb3 sjeaud %S Aunb3 a1eAld uosyjued

Xopu| paoueleg

6
P o o oob o2 | 11y spuny Auedoig Auedoid %01 SI0}SOAU] [2GOID FHEO

Page 70

Pajood MN ddl
zQMH_VMwmwﬂv_Nﬁuc | Jeslien0 888 mm_ﬁw%%mn_u _mmMo_G %€6c JuswsaAU| _Ewmwmm%_mh%m_\.,_d
z%%%ﬂﬁﬁuc_ JE8|ISN0 993 wm_w.w%%% _mmwo_o %L'SS EmE#woﬁ__wﬁwm““M__m
10b.1e | @ouewWIOUad yewyouag ejepuep _M_._u..u_”_ﬂ% w_& labeuepy

sjebie} pue s)uewyoUsq ‘sejepuew siebeuepy JuswiseAu| — | xipuaddy

KabBuuepy

[,

e

K




Page 71

€7 Jo £1 abed

%0°G8 %E'62 %.°GS
X3pu| Slea A
%0°Gl %0°¢ %0°¢l G JOAQ pa)uI xapu| V.14 | SHID pa)ur] xapu|
pabpayun 4go sexsen
%50/ %50/ %00 Buibisw3 feqojn pUom 14 | siexen Buibiews
pabpayun 4go
%Lt %1LE %01 ueder padojersq PHOM 14 ueder
pabpayun 4go uedep
%0t %0¢C %0¢C X oioed padojereg poM 14 | ueder xe oyioed
pabpayun 4go MN
%98 %EY %EY X @doin3 padojaneq pliom 14 N x@ adoin3
pabpayun 4go eouswy
%Ee6C %8¢ %5°Le UUON padojara@ pHOM 14 BOLBWY YUON
%S"2S %.'€2 %882 seninb3 seasionQ
%G LI %9°C %6V 1 areys |Iv 3S14 salnb3 yN
juswabeuep Juswebeuepy
JUSWIISAAU| jJusuwiseAu|
[elol [eJauar) @ [eba] Yooroe|q }Jewyouag SSse|) Jossy

KoBuniey




Page 72



Page 73 Agenda Item 8

. : ltem
Report for: Corporate Committee Nimber:
Title: Local Government Pension Scheme IT system — contract renewal
Report

Authorised by:

Jacquie McGeachie - Interim Head of Hu

Wesources d
Organisational Development N ,.,L
(1

Lead Officer:

Janet Richards Pensions Manager

N
SHCC

.

Ward(s) affected: None

Report for Key/Non Key Decisions:

Non Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1.  In order to carry out its functions as an administering Authority under the
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), the Council uses an IT system
called Axise supplied by an external IT contractor called Heywood.

1.2.  On 1 April 2014, there are significant changes taking place to the LGPS as
it moves from a final salary pension scheme to a career average scheme.
Furthermore, support from Heywood for the existing IT system will expire on
31% December 2014.

1.3. This report proposes that the Council enters into a contract with Heywood
for a new IT system without first undertaking a procurement exercise. The
recommendation is made considering value for money and security of

supply.

2. Cabinet Member introduction

Not applicable



Page 74

3. Recommendations

3.1

That the Corporate Committee award a contract for a period of three years
with the option to extend for a further two years to Heywood for the
provision of a managed service, including support, maintenance, and
required upgrade.

4. Alternative options considered

4.1.

4.2,

4.3

4.4

It is essential that the Council continues to have a managed service for its
pensions administration function. Without such a system the administration
of the scheme would not be possible. This would include providing
members annual statements of benefits and ensuring that members receive
the correct benefit payments when they retire. The current system used by
the Council, Axise will not be supported by the supplier Heywood after 31%
December 2014 and therefore to continue using this system would carry
significant risks. Therefore the Council has no option but to move onto a
new system.

The Pension Administration System (Axise) is proprietary software from
Heywood and as such it is not possible to tender for just the existing
support and maintenance package of that system. On the contrary, any
tender would require that supply of a complete system is specified and
replaced if necessary.

To undertake such a tender requires a major investment in resource to
specify the Council’s requirements and to run and evaluate the tender. In
changing a system, the Council would need to procure new licenses, new
hardware, train all staff and run a parallel system to ensure confidence in
migration. This would in itself carry significant costs in both running a
procurement exercise as well as migrating onto a new system if an
alternative provider were sourced.

In view of the legislative changes to the provision of administering the
pension scheme, outlined in paragraph 5 below, it would not be in the
Council’s best interest to tender at this particular time

5. Background information

5.1.

The Council is an administering body under the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for approximately 20000 pension fund members including
Haringey Council employees, deferred pensioners and ex employees who
are in receipt of a pension under the LGPS.



5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

Page 75

The current contract was let in November 2009 for a managed service
whereby an external IT contractor called Heywood provides the system
hardware, perpetual licences and ongoing support of the system. The
performance of Heywood in providing a managed service for Axise has
been satisfactory over the course of the contract.

Following the Lord Hutton report on reform of public sector pension schemes,
the LGPS will be changing from a final salary pension scheme to a career
average pension scheme from 1 April 2014. Therefore, major changes are
required to the IT administration software to implement the changes, not
least because of the significant changes by which LGPS member’s final
benefits are calculated.

Furthermore, the current Axise system will not be supported by the
manufacturer after 31 December 2014. If the Council continues to use this
software beyond this date there is a significant business continuity risk that
it will not be able to administer the pension scheme on behalf of
approximately 13000 active and deferred fnembers and approximately 7000
pensioners. In addition, any future changes to the LGPS which are
inevitable (for example the annual pension payment uplift) would not be
able to be undertaken by the Axise system as Heywood will not be
providing software updates for the system. It will, therefore, be necessary to
migrate to the new software version, Altair. In addition to being compliant
with the new LGPS regulations, Altair provides greater functionality than
Axise including member self service. Altair will allow members of the LGPS
to update changes to their personal details, and view their pension
forecasts online.

It is, therefore, an opportune time to migrate to Altair, as this would minimise
the time invested by the Council in testing the new pension scheme.

There is a cost to the migration as set out in Annex A attached. Heywood
can accommodate such a move and have provided their quotation based on
a 3 year contract with an option of a further 2 years extension to maximise
the discounts available.

As Altair is proprietary software to Heywood they were requested to provide
terms for a contract for 3 + 2 years to follow on from the existing contract.
The added value of such a contact will be the ability for the Council to
continue to manage the administration of the pension fund and the projects
noted above, whilst continuing to manage pension administration
electronically. The negotiations were based on achieving value for money for
the Council, and taking account of system efficiencies outlined in paragraph
5.4 above.



5.8.

Page 76

Currently Heywood provides IT support for 85% of administration bodies
under the LGPS. In other words there are few, if any, comparator providers.
However, during the life of the proposed contract it is possible that the
position may change. Therefore, during the 3 years of this contract a full
market test will be carried out to ascertain the state of the market and, if
appropriate, a tendering process will take place in advance of any decision to
take up the option of the 2 year extension in the proposed contract.

6 Costs

The cost of migrating to the new Altair system based on a 3+2 year contract
would cost in 2013/2014 £229,758 (including one off license and
implementation costs) with an ongoing annual running cost of £103,670.

7 Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

The Chief Finance Officer has been consulted over the contents of the report
and confirms that the annual and one-off costs can legitimately be charged
against the pension fund.

The proposed costs of both the standard and fixed term contract are both
higher than the existing contract however, given that the current system will
fall out of life in December 14, coupled with the fact that the new system must
be compliant with the new LGPS regulations leave few options.

The report highlights that there is currently little competition in this field so
significant time and effort could be undertaken for potentially little realistic
chance of driving out further value.

It is expected that internal effort to migrate onto this new system can be
managed within existing resources.

Members will be aware that there is current interest around creating larger
pension schemes covering more than one authority. At this stage, there are
not clear decisions and it is unlikely that anything tangible will have been
concluded before the end of the proposed 3 year contract period. As such, it
appears that overall the benefits of a reduced annual fee and one-off costs
outweigh the disadvantages of being tied into a longer term contract.

8 Head of Legal Services and legal implications

8.1

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this
report, and makes the following comments.



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

Page 77

The services to which this report relates are priority services and, therefore,
are subject to the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 (the Regulations),
which includes requirements in respect of European tendering.

One of the approved tender processes set out in the Regulations, is the
negotiated procedure. Under Regulation 14(1)(a)(iii) of the Regulations, a
Contracting Authority may use the negotiated procedure without publication
of an OJEU notice where, for technical or artistic reasons, the contract may
only be awarded to a particular economic operator.

In addition, Contract Standing Orders (CSO) allow for the submission of a bid
from an individual contractor without following a tender process where the
services relate to a proprietary product, and, for technical or artistic reasons,
the contract may only be awarded to a particular contractor (CSO 9.01(f)).

The Assistant Chief Executive Directorate has followed this approach, and
invited a bid from Heywood for the Altair system.

Paragraph 3.083 of the CSO gives the Corporate Committee the same powers
and duties as given to the Cabinet under CSO when the matter relates to
“procurement decisions and award of contract relating to the Pension Fund”.

Under CSO, Cabinet has the authority to award contracts valued over
£250,000 and so as the contract is Pension Fund related, the Corporate
Committee may award this contract.

The Head of Legal Services confirms that there are no legal reasons
preventing Members from approving the recommendations in this report.

9 Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10 Head of Procurement Comments

The pensions system is proprietary software and as such it can only be
supported by the incumbent supplier, Heywoods and CSO 9.01(f) is used to
support the action taken under Regulation 14(1) (a) (iii) of the Public Contracts
Regulations 2006.

The market has been investigated and, as stated, is limited which means that a
tender exercise at this stage is unlikely to provide adequate comparison and
competition for an incumbent supplier especially considering potential switching
costs. There is a clear need to upgrade the existing versions and to undertake
developments to support the Regulatory changes.



Page 78

It is therefore in the Council’s overall best interests to agree a contract with
Heywoods for a three year period, with option to extend for two years, to secure
support for the Regulatory changes and the new software version.

11 Policy Implication
12 Reasons for Decision
13 Use of Appendices

14 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

This report contains exempt and non-exempt information. Exempt information
is contained in Part B and is not for publication. The information is exempt

under the following category (identified in the amended Schedule 12 A of the
Local Government Act 1972).

information relating to financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information)



Page 79 Agenda ltem 9

X

e

Haringey
Item
Report for: Corporate Committee | number
26" November 2013
Title: Treasury Management September 2013 quarterly

Activity & Performance update

E;;:)ort authorised :I _p oy 15 l (« I (3.

Director of Corporate Resources

George Bruce, Head of Finance - Treasury & Pensions
Lead Officer: George.bruce@haringey.gov.uk

020 8489 3726
Ward(s) affected: N/A Report for Non Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 This report updates the Committee on the Council’'s treasury
management activities and performance in the quarter to 30"
September 2013.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 Not applicable.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That members note the Treasury Management activity undertaken
during the quarter to 30" September 2013 and the performance
achieved.

4. Other options considered

4.1 None.

Page 1 of 10



Page 80

Haringey

5. Background information

5.1

5.2

5.3

The Council approved the Treasury Management Strategy Statement
for 2013/14 on 27" February 2013. The Corporate Committee is
responsible for monitoring treasury management activity and this is
achieved through the receipt of quarterly reports. This report forms
the 2" quarterly monitoring report for 2013/14.

Government guidance on local authority treasury management states
that local authorities should consider the following factors in the order
they are stated:

Security - Liquidity - Yield

The Treasury Management Strategy reflects these factors and is
explicit that the priority for the Council is the security of its funds.

The quarterly reports during 2013/14 are structured to cover
borrowing first and then investments according to these factors, so
that members can see how they are being addressed operationally.

6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and financial implications

6.1

Interest rates remain low and so the strategy of minimising cash
balances is continuing in 2013-14. Borrowing is being taken only
when required and the majority of the loans have been taken from
other local authorities at very low rates on short term bases. However
longer term interest rates continue to be carefully monitored. The
ability to take advantage of low interest rates in this way has resulted
in anticipated saving on the treasury management budget.

7. Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications

71

Page 2 of 10

The contents and recommendation of this report are in accordance
the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and consistent with
legislation governing the financial affairs of the Council. Members
should note the shortfall mentioned in paragraph 13.3. In considering
the report Members must take into account the expert financial advice
available to it and any further oral advice given at the meeting of the
Committee.



Page 81

X

-4* -

>

Haringey
8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1 There are no equalities issues arising from this report.
9. Head of Procurement Comments

9.1 Not applicable.

10. Policy Implications

10.1 None applicable.

11. Use of Appendices

11.1 Appendix 1: Summary of Treasury Management activity of performance
Appendix 2: Prudential Indicators

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
12.1 Not applicable.
13. Treasury Management Activity and Performance: Borrowing

13.1 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement places a high
emphasis on security of the Council’s funds. One of the ways to do
this is to minimise the funds held which need to be invested. This is
where the borrowing and investment strategies interact.

13.2 During the financial year to date officers have been managing cash
balances to keep them to a minimum and only borrowing externally
when it is required to meet the Council’s obligations. Since 1%t April
no new loans have been taken and debt of £41.0 million repaid, of
which £30 million is short term local authority loans and £11 million is
maturing PWLB debt.

13.3 The cashflow forecast is showing a likely shortfall in Q1, 2014 of the
order of £20 million. In order to address this, the current intention is
to fund via short term local authority borrowing for around six months.
The rates payable should be around 0.4%.

14, Treasury Management Activity and Performance: Security
14.1 The Council has sought to minimise its security risk by setting limits

on each institution on the lending list. The Council has complied with
all these limits during the financial year to date.

Page 3 of 10



X

e

/?

Haringey

Page 82

14.2 The economic environment remains uncertain, and given this
background, the Council has kept cash investments to a minimum
and short term. Money Market Funds continue to be used extensively
as the portfolios are spread across a range of underlying investments,
which diversifies risk. They also provide instant access enabling
officers to take action quickly if there are any concerns about
creditworthiness. The majority of the remainder of the Council’s
investments are with the government guaranteed Debt Management
Office, with a small balance at NatWest.

14.3 The deposits continue to be spread across the available money
market funds to further minimise security risk. The table below shows

the Council’s deposits on 30" September 2013.

These include

pension fund balances of £2.5 million, but exclude Icelandic balances,

see paragraph 17.

Institution Long Term Amount % of
Credit Rating (Em) total

deposits

Debt Management Office AA+* 15.74 36.3
BlackRock MMF AAA 5.13 11.8
Deutsche MMF AAA 4.04 9.3
Goldman Sachs MMF AAA 4.37 10.1
Invesco MMF AAA 2.06 4.7
JP Morgan MMF AAA 3.17 7.3
RBS MMF AAA 4.10 9.4
NatWest SIBA A- 4.80 11.1
Total 43.41 100.0

* The Debt Management Office does not have a crediit rating, so the

UK Government rating is used as a proxy.

14.4 Arlingclose, the Council’s treasury management advisers, has a way
of scoring the level of credit risk the Council is taking. This measure
scores credit risk on a scale of 0 to 10 on both a value weighted and a
time weighted basis and the table below demonstrates how to

interpret the scores:

Above target AAA to AA+ Score 0 - 2
Target score AA to A+ Score3-5
Below target Below A+ Score over 5

14.5 The scores for the latest quarter are shown below alongside the
previous three quarters for comparison:

Page 4 of 10




Page 83

Haringey
December March June | September
2013 2013 2013 2013
Value weighted 24 2.5 3.3 3.50
Time weighted | _ 1.9 2.9 1.9 2.1

14.6 The scores have increased this quarter due to a higher proportion
invested in money market funds. This represents an average credit
rating of between AA and AA-.

15. Treasury Management Activity and Performance: Liquidity

15.1 Once the Council is satisfied that security risk is being managed, the
next consideration in treasury management is liquidity. The Council
has a number of inflows and outflows every month and it is important
that the Council’s funds are managed to ensure there is sufficient
liquidity when it is required. This is achieved through cashflow
forecasting and monitoring.

15.2 With cash balances relatively low and projected to turn negative in Q1,
2014, investments have been kept short term with only DMO trades
being longer than overnight as can be seen from the table below.

156.3 The table below shows the Council’s deposits at 30" September
2013, the term of each of the deposits and it also shows the
calculated weighted average maturity of the portfolio.

Institution Term of Amount (£m)
deposit (days)

Deutsche 1 4,035,000
Goldman Sachs 1 4,370,000
JP Morgan 1 3,165,000
RBS 1 4,105,000
BlackRock — sterling 1 4,390,000
BlackRock — Gov 1 740,000
Invesco 1 2,060,000
DMO 7 5,000,000
DMO 14 7,240,000
DMO 14 1,850,000
DMO 2 1,650,000
NatWest SIBA 1 4,800,000
Average maturity

(days)/Total Value 4.45 43,405,000

Page 5 of 10



X)

-*-—

>

Haringey

16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

17.

17.1

18.

18.1

Page 6 of 10

Page 84

Treasury Management Activity and Performance: Yield

Only once security and liquidity have been considered and the Council
is satisfied it has taken all steps to minimise these risks, should yield
be a factor. Base rate has remained at 0.5% throughout the financial
year to date and the Council’'s treasury management adviser,
Arlingclose, is forecasting that it will remain at this rate until at least
the end of 2016.

The interest rates which money market funds are paying have reduced
to between 0.30% and 0.40%. The Debt Management Office
continues to pay 0.25% on all deposits regardless of the period of
investment. The call account with NatWest earns 0.5% p.a. Longer
maturities are paying rates that in absolute terms are not significantly
higher e.g. 0.75% to 1% for 12 months deposits. Quarterly earnings
on the portfolio are averaging approximately £40,000 at an average
rate of 0.32%.

The interest payable on borrowing for 2013-14 is currently projected
at £18.0 million (HRA £12.0 million and General Fund £6.0 million).
The projections prior to the start of the year were total interest of
£19.7 million (HRA £13.2 million and General Fund £6.5 million). The
savings arise from less borrowing being required than was originally
anticipated and prior year borrowing being of short maturities.

The average rate payable on the borrowing portfolio is currently
5.44%.

icelandic Banks Update

The distributions received from the Icelandic banks now total £28.4m
out of the original £36.9m invested, which is 77%. Final recovery
rates of 100% for Glitnir, 98% for Landsbanki and 95% for Heritable
are expected.

Prudential Indicators

The Council set prudential indicators for 2013/14 in February 2013.
The set of indicators is made up of those which provided an indication
of the likely impact of the planned capital programme and those which
are limits set on treasury management activity. Appendix 2 sets out
the original indicators, the current forecast for each of the capital
indicators and the current position on each of the treasury
management limits.



Page 85

Haringey
18.2 None of the limits on treasury management have been breached in the
year to date. Borrowing is well within the operational and authorised
limits set due to the continued policy of using internal cash balances
to fund the capital programme.

Page 7 of 10



Haringey

Page

Page 86

Appendix 1: Summary of Treasury Management Activity & Performance

Treasury Portfolio

Position at Position at
March | September
2013 2013
£000 £000
Long Term Borrowing PWLB 206,702 195,715
Long Term Borrowing Market 125,000 125,000
Short Term Borrowing 30,000 0
Total Borrowing 361,702 320,715
Investments: Council 14,195 40,960
Investments: Icelandic deposits in default 12,455 8,331
Total Investments 26,650 49,291
Net Borrowing position 335,052 271,424
Security measure
March September
2013 2013
Credit score — Value weighted 2.5 3.50
Credit score — Time weighted 2.9 2.11
Liquidity measure
March September
2013 2013
Weighted average maturity — deposits (days) 4.0 4.5
Weighted average maturity — borrowing 077 9.1

(years)

The repayment of short term local authority borrowing has increased the

average maturity.

Yield measure

March September

2013 2013
Interest rate earned 0.31% 0.32%
Interest rate payable 5.38% 5.44%

80of 10




Page 87

Haringey

Appendix 2: Prudential Indicators

No. | Prudential Indicator 2013/14 2013/14
Original | Position/Forecast
Indicator Sept 2013
CAPITAL INDICATORS
1 Capital Expenditure £k £k
General Fund 47,811 46,000
HRA 34,202 32,000
TOTAL 82,013 78,000
2 | Ratio of financing costs to net % %
revenue stream
General Fund 2.62 2.62
HRA 12.94 12.94
3 Capital Financing Requirement £k £k
General Fund 277,726 250,000
HRA 271,096 270,000
TOTAL 548,822 520,000
4 Incremental impact of capital £ £
investment decisions
Band D Council Tax 8.77 8.77
Weekly Housing rents 0.13 0.13

Page 9 of 10



g

Page 88

Haringey
No. Prudential Indicator 2013/14 Position /
Original forecast Sept.
Indicator 2013

5 | Borrowing Limits £k £k
Authorised Limit / actual debt 671,293 320,715
Operational Boundary/actual debt 537,280 320,715

6 | HRA Debt Cap £k £k
Headroom 55,824 55,824

7 | Gross debt compared to CFR £k £k
Gross debt 393,972 N/A
CFR 548,822 N/A

8 | Upper limit - fixed rate exposure 100% 98%
Upper limit - variable rate 40% 2%

9 | Maturity structure of borrowing L U
(U: upper, L: lower)
under 12 months 0% | 40% 12.6%
12 months & within 2 years 0% | 35% 3.7%
2 years & within 5 years 0% | 35% 10.7%
5 years & within 10 years 0% | 35% 11.4%
10 yrs & within 20 yrs 0% | 35% 5.3%
20 yrs & within 30 yrs 0% | 35% 3.4%
30 yrs & within 40 yrs 0% | 35% 4.5%
40 yrs & within 50 yrs 0% | 50% 27.1%
50 yrs & above 0% 50% 21.3%

10 | Sums invested for > 364 days £0 £0
11 | Adoption of CIPFA Treasury v Vv

Management Code of Practice

Page 10 of 10




Page 89 Agenda ltem 10

Haringey
Item
Report for: Corporate Committee | number
26" November 2013
Title: Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2014/15 -
2016/17

Report authorised - sta,~ 15 [u[(g

by :
Director of Corporate Resources

George Bruce, Head of Finance - Treasury & Pensions
Lead Officer: George.bruce@haringey.gov.uk
020 8489 3726

Ward(s) affected: N/A Report for Non Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 To present the proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement
for 2014/15 to 2016/17 to this Committee prior to it being scrutinised
by Overview & Scrutiny Committee, represented to Corporate
Committee in January 2014 and finally to full Council in February 2014
for final approval. Prudential Indicators will be included in the January
2014 update.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 Not applicable.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement for
2014/15 to 2016/17 be agreed and approved for release to Overview
and Scrutiny Committee before being represented to Corporate

Committee, subject to updating to reflect the agreed -capital
programme.

Page 1 of 5



Haringey

Page 90

4. Other options considered

4.1

None.

5. Background information

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

The CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice requires all local
authorities to agree a Treasury Management Strategy Statement
including an Investment Strategy annually in advance of the financial
year. The strategy should incorporate the setting of the Council’s
prudential indicators for the three forthcoming financial years.

The CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice requires that the
Treasury Management Strategy Statement is formulated by the
Committee responsible for the monitoring of treasury management, is
then subject to scrutiny before being approved by full Council.
Corporate Committee is responsible for formulating the Treasury
Management Strategy Statement for recommendation to full Council
through Overview and Scrutiny Committee and in consultation with
the Cabinet Member for Finance, Employment and Carbon Reduction.

In previous years the Treasury Management Strategy Statement has
been presented to Corporate Committee in January before being
considered by Overview and Scrutiny Committee a few days later.
However due to the timing of meetings in January 2014, it has
become necessary for the Committee to consider the strategy early.
The proposed capital programme for future years is not yet ready and
so it has not been possible to include debt, investment and prudential
indicator projections.

The figures and the proposed prudential indicators will be updated
once the capital programme is approved by Cabinet in December, so
that they accurately reflect the Council’s plans. This report with the
updated figures will then be presented to this Committee and
Overview & Scrutiny Committee in January before the strategy is
presented to full Council for final approval in February. It is proposed
to provide training on treasury issues prior to the January Corporate
Committee meeting.

6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications

6.1

Page 2 of 5

The approval of a Treasury Management Strategy Statement and
prudential indicators are requirements of the CIPFA Treasury
Management Code of Practice and CIPFA Prudential Code. The
proposed strategy of minimising borrowing and continuing to make



Haringey

6.2

Page 91

use of internal balances not only minimises costs, but also reduces
the credit risk associated with investments, as the amount being
invested is low.

New borrowing will still be required during 2014/15 due to planned
maturities, and it is proposed that the cost of refinancing be
minimised by borrowing short term from local authorities to maintain
liquidity and taking opportunities to fix borrowing rates from the PWLB
as they arise.

7. Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications

74

7.2

7.3

The Council must make arrangements for the proper administration of
its financial affairs and its power of borrowing is set out in legislations.
In addition further changes were introduced to the way the Housing
Revenue Account is dealt with as a result of the Localism Act 2011.
The level of HRA Capital Financing Requirement must remain within

the debt cap set by the Department of Communities and Local
Government.

The Council is required to determine and keep under review its
borrowing and in complying with this requirement it must have regard
to the code of practice entitled the “Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities” as published by CIPFA from time to time.
In addition, the Council adopted the CIPFA Treasury Management
Code of Practice in May 2002.

As mentioned in this report the Code of Practice requires the Council
to agree a Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS)
(including an Investment Strategy). In considering the report Members
must take into account the expert financial advice available within it
and any further oral advice given at the meeting of the Committee. In
particular, members should note the need for short term borrowing.

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1 There are no equalities issues arising from this report.

9. Head of Procurement Comments

9.1

Not applicable.

10. Policy Implications

10.1 None applicable.

11. Use of Appendices

Page 3 of 5



Haringey

Page 92

11.1 Appendix 1: Draft Treasury Management Strategy Statement

2014/15-2016/17.

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

12.1 Not applicable.

13. Proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement

13.1 As set out in paragraph 5.3 above no debt, investment or prudential

indicator projections for future year have so far been included. This is
because the capital programme is not due to be considered by
Cabinet until December. The lack of precise figures at this stage does
not affect the proposed strategies for borrowing and investing.

13.2 Once the capital programme is agreed by Cabinet, the figures and

prudential indicators will be updated to reflect the programme. This
will impact on tables 1 to 9 in the strategy. This report with the
updated figures will then be presented to this Committee and to
Overview & Scrutiny Committee in January before the strategy is
presented to full Council for final approval in February 2014 as part of
the Financial Planning report.

13.3 In 2014/15 a continuation of very low short term interest rates

compared to medium and long term rates is expected throughout the
year. This means that there will be an on-going “cost of carry” if funds
are borrowed in advance of capital expenditure being incurred.
Therefore the Council plans to continue to run a strategy of keeping
cash balances low and invested short term and to borrow only when
required.

13.4 As there are loans due to mature during 2014/15, and the Council has

already maximised its internal borrowing position, new borrowing will
be required. It is proposed that short term loans are taken from other
local authorities to maintain liquidity, and that opportunities to obtain
PWLB fixed rate loans at reasonable rates are taken as they arise on
the advice of the Council’s treasury management advisers.

13.5 For the investment strategy, the definitions of specified and non-

Page 4 of 5

specified investments have been redefined to recognise that some
existing counterparties do not meet the definition of the highest credit
quality. It is proposed that credit ratings below AA- (previously A-) are
deemed non-specified. There is one exception to the minimum long
term credit rating of A- for NatWest, which will continue to be used for



Haringey

Page 93

overnight and weekend maturities while it continues to provide
banking services to the Council if other investment opportunities are
not available. Although the bank is currently rated A or A- by the three
ratings agencies, there is a risk of ratings deterioration.

13.6 The counterparty list (annex 5) continues to restrict investments to the

existing UK banks and building societies and the DMO. Money
market funds are no longer listed by name as the credit quality is
derived from the underlying investments and not the name of the
manager. A new asset class, enhanced cash funds is discussed in
detail (annex 4). No overseas banks have been included in the
proposed counterparty list although some have higher credit quality
than the listed UK banks and their use is supported by Arlingclose. [t
is planned to discuss the use of selected overseas banks with this
Committee in conjunction with training to the January meeting, which
may lead to a revised counterparty list.

13.7 Although the minimum criterion for the Council’s lending list is set with

reference to credit ratings, the Council will review a range of
information in addition to credit ratings when determining credit
worthiness. Within the strategy statement, the proposed limits for
time and amounts are maximum limits, and the list of counterparties is
the broadest range which can be used. However, operationally the
limits applied and counterparties used are reviewed regularly and
where necessary restricted in response to any concerns about
creditworthiness to ensure security of investments remains the priority
for the Council. [n particular, maximum maturities recommended by
Arlingclose will be followed.

13.8 The policy to minimise debt by fully using internal balances means

Page 5 of 5

that investment balances will also be minimised and therefore will be
kept short term (it is unlikely that new deposit maturities will exceed
three months) and balances with individual counterparties will be
much lower than the limits contained within the strategy.



Page 94



Page 95

APPENDIX 4

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Investment Strategy 2014/15 to 2016/17

Contents

1.

2.

9.

Background
CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice

Balance Sheet and Treasury Position

. Borrowing Strategy

Investment Policy and Strategy

Use of Financial Instruments for the Management of Risks
Housing Revenue Account Self financing

Outlook for Interest Rates

Balanced Budget Requirement

10.MRP Statement

11.Other Issues

Annexes

. Detail of Treasury Position [Omitted]

A: General Fund Pool
B: HRA Pool

Summary of Prudential Indicators [Omitted]
Arlingclose’s Economic and Interest Rate Forecast
Specified and Non — Specified Investments

Lending List of counterparties for investments



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

Page 96

Background

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Code of
Practice for Treasury Management in Public Services (the “CIPFA TM
Code”) and the Prudential Code require local authorities to determine the
Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) and Prudential
Indicators on an annual basis. The TMSS also incorporates the Investment
Strategy as required under the Communities and Local Government (CLG)
Department’s Investment Guidance.

CIPFA has defined Treasury Management as:

‘the management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective
control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of
optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

The Council is responsible for its treasury decisions and activity. No
treasury management activity is without risk. The successful identification,
monitoring and control of risk are integral elements of treasury
management activities and include Credit and Counterparty Risk, Liquidity
Risk, Market or Interest Rate Risk, Refinancing Risk and Legal and
Regulatory Risk.

The strategy takes into account the impact of the Council’'s proposed
Revenue Budget and Capital Programme on the Balance Sheet position,
the current and projected Treasury position, the Prudential Indicators and
the outlook for interest rates.

The purpose of this report is to propose:
e Treasury Management Strategy - Borrowing in Section 4,
Investments in Section 5
e Prudential Indicators — these are detailed throughout the report and
summarised in Annex 2 [Omitted — will be added in January 2014].
e MRP Statement — Section 10

CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice

Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice is one of
the Prudential Indicators. The Council originally adopted the Code of
Practice in May 2002. Revisions to the Code in 2009 and 2011 have been
reflected in updated versions of all policies and procedures.



3.1

3.2

Page 97

Balance Sheet and Treasury Position

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes, as measured by the

Capital

Financing Requirement (CFR), together with Balances and

Reserves, are the core drivers of Treasury Management activity. The
estimates for each pool, based on the current proposed Revenue Budget
and Capital Programmes, are:

Table 1a: Treasury Position — General Fund

31/03/2013 | 31/03/2014 | 31/03/2015 | 31/03/2016 | 31/03/2017
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

General Fund CFR 254,229
Less: Share of existing
External Debt & Other 183,907
Long Term Liabilities
Internal Borrowing 70,322
Cumulative Net
Borrowing
Requirement 0

Table 1b: Treasury Position — HRA

31/03/2013 | 31/03/2014 | 31/03/2015 | 31/03/2016 | 31/03/2017
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

HRA CFR 271,714
Less: Share of
Existing External 264,482
Debt & Other Long
Term Liabilities
Internal Borrowing 7,232
Cumulative Net
Borrowing
Requirement 0

The tables above show how the Council’'s capital requirement is funded
currently and how it is expected to be funded in the coming years. Due to
the differential between short and long term interest rates (discussed in
more detail in section 4), the Council has maximised the amount of internal
borrowing that can be done. As short term interest rates are not expected
to rise over the next two years, it is anticipated that a significant level of
internal borrowing will continue, with the only reduction expected reflecting
the planned movement in reserves.




3.3

3.4

Page 98

Ensuring that gross external debt does not exceed the CFR over the
medium term is a key indicator of prudence. There has been no difficulty
meeting this requirement in 2013-14 to date, nor are there any difficulties
envisaged for future years, as the levels of internal borrowing in tables 1a
and 1b above demonstrate.

It is a requirement for the HRA CFR to remain with the limit of
indebtedness or “debt cap” set by the DCLG at the time of the
implementation of self-financing. The table below shows the current
expected level of the HRA CFR and the debt cap. Any decision by the
Council to undertake new borrowing for housing will cause the future
years’ debt predictions for the HRA debt pool to increase.

Table 2: HRA Debt Cap

31/03/2013
Actual
£'000

31/03/2014
Estimate
£'000

31/03/2015
Estimate
£'000

31/03/2016
Estimate
£'000

31/03/2017
Estimate
£'000

HRA CFR

271,096

HRA Debt cap

327,538

Headroom

56,442

3.5

Table 3 below shows proposed capital expenditure over the coming three
financial years. It is a requirement of the Prudential Code to ensure that
capital expenditure remains within sustainable limits and, in particular, to
consider the impact on Council Tax and housing rent levels.

Table 3: Capital Expenditure

General

2012/13
Actual

£'000
41,317

2013/14
Approved

£'000
47,811

2013/14
Projected
Out-turn

£'000

2014/15
Estimate

£'000

2015/16
Estimate

£'000

2015/16
Estimate

£'000

HRA

40,673

34,202

Total

81,990

82,013

3.6

Capital expenditure is expected to be financed or funded as follows:

Table 4: Capital Financing




Page 99

2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 2015/16 | 2016/17
Estimate | Approved | Projected | Estimate Estimate | Estimate
Out-turn
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Capital receipts 9,608 17,036
Other grants & 7,194 11,484
contributions
Government 27,278 15,278
Grants
Reserves / 30,941 30,340
Revenue
contributions
Total Financing 75,021 74,138 0 0 0 0
Borrowing 5,379 8,875
Total 80,400 83,013 0 0 0 0
3.7 As an indicator of affordability the table below shows the incremental
impact of capital investment decisions on Council Tax and Housing Rent
levels. The incremental impact is calculated by comparing the total
revenue budget requirement of the current approved capital programme
with an equivalent calculation of the revenue budget requirement arising
from the proposed capital programme.
Table 5: Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions
2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17
Actual Approved | Projected | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Out-turn
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Increase in Band
D Council Tax 0.41 8.77
Increase in
Average Weekly
Housing Rents 0.09 0.13

3.8

The ratio of financing costs to the Council’s net revenue stream is an
indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing
and proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the
revenue budget required to meet borrowing costs. The ratio is based on
costs net of investment income.




Page 100

Table 6: Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream

2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 | 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Actual | Approved | Projected | Estimate Estimate Estimate
Out-turn
% % % % % %
General 2.78 2.62
Fund
HRA 13.18 12.94
4. Borrowing Strategy
4.1 A breakdown of the Council’'s current and expected external borrowing
plus other long-term liabilities is shown in Annex 1 [to be added]. This is
measured in a manner consistent for comparison with the Operational
Boundary and Authorised Limit.
4.2 The Authorised Limit sets the maximum level of external borrowing on a
gross basis (i.e. not net of investments) and is the statutory limit
determined under Section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2003 (referred
to in the legislation as the Affordable Limit). The Prudential Indicator
separately identifies borrowing from other long term liabilities such as
finance leases. The Authorised Limit has been set on the estimate of the
most likely, prudent but not worst case scenario with sufficient headroom
over and above this to allow for unusual cash movements.
Table 7: Authorised Limit for External Debt
2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Actual | Approved | Projected | Authorised | Authorised | Authorised
Debt Out-turn | Boundary | Boundary | Boundary
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Borrowing 361,702 | 569,256 | 339,262
Other Long- 32,270 | 102,037
term Liabilities
Total 393,972 | 671,293
4.3 The Operational Boundary links directly to the Council’s estimates of the

CFR and estimates of other cashflow requirements. This indicator is based
on the same estimates as the Authorised Limit reflecting the most likely,
prudent but not worst case scenario but without the additional headroom
included within the Authorised Limit.




Page 101

Table 8: Operational Boundary for External Debt

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

total limit for any individual year, to effect movement between the
separately agreed limits for borrowing and other long-term liabilities.
Decisions will be based on the outcome of financial option appraisals and
best value considerations. Any movement between these separate limits
will be reported to the next meeting of Corporate Committee.

Treasury management and borrowing strategies in particular continue to
be influenced not only by the absolute level of borrowing rates but also the
relationship between short and long term interest rates. The interest rate
forecast provided in Annex 3 indicates that an acute difference between
short and longer term interest rates is expected to continue beyond 2016.
This difference creates a “cost of carry” for any new longer term borrowing
where the proceeds are temporarily held as investments because of the
difference between what is paid on the borrowing and what is earned on
the investment.

This “cost of carry” has been a feature of money markets since 2009-10
and by essentially lending its own surplus funds to itself (i.e. internal
borrowing) the Council has minimised borrowing costs and reduced overall
treasury risk by reducing the level of its external investment balances. As
this position is expected to continue throughout 2014-15, there are no
plans to replace this internal borrowing with external borrowing. When the
2013-14 strategy was prepared it was projected that new external
borrowing of approximately £80 million was required in the year to
refinance maturing debt. Currently, new debt is forecast at £20 million and
will comprise relatively short duration local authority borrowing to minimize
interest costs. Debt maturities of £45 million in 2014-15 (including £20
million of under one year debt taken out in 2013-14) will require
refinancing.

The Council will adopt a flexible approach to this borrowing in consultation
with its treasury management advisers, Arlingclose Ltd. The following
issues will be considered prior to undertaking any external borrowing:

) Affordability;

2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Actual | Approved | Projected | Authorised | Authorised | Authorised
Debt Out-turn | Boundary | Boundary | Boundary
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Borrowing 361,702 | 469,256 | 339,262
Other Long- 32,270 68,024
term
Liabilities
Total 393,972 | 537,280 | 339,262 0 0 0
The Director of Corporate Resources has delegated authority, within the



4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

Page 102

) Maturity profile of existing debt;
° Interest rate and refinancing risk;
o Borrowing source.

In conjunction with advice from its treasury management adviser,
Arlingclose Ltd, the Council will keep under review the following borrowing
options:

e PWLB loans

e Borrowing from other local authorities

e Borrowing from institutions such as the European Investment Bank
and directly from Commercial Banks
Borrowing from the Money Markets
Capital markets (stock issues, commercial paper and bills)
Structured finance
Leasing

The “cost of carry” discussed above has resulted in an increased reliance
upon shorter dated and variable rate borrowing. These types of borrowing
inject volatility into the debt portfolio in terms of interest rate risk, however
this is counterbalanced by its affordability and alignment of borrowing
costs with investment returns. The Council’s exposure to shorter dated
and variable rate borrowing is kept under regular review by reference to
the difference between variable rate and longer term borrowing costs. A
narrowing in the spread by 0.5% will result in a review of the borrowing
strategy in conjunction with the Council’s treasury management advisers
to determine whether the exposure to shorter dated and variable rates is
maintained or altered. In recent months this spread has widened rather
than shortened.

The Council has £125m of loans which are LOBO loans (Lender’s Options
Borrower’s Option) and all of them are in their call periods. A LOBO is
called when the Lender exercises its right to amend the interest rate on the
loan at which point the Borrower can accept the revised terms or reject
them and repay the loan. LOBO loans present a potential refinancing risk
to the Council since the decision to call a LOBO is entirely at the lender’s
discretion. As LOBOs currently make up 35% of the total external debt
portfolio, this is a significant risk. However, at the present time the interest
rates on LOBO loans of 4.7% to 4.75% are above PWLB rates making any
opportunities to repay both unlikely and financially beneficial. Any LOBO
called will be discussed with the Council’s treasury advisers prior to the
acceptance of any revised terms. The default position will be the
repayment of the LOBO without penalty i.e. the revised terms will not be
accepted.

The Council’s debt portfolio can be restructured by prematurely repaying
loans and refinancing them on similar or different terms to achieve a
reduction in risk and/or savings in interest costs. The lower interest rate
environment and changes in the rules regarding the premature repayment
of PWLB loans has adversely affected the scope to undertake meaningful



412

4.13

4.14

Page 103

debt restructuring, although occasional opportunities arise. The rationale
for undertaking any debt rescheduling would be one or more of the
following:

e Savings in risk adjusted interest costs

e Rebalancing the interest rate structure of the debt portfolio

e Align long term cash flow projections and debt levels

e Changing the maturity profile of the debt portfolio.
In the short term gains would accrue from replacing long term debt with
shorter maturities, but from a longer term perspective this would not add
value. Borrowing and rescheduling activity will be reported to Corporate
Committee as part of the quarterly monitor reports.

The following Prudential Indicators allow the Council to manage the extent
to which it is exposed to changes in interest rates. The upper limit for
variable rate exposure has been set to ensure that the Council is not
exposed to interest rate rises which could adversely impact on the revenue
budget. The limit allows for the use of variable rate debt to offset exposure
to changes in short-term rates on investments.

The Council’s existing level of fixed interest rate exposure is 98% and
variable rate exposure is 2%, however it is recommended that the limits in
place for 2013/14 are maintained in future to retain flexibility. At present
variable rates from the PWLB compare unfavourably with short term loans
from local authorities due to the additional margin charged over gilts. If
LOBO loans are treated as variable, the current variable allocation is 40%.

Table 10: Fixed and Variable Interest Rate Exposure

2013/14 | 2013/14| 2014/15| 2015/16 | 2016/17
Approved Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
% % % % %
Upper Limit for
Fixed Interest Rate 100 98 100 100 100
Exposure
Upper Limit for
Variable Interest 40 2 40 40 40
Rate Exposure

The Council is required to set limits on the percentage of the portfolio
maturing in each of the periods set out in the table below. Limits in the
following table are intended to control excessive exposures to volatility in
interest rates when refinancing maturing debt. The limits have been set to
reflect the current debt portfolio, and to allow enough flexibility to enable
new borrowing to be taken for the optimum period. The limits apply to the
combined General Fund and HRA debt pools.

Table 11: Maturity Structure of fixed rate borrowing




5.1

5.2

5.3

54

Page 104

Lower Upper
Limit Limit 31-Mar-14
% % %

under 12 months 0% 40% 9%
12 months & within 24 months 0% 359, 2%
24 months & within 5 years 0% 35% 12%
5 years & within 10 years 0% 35% 15%
10 years & within 20 years 0% 35% 1%
20 years & within 30 years 0% 35% 7%
30 years & within 40 years 0% 35% 16%
40 years & within 50 years 0% 50% 15%
50 years & above 0% 50% 23%

Investment Policy and Strategy

Guidance from the Communities and Local Government Department
(CLG) on Local Government Investments in England requires that an
Annual Investment Strategy be set.

The Council’s investment priorities are, in this order:
e security of the invested capital;
e liquidity of the invested capital;
e an optimum yield that is commensurate with security and liquidity.

Investments are categorised as ‘Specified’ or ‘Non Specified’ investments
based on the criteria in the CLG Guidance. Instruments proposed for the
Council’s use within its investment strategy are contained in Annex 4 and
the list of proposed counterparties is shown in Annex 5. In keeping with
the strategy of maintaining low investment balances while internally
borrowing, it is proposed that all investments will have a maturity of less
than one year during 2014/15. The Director of Corporate Resources,
under delegated powers, will undertake the most appropriate form of
investments in keeping with the investment objectives, income and risk
management requirements and Prudential Indicators. Investment activity
will be reported to Corporate Committee as part of the quarterly reports.

Economies and money markets have improved in the recent months
although confidence remains fragile and markets are prone to over react to
negative news. Stronger commitments to protect the Eurozone have
helped to stabilise the European banking sector. Although this backdrop
supports a return to a more diversified counterparty structure, the
investment strategy has to be consistent with the borrowing strategy,
which is to repay debt and maximise the use of internal resources. Thus



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

Page 105

investment balances are anticipated to be of relatively low value. Given
this backdrop, it is proposed to continue to limit the proposed counterparty
list to UK institutions, Money Market Funds and Enhanced Cash Funds.
The latter is a new class of investments, more fully discussed in annex 5.
No investments will have duration of more than 12 months and in practice
durations of more than 3 months are unlikely.

With all investments the Council makes there is a risk of default, so the
proposed list of investments is prepared to minimise this risk by being
selective about the counterparties to be used. It is proposed to continue to
apply a minimum long term credit rating of A-, which is described as “high
credit quality” by the rating agencies.

The Council treasury advisor recommends maximum maturities for
individual counterparties and these will be considered when investing for
periods longer than overnight.

All counterparties on the list are subjected to continual monitoring, in
conjunction with the Council’s treasury management advisers, to ensure
that they continue to meet the high standard set. The range of information
used to determine creditworthiness is:

e Credit ratings (long and short term and credit rating watches

e Credit Default Swaps (where quoted)

e Sovereign support mechanisms/potential support from a well-

resourced parent institution

e Share prices

e Macro-economic indicators

e Corporate developments, news and articles, market sentiment.

If the monitoring reveals any concern about an institution’s
creditworthiness, it will be removed from the lending list with immediate
effect. In normal circumstances a credit rating downgrade below the
minimum criteria will not result in existing term deposits being recalled
prior to contractual maturity. In any period of significant stress in the
markets, the default position is for investments to be made with the Debt
Management Office — either in the Debt Management Account Deposit
Facility (DMADF) or UK Treasury Bills. (The rates of interest from the
DMADF are below equivalent money market rates, but the returns are an
acceptable trade-off for the guarantee that the Council’s capital is secure).
Current conditions are not considered to be “significant stress”.

The Council currently has residual banking arrangements with Nat West,
which is rated A-. Even if the credit rating of the Council’s bank falls below
the minimum of A-, it is proposed that the bank will continue to be used for
short term liquidity arrangements (overnight and weekend investments)
and business continuity arrangements if other arrangements are not
available.

In order to diversify the investment portfolio, investments will be placed
with a range of approved investment counterparties. Maximum investment



5.11

5.12

6.1

71

7.2

7.3

Page 106

levels with each counterparty are set out in Annex 5 will ensure prudent
diversification is achieved.

Money Market Funds (MMFs) and Enhanced Cash Funds (ECFs) provide
good diversification of underlying counterparty but may themselves be
subject to withdrawal restriction. The Council will therefore seek to
diversify any exposure by utilising more than one MMF or ECF unless
there are significant instant access funds from other sources. The Council
will also restrict its exposure to MMFs and ECFs with lower levels of funds
under management and will not exceed 0.5% of the net asset value of the
MMF or ECFs.

The Council is required to set an upper limit for principal sums invested for
over 364 days, as required by the Prudential Code. This limit is to contain
exposure to the possibility of loss that may arise as a result of the Council
having to seek early repayment of the sums invested. Given the current
interest rate environment, the Council will not make investments for more
than 364 days.

Use of Financial Instruments for the Management of Risks

The CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice requires the Council
to state if and how it will use financial instruments, such as derivatives.
Currently, local authorities’ legal power to use derivative instruments
remains unclear. The General Power of Competence enshrined in the
Localism Bill is not sufficiently explicit. Consequently, the Council does
not intend to use derivatives. Should this position change, the Council
may develop a detailed and robust risk management framework governing
the use of derivatives, but such a change in strategy would require full
Council approval.

Housing Revenue Account Self-financing

Central Government completed the reform of the Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) Subsidy system at the end of 2011/12. Local authorities
are required to recharge interest expenditure and income attributable to
the HRA in accordance with Determinations issued by the Department for
Communities and Local Government.

The Determinations do not set out a methodology for calculating the
interest rate to use in each instance. The Council is therefore required to
adopt a policy that will set out how interest charges attributable to the HRA
will be determined. The CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice
recommends that authorities present this policy in the annual Treasury
Management Strategy Statement.

On 1% April 2012, the Council notionally split each of its existing long-term
loans into General Fund and HRA pools. In the future, new long term
loans borrowed will be assigned in to one pool or the other. Interest



7.4

8.1

8.2

9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Page 107

payable and other costs/income arising from long term loans (e.g.
premiums and discounts on early redemption) will be charged/credited to
the respective revenue account.

Differences between the value of the HRA loan pool and the HRA's
underlying need to borrow (adjusted for HRA balance sheet resources
available for investment) will result in a notional cash balance which may
be positive or negative. This balance will be measured periodically and
interest transferred between the General Fund and HRA at the net
average rate earned by the Council on its portfolios of treasury
investments and short term borrowing.

Outlook for Interest Rates

The interest rate forecast provided by the Council’s treasury management
adviser, Arlingclose Ltd, is attached at Annex 3. The Council will
reappraise its strategy from time to time and, if needs be, realign it with
evolving market conditions and expectations for future interest rates.

This interest rate forecast shows that UK base rate is forecast to remain at
0.5% until at least 2016. This would mean that short term rates remain
significantly lower than long term rates throughout 2014/15 and beyond.
As discussed in section 4, for this reason it is anticipated that cash
balances will kept at a minimum throughout the financial year as the “cost
of carry” will be significant for any borrowing taken before capital
expenditure is incurred.

Balanced Budget Requirement

The Council complies with the provisions of Section 32 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992 to set a balanced budget.

MRP Statement

The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England)
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 (SI 2008/414) place a duty on local
authorities to make a prudent provision for debt redemption. Guidance on
Minimum Revenue Provision has been issued by the Secretary of State
and local authorities are required to “have regard” to such Guidance under
section 21(1A) of the Local Government Act 2003.

The four MRP options available are:
Option 1: Regulatory Method
Option 2: CFR Method
Option 3: Asset Life Method
Option 4: Depreciation Method

MRP in 2014/15: The guidance states Options 1 and 2 may be used only
for capital expenditure originally incurred when government support was
available. Methods of making prudent provision for self financed



10.4

10.5

11.

111

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.5

Page 108

expenditure include Options 3 and 4. There is no requirement to charge
MRP in respect of HRA capital expenditure funded from borrowing.

It is a requirement for Council to approve the MRP statement before the
start of the financial year. If it is ever proposed to vary the terms of the
original MRP Statement during the year, a revised statement will be put to
Council at that time.

It is proposed the Council will continue to apply Option 1 (charge 4% per
annum over 25 years) in respect of capital expenditure originally incurred
when government support was available and Option 3 (charge over the life
of the asset) in respect of all other capital expenditure funded through
borrowing. MRP in respect of leases and PFI (Private Finance Initiative)
schemes brought onto the Balance Sheet under the IFRS (International
Financial Reporting Standards) based Accounting Code of Practice will
match the annual principal repayment for the associated deferred liability.

Other Issues

Monitoring & Reporting

Corporate Committee will receive quarterly reports on treasury
management activity and performance. This will include monitoring of the
prudential indicators.

It is a requirement of the Treasury Management Code of Practice that an
outturn report on treasury activity is produced after the financial year end,
no later than 30™ September. This will be reported to Corporate
Committee, shared with the Cabinet member for Finance & Carbon
Reduction and then reported to full Council. Overview and Scrutiny
Committee will be responsible for the scrutiny of treasury management
activity and practices.

Officers monitor counterparties on a daily basis with advice from the
Council’s treasury management advisers to ensure that any
creditworthiness concerns are addressed as soon as they arise. Senior
management hold monthly meetings with the officers undertaking treasury
management to monitor activity and to ensure all policies and procedures
are being followed.

Training

CIPFA’s Treasury Management Code of Practice requires the Director of
Corporate Resources to ensure that all members tasked with treasury
management responsibilities, including scrutiny of the treasury
management function, receive appropriate training relevant to their needs
and understand fully their roles and responsibilities.

Given the significant amounts of money involved, it is crucial members
have the necessary knowledge to take treasury management decisions.
Regular training sessions are arranged for members to keep their
knowledge up to date.



11.6

11.7

Page 109

Treasury Advisor

The CLG’s Guidance on local government investments recommends that
the Investment Strategy should state:

‘Whether and, if so, how the authority uses external contractors offering
information, advice or assistance relating to investment and how the
quality of any such service is controlled.”

The Council has appointed Arlingclose Limited as their treasury advisor, to
provide information and advice about the types of investment and
borrowing the Council should undertake and the counterparties that should
be used. Quarterly service review meetings take place to monitor the
service and the appointment is formally reviewed in accordance with the
Council’s Contract Standing Orders.



ANNEX 3

Arlingclose’s Economic and Interest Rate Forecast

Dec13| Mar14| Jun14 | Sep14 | Dec14| Mar15| Jun15| Sep15| Dec15| Mar16| Jun16| Sep 16
Base Rate 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
3 month LIBID 0.45 0.45 0.50 0.55 0.55 0.55 0.55 0.60 0.65 0.70 0.80 0.90
1 year LIBID 0.90 0.95 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.05 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 1.40
5 yr gilt 1.45 1.50 1.55 1.60 1.65 1.70 1.75 1.85 1.95 2.10 2.30 2.50
10 yr gilt 2.55 2.60 2.65 2.70 2.75 2.80 2.85 2.90 3.00 3.10 3.30 3.50
20 yr gilt 3.25 3.30 3.35 3.40 3.45 3.50 3.55 3.65 3.75 3.85 4.05 4.15
50 yr gilt 3.45 3.50 3.55 3.60 3.65 3.70 3.75 3.80 3.85 3.95 4.05 415

Underlying assumptions:

»An improvement in consumer and business sentiment has seen Q1 and Q2 2013 GDP register 0.4% and 0.7%. Growth is likely to continue to strengthen
with estimates for Q3 growth close to 1%. Consumer spending remains the key driver, although this may not be sustainable given the reduction in the
savings ratio.

»The unemployment rate has fallen to 7.7%. The pace of decline in this measure will be dependent on a slower expansion of the workforce than the
acceleration in the economy, alongside the extent of productivity.

»The CPI rate was 2.2% in October. Regulated and administered prices are likely to keep CPI above target in the near term. In the medium term inflation
is expected to come back towards the target 2%.

»The principal measure in the MPC’s Forward Guidance on interest rates is the Labour Force Survey (LFS) unemployment rate. The MPC intends not to
raise the Bank Rate from its current level of 0.5% at least until this rate has fallen to a threshold of 7%. It currently forecasts this level to emerge in
Q3/2016.

»With improving growth statistics, the appetite for further Quantitative Easing (QE) is likely to remain small.

»House price inflation is likely to rise due to the government's Help to buy scheme, where it will guarantee up to 15% of purchasers’ 95% mortgages. This
could lead to a housing bubble, which in turn could come under pressure if rates were to rise quickly.

»Federal Reserve monetary policy expectations - the slowing in the pace of asset purchases (‘tapering’) and the end of further asset purchases - will
remain predominant drivers of the financial markets. The Fed did not taper in September and has talked down potential tapering in the near term and it
now looks more likely to occur in early 2014.

0L obed



»The European backstop mechanisms have lowered the risks of catastrophic meltdown. The slightly more stable economic environment at the aggregate
Eurozone level could be undone by political risks and uncertainty in Italy, Spain and Portugal (doubts over longevity of their coalitions). The ECB has
discussed a third LTRO, as credit conditions remain challenging for European banks.

»The US economic recovery appears to remain on course, but the unresolved political deadlock over the debt ceiling represents a risk to activity.
»China data has seen an improvement, easing markets fears.

»0n-going regulatory reform and a focus on bail-in debt restructuring is likely to prolong banking sector deleveraging and maintain the corporate credit
bottleneck.

»Geopolitical tensions, notably surrounding Syria, make for a less than conducive backdrop while global economies remain fragile.

» Our projected path for short term interest rates remains flat. Markets are still pricing in an earlier rise in rates than warranted under Forward Guidance
and the broader economic backdrop. However, upside risks now weight more heavily at the end of our forecast horizon.

»We continue to project gilt yields on an upward path through the medium term. The recent climb in yields was overdone given the soft fundamental
global outlook and risks surrounding the Eurozone, China and US. Yields are slowly drifting lower after the Fed stated that tapering was not going to
occur, but volatility will continue.

L 11 obed



Page 112

ANNEX 4

Counterparty Policy

The investment instruments identified for use in 2014-15 are listed below
under the ‘Specified’ and ‘Non — Specified’ investment categories. Specified
investments are considered low risk and relate to funds invested for up to one
year. Non-specified investments normally offer the prospect of higher returns

but carry higher risk and may have a maturity beyond one year. All
investments are sterling denominated.
Specified Investments
Instrument Country/ Domicile Counterparty Maximum Maximum
Counterparty | period of
Limits £m investment
Term Deposits UK Debt No limit 364 days
Management
Account Deposit
Facility (DMADF),
Debt
Management
Office (DMO)
Gilts UK Debt No limit 364 days
Management
Office (DMO)
Treasury Bills UK Debt No limit 364 days
Management
Office (DMO)
Term Deposits/ UK Other UK Local £30m per | 364 days
Call Accounts Authorities local authority
Term Deposits/ UK or AAA Counterparties £20m per 364 days
Call Accounts/ rated at least AA- | bank or
Certificates of Long Term (or banking group
Deposit equivalent)
Constant Net UK/Ireland/Luxembourg | AAA-rated Money | £20m per Instant
Asset Value domiciled Market Funds MMF*; Group | Access
Money Market limit £100m
Funds (MMFs)

Investments do not include capital expenditure as defined under section 25(1)
(d) in SI 2003 No 3146 (i.e. the investment is not loan capital or share capital
in a body corporate). Investment in gilts would only be undertaken on advice
from the Council’s treasury management adviser.

For credit rated counterparties, the minimum criteria will be the lowest
equivalent long-term ratings assigned by Fitch, Moody’s and Standard &
Poor’s (where assigned).




Page 113

Long-term minimum: A- (Fitch); A3 (Moody’s); A- (S&P)

The Council will also take into account the range of information on investment
counterparties detailed in section 5.7.

The limits stated will apply across the total portfolio operated by the Council
and so incorporate both Council and Pension Fund specific investments.

The limits for the period of investment are the maximum for the categories of
counterparties. Lower operational limits will apply if recommended following a
review of creditworthiness.

* Limit per MMF to be no more than 0.5% of the Money Market Fund'’s total
assets.

Non- Specified Investments

Instrument Country/ Domicile Counterparty Maximum Maximum
Counterparty | period of
Limits £m investment
Gilts UK Debt £10 million 36 Months
Management
Office (DMO)
Term Deposits/ UK Other UK Local £30m per | 36 Months
Call Accounts Authorities local authority
Term Deposits/ UK Counterparties £20m per 364 days
Call Accounts/ rated at least A- bank or
Certificates of Long Term (or banking group
Deposit equivalent) and
NatWest Bank.
Variable NAV UK/Ireland/Luxembourg | AAA - rated £5m per Minimum
Enhanced Cash domiciled Funds ECF*; Group | Weekly
Funds limit £15m Redemption

Non specified investments generally have either longer maturities than one
year or weaker credit ratings than AA-, but not both.

Enhanced Cash Funds

The potential investment universe is wide and there are many types that
Haringey does not currently utilise. One category that we would like to
introduce into the portfolio is enhanced cash funds (also known as short dated
bond funds). These share many of the characteristics of money market funds,
which are already in use:

a) Stand alone fund, mainly a Dublin plc, that invests in bank and corporate
bonds, bank deposits and other financial instruments.

b) An appointed fund manager determines which investments to hold.

c) Investment is through the purchase of units.

d) Most have an AAA credit rating.




Page 114

The key difference between money market funds (MMF) and enhanced cash
funds (ECF) is the latter are permitted longer maximum average maturities. A
rated MMF has a maximum weighted average maturity (WAM) of 60 days,
while ECF typically have 360 days WAMs and some longer. This allows them
to generate a higher return from buying longer dated securities. As a
consequence of the longer WAM, there are a number of differences between
MMF and ECF:

a) The value of investments in ECF can vary being based on the underlying
value of the investments. In a MMF, any change in value is relatively small
and is reflected in the declared income.

b) MMF are dealt daily with cash moving in and out on trade date. With ECF
the notice and settlement period can be up to 5 days and the funds are not
suitable for intra day liquidity.

c) ECF employ a wider range of instruments and some use derivatives.

ECFs are attractive in that they offer a higher return than MMF and compared
with direct investments in bonds offer high levels of diversity while maintaining
an overall high quality credit exposure.

As mentioned above, most ECF have a credit rating, usually AAA. There is
also a separate volatility rating that measures the sensitivity of the value of the
fund to changes in interest rates. When market interest rates increase, the
impact on the value of longer term investments is higher than short term
investments. Despite the longer WAM, many have the lowest volatility ratings
because they have strict policies on selling investments when prices change.

The attraction of ECF is the higher returns. MMF generally have net returns at
present of between 0.3% and 0.5%, where as an ECF with a WAM of 360
days is currently in the range 0.75% to 1.25%.

The use of such funds has been discussed with the Council’s treasury advisor
who are supportive provided the exposure is limited to 20-25% of the total
deposits and we invest with higher security / lower volatility funds. We will
avoid funds that use derivatives as the legality of these for local authorities is
unclear. Implementation will involve both a switch from MMF and DMO
deposits. A maximum of £5 million invested with a single fund is proposed.



Page 115

Lending List of counterparties for investments

ANNEX 5

This is the proposed list of counterparties which the Council can lend to,
providing the counterparties meet the requirements set out in Annex 4 at the

time of investment.

The

list will be kept under constant review and
counterparties removed if the process described in 5.7 and 5.8 raises any
concerns about their credit worthiness.

Instrument Country/ Counterparty Maximum
Domicile Counterparty

Limit £m

Gilts, Treasury UK Debt Management Office (Term No limit

Bills, Term deposits with Debt Management

Deposits Account Deposit Facility DMADF)

Term Deposits UK Other Local Authorities £30m per local
authority

Term Deposits/ UK Barclays Bank Plc 20

Call Accounts/

Certificates of

Deposit

Term Deposits/ | UK HSBC Bank Plc 20

Call Accounts/

Certificates of

Deposit

Term Deposits/ | UK Lloyds Banking Group including Lloyds 20

Call Accounts/ TSB and Bank of Scotland

Certificates of

Deposit

Term Deposits/ | UK Nationwide Building Society 20

Call Accounts/

Certificates of

Deposit

Term Deposits/ | UK RBS Group including Nat West Bank 20

Call Accounts/ and Royal Bank of Scotland

Certificates of

Deposit

Term Deposits/ | UK Standard Chartered Bank 20

Call Accounts/
Certificates of
Deposit

The counterparty list excludes MMF and ECF’s as the name of the fund
reflects the fund manager not the quality of the underlying holdings. Selection
of MMFs and ECFs will be based on the criteria set of in Annex 4. The limit
for any single MMF is £20 million and each ECF is £5 million.




Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



X

oo Agenda Iltem 11

2
Haringey
Corporate Committee
Report for: Item
26 November 2013 number
Title: Internal Audit Progress Report — 2013/14 Quarter 2

Report authorised

Director of Corporate Resources 5 pm/-

by : B ,
Assistant Chief ExecutiveS}z\ﬂL }4 lﬂ” / / 2 0
=i
Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Lead Officer: Tel: 020 8489 5973

Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: ALL

Report for: Non-Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 The Corporate Committee is responsible for monitoring the completion of
the annual internal audit plan and the implementation of agreed
recommendations as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate
this, progress reports are provided on a quarterly basis for review and
consideration by the Corporate Committee on the work undertaken by the
Internal Audit Service in completing the 2013/14 annual audit plan, together
with the responsive pro-active fraud investigation work, and housing benefit
fraud investigation work. Where further action is required or recommended,
this is highlighted in the report and appendices and included in the
recommendations for the Corporate Committee.

1.2 The report also provides information from the Council’s Human Resources
(HR) business unit in respect of (a) work undertaken in supporting
disciplinary action taken across all departments. by respective Council
managers; and (b) consultants employed by the Council.

1.3 The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) have stated that they intend
to introduce their proposed Single Fraud Investigation Service (SFIS) as a
single, DWP-led, investigation service. A summary of the implications of this

Page 1 of 9



Page 118

X

-—+

Gl

Haringey
for local authorities and the potential impact on Haringey is included as a
separate appendix to this report.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction
2.1 Not applicable

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Corporate Committee is recommended to note the audit coverage and
counter-fraud work completed; and the actions taken during the quarter to
ensure audit recommendations are implemented and address the
outstanding recommendations during the second quarter, 2013/14.

3.2 The Corporate Committee notes the information received from the HR
business unit.

3.3 The Corporate Committee agrees the Council's proposed actions, set out
in Appendix E, in response to the DWP’s statements on how SFIS will
operate.

4. Other options considered
4.1 Not applicable.

5. Background information

5.1The internal audit service and counter-fraud teams make a significant
contribution to ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control
throughout the Council. This report looks at the work undertaken in the
quarter ending 30 September 2013 and focuses on:

e Progress by Deloitte and Touche on internal audit coverage relative to
the approved internal audit plan, including the number of audit reports
issued and finalised;

e Progress in implementing outstanding internal audit recommendations
with particular attention given to priority 1 recommendations;

o Details of pro-active and reactive investigative work undertaken relating
to fraud and/or irregularities, including those within the remit of the
Corporate Anti-Fraud and Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Teams;

¢ Details of the work completed to review and investigate the potential
data matches received as part of the Audit Commission’s statutory
National Fraud Initiative (NFI) exercise;

¢ Information in respect of disciplinary action taken by managers across all
departments of the Council during the quarter; and

o Details of consultants employed by all departments across the Council
to the end of September 2013.

5.2 The information in this report has been complied from information held

within the Audit & Risk Management business unit and from records held by
Deloitte and Touche and the Council’s corporate HR business unit.

Page 2 of 9



Page 119

X

-*-‘

2

6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications

6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
completed by Deloitte and Touche is part of the framework contract which
was awarded to the London Borough of Croydon from 1 April 2012, in
accordance with EU regulations. The costs of this contract are contained
and managed within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget.

6.2 The financial benefits to the Council of the work completed during 2013/14
as part of the ongoing tenancy fraud project will be realised as properties
are recovered and returned to the Council’s portfolio. The Audit
Commission estimate that the costs of fraudulent tenancies and
unauthorised sub-letting equate to £18k per annum per property, mainly
relating to additional costs for temporary accommodation. During the
second quarter, seventeen Council properties were recovered, equivalent
to a cost saving to the Council of £288k.

6.3 The financial benefits reported as part of the NFI exercise for blue badges
and concessionary passes are based on the Audit Commission’s
assessment of the monetary value of £500 for each blue badge or
concessionary pass. To date, the team’s work to cancel 361 badges and
passes where the recipient is deceased or no longer entitled to use it
equates to a value of £180.5k.

6.4 Although the DWP's proposals for SFIS have not been finalised, there could
be financial implications for the Council if certain types of benefits can no
longer be investigated as the costs of any fraud could be borne by the
Council. This should be kept under review as the proposals for SFIS are
developed and implemented during 2014/15.

7. Legal Implications

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this
report, and save for endorsing the comments of the Chief Financial Officer
at paragraph 6.4, advises that there are no direct implications arising out of
the report.

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1 This report deals with how risks to service delivery are managed across all
areas of the Council, which have an impact on various parts of the
community. The report also contains details of how fraud investigation work
is undertaken and pro-active fraud projects are managed. Improvements in
managing risks and controls will therefore improve services the Council
provides to all sections of the community.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1 Not applicable.

Page 3 of 9



X

-—*_

Y

Haringey

Page 120

10. Policy Implications
10.1 There are no direct implications for the Council’s existing policies, priorities
and strategies. However, improving controls and reducing the opportunity
for fraud to take place in the first place, and taking appropriate pro-active
action to detect and investigate identified fraud will assist the Council to
use its available resources more effectively.

11. Use of Appendices

11.1 Appendix A — Deloitte and Touche Progress report

Appendix B - In-house Team - investigations into financial irregularities

Appendix C — Council-wide disciplinary information

Appendix D - Consultants employed by the Council as at 30 September

Appendix E - SFIS and the implications for local authority fraud

2013.

investigations

Appendix F — Template letter

12. Performance Management Information
12.1 Although there are no national or Best Value Performance Indicators, key

local performance targets have been agreed for Audit and Risk
Management. These form part of Corporate Resources’ reporting

processes, but are detailed below for information. Table 1 below shows the
targets for each key area monitored and gives a breakdown between the

quarterly and cumulative performance.

Table 1

Pi Performance Indicator 288 Year to Target

Ref. Quarter date

1 Audit work — Days Completed 99.5% 52.3% 95%
vs. Planned programme

2 Priority 1 recommendations 100% 100% 95%
implemented at follow up

3 Benefit fraud cases completed 12 19 30
and accepted for prosecution

4 Benefit overpayments £0.3k £4.2k £150k
recovered (including POCA and
confiscation awards)

13. Internal Audit work — Deloitte and Touche contract

13.1 The activity of Deloitte and Touche for the second quarter of 2013/14 to date is
detailed at Appendix A. Deloitte and Touche planned to deliver 225 days of the
2013/14 annual audit plan (900 days) during the quarter and actually delivered
224 days audit work during the quarter. There are no issues identified at this
stage to prevent the annual target from being met. Ongoing monthly contract
monitoring reviews ensure that performance levels are kept under review.

Page 4 of 9




Page 121

Haringey

13.2 Members of the Corporate Committee receive detailed summaries of all
projects for which a final report has been issued on a monthly basis to allow for
any issues to be considered in a timely manner. Appendix A provides a list of all
final reports which have been issued during the quarter, together with detailed
summaries of the findings and recommendations of those reports which
received a ‘limited’ assurance rating.

13.3 Appendix A also provides detailed summaries of all recommendations which
were previously recorded as outstanding at the time of the follow up audit
work. Members have been monitoring the progress and implementation of
these to ensure that managers were taking appropriate action to address
outstanding recommendations. Four recommendations from 2011/12 remain
outstanding, with only one high priority recommendation remaining as ‘partly
implemented’. Work is ongoing to address the recommendations and Internal
Audit are satisfied that managers’ actions to date are appropriate and cost
effective to manage the lower priority risks facing the Council. Internal Audit will
continue to monitor implementation of recommendations to ensure appropriate
actions are taken to mitigate identified risks.

13.4 A summary of all follow up audits for 2012/13 work which have been
undertaken is also included at Appendix A. We have followed up on 39
recommendations to date and found that 38 have been implemented and 1 is in
progress. No Priority 1 recommendations remain outstanding. Overall, a
compliance rate of 97% has been achieved for the second quarter.

14. In-house Team: Fraud investigation/Pro-active work

14.1 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Internal Audit investigates all
cases that fall outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation
Team and the Council’s Information Security Policy. Appendix B details the
individual cases that were completed by the In-house Team in the second
quarter of 2013/14 relating to Council employees. The listing at Appendix B
also includes any referrals made using the Council’s whistle blowing policy
which were investigated by Internal Audit. During the second quarter, no staff-
related whistle blowing referrals were made.

14.2 Within the second quarter, four new cases relating to permanent and temporary
employees were referred to Internal Audit by management. One case was
completed during the quarter involving a Council employee. Internal Audit work
closely with officers from personnel and the service involved to ensure that the
investigation is completed as quickly as possible.

14.3 The section has been continuing to work with Homes for Haringey and the

Strategic and Community Housing Service to target and investigate housing
and tenancy fraud. The Audit Commission estimate that each fraudulent

Page 50of 9



Page 122

X

*

>

Haringey
tenancy costs councils an estimated £18k in temporary accommodation and
other associated costs.

14.4 As at 30 September 2013, 81 new referrals of suspected tenancy fraud have
been received by the team during 2013/14. Together with 57 cases brought
forward from 2012/13, this gives a current total of 139 referrals (148 received in
total during 2012/13) and Table 2 below summarises the source of these

referrals:
Table 2
Referrals Received From: Number
Tenancy Management Officer 47
Fraudcall (email and freephone telephone) 14
Registered Providers 59
Members of the Public 3
Joint investigation with Housing Benefit Fraud 0
National Fraud Initiative 1
Police : 0
Other Local Authority 1
Member 0
Haringey Staff 13
Home Office 1
Total 139

14.5 During the second quarter of 2013/14, eighteen Haringey properties have been
recovered in total, plus six applications for Succession, or Grant of Tenancy,
refused on evidence of ineligibility, so the tenancies can be allocated to tenants
in accordance with the Council’s lettings policy.

14.6 The section also works closely with the Council’s key Registered Providers to
target and investigate housing and tenancy fraud in joint working with
Registered Provider staff. As at 30 September 2013, 30 new referrals of
suspected tenancy fraud have been received and together with 29 cases
brought forward from 2012/13, this gives a current total of 59 referrals to date.

14.7 As aresult of the joint working, ten Registered Providers’ properties have been
recovered in the first quarter. Investigations have been closed in five cases with
no fraud identified and are ongoing in 44 cases.

15. Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation

15.1 During the second quarter, the HB Fraud team completed investigations on
thirteen benefit fraud cases and submitted these for prosecution at crown court
via Legal Services, giving a total of twenty cases submitted in the year to date.
Four cases submitted by the team to the DWP for joint prosecutions in 2011/12
are still to be heard. There are also seven cases with outstanding warrants
which the team chase up on a regular basis.

Page 6 of 9



Page 123

X

--q-- E

>

15.2 The team achieved six successful prosecutions during the quarter and eleven
to date, with a total overpayment value of £271.2k, although only £4.2k has
been recovered to date. The team has an annual target of 30 prosecution cases
for 2013/14, and this target is expected to be achieved.

16. National Fraud Initiative

16.1 The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) is a statutory biennial data matching exercise
which is managed by the Audit Commission. Data from all local authorities and
many other public sector organisations is matched to identify potential fraud.
The resulting data matches are shared, via a secure website, to the Council to
enable further investigations to take place. The initial data matches were made
available to the Council in February 2013, although further results have been
added in during the year. Work on the data matches began in March 2013. The
NFl investigations run alongside and support the teams’ existing pro-active and
reactive counter-fraud work programmes.

16.2 During the second quarter, the Corporate Anti-Fraud and Housing Benefit
Investigation teams have been continuing their investigations into the potential
data matches provided by NFI. Work has been undertaken to investigate:
payroll and pension payments, blue badges, housing benefits, right to buy,
insurance claimants and housing tenants.

16.3 The Audit Commission identifies the total number of potential data matches for
each area. Within this total, the Audit Commission further highlights a number
of ‘recommended’ matches, within the total number of matches, which they
consider to have the highest risk of potential fraud linked to them. The teams
have focused on completing their investigations into the ‘recommended’
matches during the year to date, and has selected a further sample from the
total matches for each area for investigation on a risk basis.

16.4 The Audit Commission visited Haringey Council on 27 September 2013 to
review progress and discuss the Council’s outcomes and approach to the NFI
exercise to date. The Audit Commission reported that the council had made
good progress on completing investigations on data matches and their
comments will be reported to the Council’s external auditors. Grant Thornton
also review progress against NFI matches and discuss any potential issues with
the Head of Audit & Risk Management throughout the year. No issues have
been raised to date.

16.5 A summary of the NFI matches is detailed in Table 3 below. Further comments
on some areas are also included below the table.

Page 7 of 9



X

Page 124

/?
Haringey
Total Total Total number | Number of
Number | ‘Recommended’ of ongoing
of Matches investigations | Investigations

NFI area Matches identified completed to

identified date
Housing Benefits 8,282 2,001 1,975 889
Payroll 203 96 127 15
Pensions 208 61 166 3
Housing Tenants 353 141 80 31
Right to Buy 126 125 93 28
Insurance
claimants 29 13 29 0
Blue badge
permits 435 348 355 0
Concessionary
Travel Passes** 1,066 1,066 270 796

** Data matches received from Audit Commission August 2013

16.6 Housing Benefits.

The Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team has identified:

¢ Housing benefits to payroll data, where the individual is employed by
Haringey: eight frauds and 14 errors with a total benefit value of £151.7k.
The identified frauds have used both internal disciplinary processes and
criminal prosecutions proceedings;

¢ Housing benefits to payroll data, where the individual is employed by
another organisation: two frauds and three errors with a total benefit value
of £19.2k. Prosecution cases are being compiled in the two fraud cases;

+ Housing benefits to pensions data, where the individual is receiving a
pension from Haringey or another organisation: no frauds, but 18 errors
have been identified and are being followed up; and

¢ Housing benefits to student loans: one fraud with a value of £1.7k has been
identified. The DWP are leading on this area and will undertake
proceedings.

16.7 Payroll.

All recommended matches have been investigated and no fraud or errors have
been identified. Further investigations on 15 cases are ongoing.

16.8 Pensions.

All recommended matches have been investigated and two frauds and no
errors have been identified. The estimated value of the frauds is £20.5k and
follow up work is ongoing on these cases. Further investigations on 3 cases are

ongoing.

Page 8 of 9




Page 125

X

—*

.

Haringey
16.9 Right to Buy.
All recommended matches are being investigated and fraud or errors that have
been identified are being followed up. Further investigations are ongoing.

16.10 Insurance claimants
All potential matches have been investigated. No fraud or errors were found.

16.11 Blue badges/Concessionary Travel Passes
The team collected 9 blue badges and cancelled 341 badges in total where the
user was either deceased or no longer entitled to use the badge.
Concessionary Travel Pass matches were released to the Council in August
2013, and to date a further 270 passes have been cancelled as a result of the
team’s investigations.

17. Council-wide disciplinary statistics

17.1 Appendix C details the number of disciplinary suspensions and/or action taken
in the second quarter of 2013/14. The data is taken from SAP and the
information has been provided by the HR business unit in line with Council
statistics reported elsewhere.

17.2 During the quarter, the number of disciplinary cases investigated was 32, with
18 remaining ‘open’ at the end of the quarter. The average length of time taken
to resolve disciplinary cases in the quarter was 78 days, which is a slight
decrease on the previous quarter. Internal Audit has not completed any further
verification on the information provided by HR for this appendix.

18. Consultants information

18.1 Appendix D details the consultants employed by the Council during the second
quarter. The data is taken from SAP and the information has been provided by
the HR business unit. Internal Audit has not completed any further verification
on the information provided by HR for this appendix.

Page 9 of 9



Page 126



Page 127

V XIANHddV

€£10T 129010

"PIT NIPNY [BUIU] J0J99S O1I[qRd SYONO ], 29 NIO[3(]

AdSuriey Jo ysnoaog uopuory

P1/€10C
110d3y JIpny [euadju] 7 J31aend)

JIpny [BuIuY



Page 128

$1/£107 Moday [ 1911enQ) — NIpny [ewa)u] A93uLreH jo y3nolog uopuo]

g ANMIqIsuodsay JO JUSWAES
G s YIOM 1PV €1/210T 30 A MO[[0d
T Z1/110Z SUONEpUSWIUIOday Surpuelsing — 110day sse1301g pafreld
e soLTEUIWING Pa[TEIa(] PUE SSAIS014 NPNY
s ATeunung 9AnNOSX
aged

SjuANUO))

V XIAN3ddV PI/€107 LIOdHY LIANV A TIALAVNO - LIAQV TYNIALINI ALLIOTdd



Page 129

1 98eq $1/€10z Moday 7 Ja1rend) —jipay jeusaiu A93uney Jo ySnolog uopuoy

sjuowiAed 100111
pue (KA aImonnserjuy ANunWwWo)) [eIoARIA
‘owwedold s3uraeg aresodio)
{]J01Aed — 20URINSSY SRONUIIUOD)
SIUSWAIIA 193png — 90URINSSY SNONUTIUOD)
{SOTWIOPROY - SISSI00IJ IDJSUBI],
{(SI0NIpaI))) d[qeAed SIUNOIDY e
:10)xenb ayy ur pasifeuy sypny [eusu] €1/710T

:ponssi syr0day feurq — pI/€10Z T 1934en() Jo Arewnungs/syySysSy £oy]

suonepuswwodal sonoeid 159q Jo/pue sIoNeW JOWW - £ (Lol
uonoe udwoSeueul [ed0] JIOJ SUOIIBPUSUWIWIONDI Y0 - 7 Kjuouy
juswoFeuLW IOIUS JO UONUINE oY) J0] samsst Jofewr - [ Kuonyg

:$9110389180 UIMO][0] o) 01 Suipiodoe asnuoLd are SUONRPUSUIWIOIDI INO “IOPUTWDI B S

"aap1wwo)) desodio)) ays 03 panrodar pue pansst st 110dai [eury oy dwi) Yy Aq SI901JJ0 [1ouno)) Aq parusurojdur
usoq oAey Apeasje Aew! SUONEPUSWUIOODI PUER ‘NpPNE dY) JO SWN) dY) 1B SWSAS 9y} JO SMILIS dUI 109[JaI SI|qe) paydene oYL

‘sy10dal
Npne [euly [enplAipul 9y} ur pajre1dp AjjnJ ore ‘uorejdwos 10J suljpeap oY) pue 1291JJ0 J]qIsuodsar sy SUIPR[OUT ‘SUOHBPUSWIWOI]
Y} SSAIPpE 0} SUONIR SIIJJO ‘Padide uddq aAey Wodar sty uiynm paySIyYSiy sossaueam [ONUOD AU SSIIPPE 0] SUONBPUSWILOII]
IV "pansst 3uidq 1odas [euyy sy 0) toud passnosip are sajndsip Aue pue ‘SI9OIJJO [IOUNOD) YIm padife ore SUOIIEPUAWIWIOAI [[V

‘1sonbai
uodn syuoda1 J1pne 1no Jo sa1doo [[ny Yiim papiroid oq OS[e [[IM IINIWWOD) Y} JO SIQUIS] "ddNIWWO)) eiodio) oY) JO SIQUIdIA]
0 siseq Ajypuow e uo papiaoid sI yoiym uoneursojur Arewrwns ay) Joy3a801 smelp 1odar 9y ], "‘UOHBULIOJUI 10] papnjour st s3urpuiy
JIpNe JouBINSSE PAIWI] 2Y) JO Arewrwing pajieldp SI0W Y “SHPNe [BUISJUT INO JO 9SINOD 2y SULINp paljiuapl ussq dAeY YoIyM [1oUn0))
oy pue sjuswedap [enplatpur 3uroe) sysu A3y oy WSYSy 01 pouSisop os[e st uodar SIy} JO JeWO) Y], "Wl I9A0 paSeurw
3uraq ore sySU MOY UO UONBULIOJUT (IIM SISQUISIA IPIAOKd [[IM UYOTYMm YIOM SWIdISAS A9 10J [9AeN JO uono3Ip Yl JO uonedIpul
Ue SOAIS pue 20UBINSSE [BNUBISQNS IO [[NJ PIASIYOE SARY YOIYm Seare asoy) uo uoneursojur sapraoid podar ayJ, agers [eurj 1€ mou
are yorym spiodai f[e Jo sjrelop Suipnjour Jeak [eroueul) $1/¢10g Y Joj sanrwuio)) aresodio)) oy 01 1odas 1arrenb puosas o ST SIYL

uonONpoIu

Arewruung 2AINAXY

V XIONHddV PL/E10T LIOd T LIANV A TIALAVAO - LIANV TVNIAINI ALLIOTAd



Page 130

7 93eg y1/€107 Woday g Jouen() —ipny [eusaju] LaSuLrey Jo y3nolog Uuopuo

‘Afeng) ereq

pue ‘201a198 (uowdinbg olepy) uopuo] ueq
¢901A19§ (uswdinby sourpy) uondiiosaid uopuo| ued
‘anua)) s, UAIP[IYD) IPISPOOM

‘uonepowwoddy Arerodwa],

:sIpne SuImo[[o] oy} 10 s310dol 1JeIp panssI OS[e JABY oM ‘UB[d IPNY [UIN] {1/€ 10T Y1 JO A10AL[9p oyt Jo 1ed sy
uelJ HPNY [euIou] HI/ET0T JO AIRAIRA

‘sa8rey)) ore)) ANUNWWIO)) pue [BNUSPISIY
pue ‘juswageurA SANIIOB — JUSWIIN0I]
‘SIOIAIOG IOQUIDIA

‘UOISIAOIJ UONIBONPH 2ANRUIdIY

‘spreD) aseyoind — JUsWINJ01g
‘SIUSUIATURLIY 1101J(] PASUIIIT S[OOYOS
‘uoneoriddy NODI Aioyiny

‘uoneotjddy Jvs

‘uoneorjddy [-jJomowel] e

:syipne Suimop[oj oy 10§ suodar 1JeIp PanssI OS[E 2ARY oM ‘Ue]d NPNY [RUIANU] € [/Z10T Y} JO AIAIp a1 Jo wred sy
ue[g PNy [euIdNU] €1/710T JO AdAIR(

syuswded 1000

pue ‘KA 2imponnsesjuf ANunuwiwio)) [eIoABA

‘owwei5oid sSuiaeg Aerodio)

‘]J0IAed — 2oURINSSY SNONUIIUOD)

‘SIUSWIDII A 19FpNng — 9OURINSSY SNONUIIUOD)

$SOIWIAPBOY - SISSD001J JoJSuel],
‘(s10Mpa1)) a[qehed SJUNOIDY e

:13)xenb ay) w1 pasijeurj sppny [ewrU] H1/€10T

V XIONdddV PI/€10T LIOdHY LIANV ATIALAVAO - LIANV TVNIALNI ALLIOTAA



Page 131

¢ a3eq ¥1/€10Z wodoy z Jaurend) —11pny jewsdjuf Aoguirey jo ySnosog uopuo

"aunuwo)) desodio) ay) 03 wodas Aouenb o ur paiodar aq [[im sSutpuiy oy, “1eak [eioueuLy AY)
INOYSNOIY} SUOHEPUSWIWONDI £/Z710T A JO dn-mojjo] & 230]dwI0d 03 SnUNUOD [[IM oM ‘U] NIPNY [BUINU] /€[0T o Jo wed sy

{(9%9°7) 1 — powowoldwr Apired 10 ssarSor uy e

“(%t'L6) 8¢ — payuouwrojdwy o
:SMOJ[OJ SE dIe JIOM INO JO SINSAI Y} pue ¢ [/Z1(OT Ul PISIEI SUOIBPUIUIWOIDI ¢ AN POMO[[O] 9ARY oM )P O,

€IT10T

*9s9Y} ssa1ppe 01 JUIOTUO SI YIoM ‘FUIPUB)SINO UTBUIDI SUOTIEPUSLILIOND] INO,]
<I/TI0C

:SMO[[0] Se ore J1om dn-mojj0J InO JO SINSI Y,

SUOIJEPUAWO0IIY SIBdX JoLig Jo d} mof[oq

V XIONHddV PI/E10C LYOdHY L1ANV A TIALAVAO - LIANV TVNIALINI ALLIOTAA



Page 132

4 o8eq

$1/€107 Wodoy z 1ouren)) —1ipny [ewsaiu] KoSulrey jo ysSnolog uopuo|

0 & ! VIN payuly £1/60/¥0 €10 ke UOISIAOI4 uoneonpy sAneuldNY
0 I 0 VIN [enueIsqng £1/60/v0 €102 AInf SpIeD aseyolnd — JUaWaInd0.d
0 [4 0 VIN [enueisqng €1/80/TC €10¢ aunf SjuSWaZuLLIY 1Y PAsuddI] S|00YdS
[4 L4 0 V/IN [enueisqng €1/L0/6T €10¢ sunf uonedrddy NODI Aiopiny
0 € 0 VIN [enueisqng €1/L0/TT €10¢ aunf uonedsnddy vs
€ I 0 VIN [enuelsqng €1/L0/TT €102 ke uoneodrddy [-yiomauresy
pI/£10¢
0 14 0 V/N [enueisqns |  €1/60/0€ €102 AInf-q33 syuauied 1211
0 € [4 VIN payuly €1/60/90 £10C ke KA 2xmonnseyu] AUNWWOY) [BIOKBN
0 1 0 VIN [ehuelsqng €1/80/6C €10C udy SIUSUIAIIA 193png — Sunipny snonunuo)
0 v 0 <—> | [enueisqng €1/80/6C €107 aunf swwei3o1g sSuiaeg aesodio)
0 ! 0 VIN fenueisqng €1/80/CC €107 Idy [l01Ae - SUNIpny sRORUNUOD
0 € I VIN panwry €1/L0/6C C10T 1oquLAON SIMWIPEIY — $3SSAV01 IQJSUBLL,
I € 0 <—=> | lenuesqng €1/L0/01 €107 Arenuef (s101pa1D) vjqeded SIUNOOOY
€1/T10¢

€ (4 ! yoday

(Kurouryg) [PARI], JO [PA¥] reuty upne Jo aeq pLL 1PNy
SUONEPUIWIIOIIY | UONIL(J | dUBINSSY Jo aeq
Jo Joquuny
‘uorjBULIOJUT

SIoquidjy Io] papiaoid osfe ore sSurjer ooueInsse [eNuBISqNG, 10 [IN, SAI909X 10U Op YOIYM SHpne [[B JO SOLTBWIWINS Pajreld(

V XIANAddV

“gonnuwo)) selodio)) oy 0 pauodal pue panssi st 1odax
[euly oy swin oy Aq SI901JJO [1duno) Aq pIAjuswdjdul usaq sAey Apease Aeul SUOIIEPUSWIWOIAI Y} Jey) pajou 3q jsnui If Jipne
211 JO dWIN JY] 18 SUINSAS dU} JO SNILIS dY) pue Jedk [eroueulj /€10 JO [ I91enQ) Ul pasijeul} sypne dy) 1nO S19s 9[qe) SUIMO[[0] YL

SOLIBUIUING PI3[IB)I(] Pue SSaIS01J JIpny

PI/€107 LIOJHY LIANV ATIALAVAO - LIANV TVNIYILNI ALLIOTAd




Page 133

G a3eg

$1/£107 Moday g 1ourenQ) — 11pny [eusaiuy AoSuurey jo ygnolog uopuo

pue {Jo0YdS ArewLd UIAID) Pnong

*[00Y0S ATew LI UOUAAILL

‘[ooyog Arewiid [[1H pIojwels
‘{Jooyos Arewg aue] ALIQ
{fooyos Arewig weyreq
{[o0YoS ATRwiLI BIPURXA[Y

e & o ¢ o o

"panssi u2aq sey 11odar 1jeIp € yorym

Joj ‘npne Ayqoid e parojdwios pue g 1ourend) Suninp sjooyds SUIMO[[O] 9Y) PAISIA dARY 9M UR[J JIPNY [EWIU] 41/ 107 Y Jo wed sy

I 01 I [enueisqng £1/60/9C €10T AIng [00yoS Arewiiq SUInOQIoA
0 1% € payuury €1/60/€0 €102 AIng [00ydg Areuiliq usaID) ISoM
I 14 S A €1/L0/01 €107 Ke]N [ooyog [e1oadg 9[1AaN ayoue[g
PI/€10C
€ < I
A b:@- I Amv —Q>Qﬁ.—” Qﬂﬂﬁ- ﬂmmv—.-< .ﬁc Qﬁg —QQ-—UW
SUOHEPUIOIIY NUEBINSSY yodoy
Jo Jaquny

-uodar [eurj e panssi

7 Jourend) Suunp pue ypne A11qoid e palojdwod ‘sjooyos SuIMO[[0] oY) PANSIA JABY oM UB[d NPRY [UINU] €1/Z10T7 W Jo wed sy

I C 0 V/IN [enuelisqng €£1/60/0¢ ¢€10C aunf sagrey) ore) Ajunwiwio) pue [BNUIPISTY
0 L 0 VIN [enueisqng €£1/60/0€ €10T keI JUSWIFRURIA SONI[I0R,] — JUSWINI0I]
€ 1 0 V/IN [enueisqng €1/60/9C €10¢ aunf SIOIAISS JOQUISIAI
Ly < I yroday
(Ayaonay) [?A®I], JO [PAY] ypne jo aqeq PLL WPV
SUOIEPUIWIO0IIY | uondaaiq | dueinssy Jo 3je(q
Jo J_dqunN
V XIONddV PI/E107 LIOdH LIANV X THALAVAO - LIANV TYNYLLNI ALLIOTdA




1

Page 134

9 afeq $1/£107 Moday z 1auend) —11pny [eurouy AsguLel Jo ySnoliog uopuo

"9Jeanodeul ST UOTJBULIOJUT Juswdseuew JoJ viep 3untoddng
pue ‘pojdures sased ()] [[e ul Jjo paudis pue paro[dwod
10U sem sIyl Inq padojoAap udaq sey 19ays uone[noed D V Moday
sonmuwo)-qng Futuuejd 10 1oday S J01JJO Yl SUIMIIAII USYM
uone[ndEd Yl 18 JOO| P[NOM IOPEY Wed] dY) Jey) pagpsjmoudioe
SI J] ‘1o8euejy B JO JIoped] wed] ® AQ payuoa Apudpuadapur
pue po)Oayd oJe SUONe[NO[ED Yl JeYl DUIPIAD OU Sem AL
“ueorjdde oy £4q papiaoid suone[noed dY} pasn SIIJJO IYIO0
pue SUONB[RO[BD [IOUNO)) 3Y) PAsn SIDIJJO JWOS AQaIdym ‘SI3DMJJO
Suruuerd juaroyip oYy Aq pordope sem yoeoidde judlsisuoour uy
(SEF<TW O1) 0SETF
Jo 981eyd10A0 ue 0] Suiped] eare [BUISIUI SSOIS OY) JO peaIsul
UONB[NO[BD 2} JOJ PISN Sem BIIe [BUIIXD SSOIS ) ‘aseo auo U] o
pU® {Ge7‘7TF st 110day S J9013JO 2y} Ul papIodal
APoomooul Sem GZEZZF JO Pale[nd[ed JUROWE 9Y) ‘9SBD QUO U] e
‘padojonap eare
moau oYy AJnuapt Ajaed)o jou pip suejd Suimelp oy} Se pae[nojed
A[oreanooe sem D SY) JOYloym Jed[oun Sem J1 ‘OSBD QUO U] e
1R} pPAYSI[qeISd Sased ANfIqel] 1D O] JO uoneuruexy
$JJe1S JUBAD[AI [[B O} jOBq PAIBIIUNUILIOD A[IATI09)]
9q j0u Aew 2say) ‘dnoi8 uonewowddwi D TIL Y e padiSe
pue popiaoid ore suonedyure[d ysnoyie eyl paysijqerss uoddng
[eo1uyos], pue juowdo[aad(] ssauisng JO PeaH oY) YIIM UOISSNISIp
‘uonippe uj "pooisiopun Aj1es[o jou are sainpadoid ayy jeyl paysijqels
‘I9AMOY ‘s19011J0 Sutuue(d YIm uoIsSnoSI(] “JJeIS JuBAD[2I O} papiaoid
os[e sI 3ururer) pue AA9] ay) Suro9[0d 10} sainpaooid 2y uo sduepingd

*MOIAQI pUR SULIONIUOIN o
pue ‘uoneIOYy e
SIID [BIOARIN e

€1/710¢
sopiaoid juswinnsuy A1oimeis (D) >>u,.._ 2InONASLHU] ANUNWWOD) o s siothantbor p
L R TG LR L] BOO] PpuB [eUONRU m  souerduro U
"SL 18 $9AT102[qO [ed20] P [euoly yn HAWoOD e | ynjonayseayuy
. S ua1d ) sind 2ouerdwIod-UOU JO [9A9] YL, “YSU 18 $IANS[qO S JUA[O ‘seare Suimofjoy |  Apunuruio))
pajury oy nd 01 Se yons ore S[ONUOD [BUIAUI JO WSISAS OY) UI SIssouyeapy | W 19A00 O] uUdyeyiopun Sem JIOM 1Ipny [elodely
ALTTIGVNIVLSAS ® HOVId
dueInssy sSuipuy Lay/snyeyg adoog B3I JIpNY

V XIONAdddV

PI/€107 LIOdAE LIANV A TIALAVAO - LIANV TVNIAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 135

L 98eq $1/€107 Moday ¢ 1ourend) —11pny [ewsdjuf K&eSuurey Jo ygnolog uopuo

*J0102JI(J JUBISISSY Y] IO IDIAIG
JO peaH a1 Aq papiaoid aq ued syuodar JuswaSeuew Jo AovINdoe Ay}
Suipre3a1 sooueInssy -ojeinode pue pifea st eyep Sunuoddns sy ey
2INSUD 0) PAsIUNNIOS 3q PInoys juswdFeuew IoJ suodar SULIOIUON e
"S9SEO [ Ul Pasn 3q P[ROYS YoIym SI93Ys JOIB[NI[BD "T[D
oy jo Suudis Aq parojdwod aq pinod siyJ, ajeindoe pue 9[dwod
Suraq Se pauLIJuOd pue I91JJO PUOIIS B Aq paxydayd Apuapuadopur oq
01 suone[nojed "TID 2y} 10J ssao01d e juswojdwr pinoys juswaSeuejy e
*pooisiopun pue paurejdxs A[9ANI9)J0 are soinpadoid
jey) 2Insud 0) AZarens Juuren oY) JUISIAAI O} USAIS 2q OS[e pInoys
UOIRIAPISUOY) '$$9201d JUI)SISUOD puUe [BUWIO) B YSNOIY) JJels JUBAD[DI
[Ie 01 )oeq pareorunwwod Kprejngar oq pinoys dnoid uonejuswsjdur
TID TAL Y1 1e passnosip yoeordde posiSe pue suoredjue[d Yy e
:SMOJJO] SE dIe SUOTIBPUSWIWIOIAI T AJIONLT Y,
"s1001330 Surtuuerd [[e Aq A[juaisisuod pasn
st yoeodde oy 1Y) yoayo Ajfeoipouad pinoys juswoSeurpy "S1001jJo
Suruueid jfe 01 pajeOIUNWWOD pue 39S 3q PINOYS PIOYSIIY} OUBLIBA
e ‘ejep jueodijdde ay1 asn 01 PIPIOAP SI I JI “JeIS [[& O1 PIIRdIUNWWOD
pue passSe oq pinoys D Suneinojeo 01 yoeoidde juoiSISUCD Y e
"$1901Jj0 Sutuue|d [enpIAIpul JUBASRI 93U} Yim dn 9say) mojjo]
PINOYS pue punoj SIOLI 9} I0J SUOSeaJ 9Y) AJNUap! pinoys sidSeuey
‘paynoal pue pajednsaaul oq pinoys suonedijdde D [eloke
01 Jo 3unsdy ojdwes ino jo jnsar e se paynuapt suondooxs oy e
'SMO[]O] Se dIe SUONBPUIWIWIOIAI [ A1LIOLIJ Y,
JUSWUOHAUD
[onuod oy Suiaoidwui ur ISISSE PINOYS YOTYM ‘SUOIIRPUSWILIONI T AILIOL]
921y} pue | AJLIOLI] OM] PIsiel JABY 9m MIOM JIpne Ino JO J[OSaI B Sy

dueInssy

sSurpuyy £ay/snyejg

adoog

BaJE JIpNY

V XIONdddV

PL/ET0T LIOdHY LIANV A TIALAVAO - LIAAYV TYNYAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 136

g aded y1/€10z Hoday g 1a1end) — 1pny [BwIu] A33uLrey JO y3noiog uopuoy

[PON pu® AIepuodaS dJeJ BIPUBXI[Y) PIUILIEXD SIIUIDPEIY OM] dY)
J0J [1ouno) ay) Aq p[ay jou sem judwIde oy Jo Adod e quowadiTe
siy) 01 Aued e j0u ST [IOUNOD) 9Y) SY  ‘ISRIJ, AWDPLIY JUBADJI oY)
pue Fj( U1 U99M1aq SI AWIPeLOY Yoed 10J JUsWwoaIdy 3uipung oyl e
(VL)) wewaily
JOJSUBI], [BIDIOWWO)) pUE 3sed] Jedk GZ[ © pue JUsWaaIdy 3urpung
© SOpN[our SIY ], '$59001d UOISIOAUOD AWdpeIY 9y 10J (JJ() uoneonpyg
10J uoweda oy Aq paonpoid ud9q Sey UONEBIUAWINOOD pIepuelS e
:SMO[[0] Se ore s3uipuij Koy oy L
‘Awapeoy
ue JOJ 2IMONIIS JOUBUIIAOS OU) UIYNIM PIPNJOUl SI JOWIDA03 YT dUO
1811 159nD31 0) T 9Y) 10] SMO][E 10V SOTWIPeIY Y], ‘UdIp[IYd 31qi31[a 10
yuodsuen [00Yos-01-2woy JO UOIsIA0Id pue BaJe Ue U UOTIBONDI JUSIDIJJNS
Suunoos pue syuswAels (NHS) SPIdu [euoneonpd [erdads Jo Fuimaraal
pue Supyew oy se yons sonnp Aloymels (y) s.Auoyny [eoo] Y
Jo K19A1[9p 2y} 10 paxinbal ST yorym 1Byl puoAaq SOnuUIpedy pue [1ouno))
oy uoam1aq diysuone[al feuwrsoy Aue Joj juswarnnbo A101n3e)s ou st aIAY
“[IOUNOD) Y1 YNM JUSWAITE [9AJ] 9OTAIDS B JOpUN SIIIAISS OJUT
Anq Kew sonwuopesy Y ‘sAIWIapEIY SUIW029q S[ooyos oY) uodn $asEad
[1ouno) ayy Aq papiaoid sadialas oy Jo Auewr ysnoyiy “(VJ4H) Aouady
Surpung uoneonpyg oYl wolj APOuIp Sulpunj IDY) SATIIAI SITWOPRIY
*S[o0Yas asay) Jo siosuods ayy yim zom 03 sueld [1ouno)) ayJ, 103foxd
yoea 01 [eiA are diysiopes] pue UOISIA ISOyMm Josuods e aAey [[Im ‘S[OOYDS
Suruuoprodiopun ooejdor 0) dn 195 9soy) A[[eIousd ‘SorwOpeIY SWOS
*91e1S JO AIe12109S a3 JO uonednsut ay) 1e S;ooyos
Arewig jred [9ON Ppue “jred 2ureid[o) ‘oe3unySiN ‘S[IIyumoq e
pue {{ooydS 3y} jJo uonesnsur
oyl 1B S|oOYDS AIEpuodaS MIed eIpueXo]y pue YSIH OpISPOOM e

‘sjuowannbai A1o1mers Yiim soueridwo) o

pue ‘sjuowoguelie
Sumuodor  pue  mIIAdX  ‘SULIONIUOIN e

‘sjuowiAed pue axmipuadxy e
‘JuowoSeueul 19SSy e

19IR YOoIyMm snjels Aurdpeoe o1 3uruielqo sjooyos e L S RSO £1/2107
Ko3uurey XIS ur pajnsal ([QZ 1OV SOIWUSPEIY 9y} JO uononponul ayJ = 19A0D ¢ | sanwapedy
“}SLI 18 $9A1192[qO S,Jua1]d ‘seare Julmojjoy | - S3sSAd0Ig
payrury ay) nd 01 se yons ore S[ONUOD [BUIDIUI JO WIAISAS Ay} UI Sassauyeapy | OW 19A0O0 O] Udjeriopun Sem JIOM JIpny Jojsued ],
HIOIAYES S:H'TdOAd ONNOA ® NHIAATIHD
duUeINSSY s3urpuyy Ady/snyeyg adoog B3JR JIpNY

V XIANHddV

PI/E107 LIOdHY LIANV A TIALAVAO - LIANV TVNIILNI ALLIOTAd




Page 137

6 9%eq $1/£107 Moday 7 101end) — ipny [ewaiuy £9uLey Jo ySnolog uopuoy

Y Aj10ads 10u pip V1D [00YdS Arewinid YIed [SON 9Y) 18y} PAIOU Sem
) “Iojsuen 0) jjels JO [1e1dp 9yl sa1j10ads ¢ 9[npayos apiym IdJsuen o)
syuswainbax uoneuioyur Surgyels oy saryroads VI oY) JO [ 9[NpayoS e
{UOISIOAUOD JO 91ep aY) 1e 2oe[d
ur syenuod payads Ajuo Y1) Arewng jred [9ON oY1 ‘S10enuod
[enpIAIpUl PoJielop AIEpu0ddS JjJed BIPUBXI[Y 9[IYA “Awopedy
9U) 01 paid)suen) 3q 0] S1OeNUOD Y} SAJI0ads YID aY) JO Z 9[npayds e
‘pue| ay1 JO 9)IN P[OY221] Y} SUIpN[OX? ‘AWIPELOY A} 0} paLIdJsuen
9Q 0} 9)Bp UOISIDAUOD JY) UO 9IS UO [OOYIS Y1 AQ Py S1asse ay)
soy1oads (Y1) Qw23 ISJsuel], [RIOISWWO)D) Y} JO € I[NPayoS e
$91Bp UOISIOAUOD Z1(Z Toquiadag oy 03 juanbasqns ‘717 1oquuada(g
ur pasod sem [0OYOS dJIed BIPUBXI[Y JOJ JUNOOOR ) ‘PIso|d
u33q pey s[ooyos Arewild jred [SON pue AIepuodag jreq eIpuexay
J0J SuNoooe Yueq [OOYOS paulejuleW oY) Jey) palou Sem I YA\ e
‘papnoxd Ajjeorjioads sem jooydS
Arewnid yieq [90N 10J 9SnOH S JoyeIoIe)) JOULIOJ 9y} JeY} PA)OU Sem 1f
"dew e Jo uorsnjour oY) ySno1yy payynuapt sastwald oY) Yim oses| Jeak
GZ1 ®© Uo 1SnI] AWwopeoy 9oyl 0) pases] a1om sastwald s Jooyos oyl e
{ATepuodag yred eIpuexaly
pue Awopeoy A1) Foun oy s1 uonejuasardor Awrapedy uSLIND
nq ‘Awapesy A1) Faun oy sem siy) ‘1 1oz Joquardag ur AjreuiSuo
‘uoneiudsaldor Awopedy 9pnjoul O) POpUSLIE UG SBY pUB MIIADI
Jopun 1doy usaq sey wnioq sjooyoS Aafuurey ayl jo diysroquiow 3y, e
{dnoin Sulomg
12(01d Arewtid jred [9ON 9y Jo Sunosw auo AJuo 10J dqe[reAe
SJoM SIINUIW Jey) PIIOU SBM JI pUR ‘UOISIOAUOD AJepuodas. yIed
BIpUBXI[Y dY) I0J paysi[qelso dnoid [eulIO] OU Sem 1Y) ‘UOISIOAUOD
Arewnig yreqd [ooN 9y Ioj dnoin) Sunaolg 102(01q © Sem 219Y1 O[IYA o
{PAISA0D A[LIOYOR]ISTIES QIR ISIY) JBY) ULILJUOD O} d[qeun dIe
oM ‘papiaoid 9q 10U PINOd I$AY) SY SPIIN [euonednpy [eroads yim
uaIp[IYo 01 103dsar yim douerdwiod pue Ipo)) SUOISSIWPY S[OOYIS Y}
qim souerdwos axnbar juoweaiy Sutpung ay) Jo ) pue g Xouuy e

{(Arewiid yred
RuUBINSSY ssuipuy Aysnyeys adoog BaJe JIpny
V XIANAddV PL/€10T LIOdHY LIANV A TIALAVAO - LIANV TVNIAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 138

01 98eg +1/€10Z Hoday ¢ Ja1eng) —1ipny [ewduf Aa8uLrel] jJo ySnorog uopuo]

901y} pue | AJLOLLJ SUO PIsiel dABY 9M YIOM JIpne INO JO J[AS3I B SY
“PoIdA0D
A[uI0108)SNES 9J8 9SAY) Jeyl ULIJUOd O] JJqeun are am ‘papraoid aq
10U P[ROJ 3S3Y) S "SPIIN [euonesnpy [e1oads yam uaIppiyo o3 30adsar
Yim 2ouerdwod pue 9po)) SUOISSTWIPY S[OOYIS Yyl Yim douerdwod
annbax juowoaiSy Surpung [opowl HIJ 9P JO D pue g Xduuy e
pue 9)ep
0} papiaoid uaaq aAey SpI0d2I ou Ing pasanbar sem sFunsow asoy)
JO UOIRULIIJUOY) "[IOUNO)) PUB ISNI] 9Y] UdOMIIQ SInSSI Aue JA[0Sal 0)
sisnuy, Awopedy ayl Y sSunosw aepdn reyn3ar spjoy (uUonudAlaiu]
AlFed pue uonuaaald) 1010211 Ando@ oyl 1Byl pajels sem 1] e
‘papiaoid uaaq 10U
dAeY SSun2owW Yons JO SAINUIW ‘ISAIMOH "SITWIOPLIY Y] JOA0D 2Ining
o) UI [[IM SIY], °[ooydos 2yl Jo s1oadse [[e SULIDAOD ‘SJOOYIS [[e Je
soueuiojrad maraal sTunaspy JuswoAoldw] [0oydS Jey) pajers sem J] e
{dnoi3 Aunwwod e
£q p1q ®© 123811 p[nOO pue J9SSE ANURWIWIOD B 9q P[NOM SIY) ‘AWapedy
ue O] IoJsuel] 01 SI [OOYDS B Jey] JUAS ] U] P[OS 99 01 are A3y} jey)
JUQAD ) UT S)asSe Yons Jo asn 3y} Joj piq & jwqns 03 1y3ur e sdnoid
ANunuIwod SMo[[e pue ‘sjasse AJUnWWOd JO I9SISal e urejureuws o)
1 saanbar 117 10V WSI[e20T aYy3 ey} Judwaiinboi € se pajou sem )] e
‘arernrdoadde jou osye st Anjiqer|
1uaSunuoo e siseq eyl uo ‘Surpunj MBIPYIIM [[IM JUSWUISAOD) 3Y) Jey)
UTe)I2D SUBQW ou Aq ST OS[e 1] *AIurelsd Aue yiim JUROWE ue AJNuspl o)
aqrssod 10U SI 31 se sJunodoe ay) ut uoisiaoid e asodoad 03 3oa1100Ul 3q
PINOM 1 I YSII 9Y) JO IBME SI ddURUL] J1eI0dI0)) "PIAIIIAI SBM QUOU
nq 19013JO 9ddueul] pea] oy Aq paisonbar arom Ajuwidpur ue pue
OUBINSSY “JoW 9 P[NOM [[BJHIOYS B UonS MOy SSnosIp O) 3unoow e
QUIAUOD 0] 9213e AJUO [[IM AS) ‘Opew 3 UOISIOIP B PIROYS ‘S10BNUOD
I4d jJo 10adsar ur sy 01 sjuowAed moraal o) sueid ou juasard
j& oARYy Ady) Jey) 19119] B panssI g Yl S[IYM 'S[00YOS AIBpuodos
Supoa0d juowdaife (1Jd) oAnenIu] ooueuld dJBAL B SI Q1YL e
‘paLIgysue) 94 [[1M Jey) Jjels [enpIAlpul

RueInssy

sSuipuy Aysmerg

adoog

BaJE JIpNy

V XIANdddV

P1/€107 LIOdH LIANV A TIALAVNO - LIANQV TVNIILNI ALLIOTAd




Page 139

11 98eq

#1/£10C Woday g Io)end) —11pny [ewau] Ks3uLrey jo ySnolog uopuo

B Oy 10J JedA-ul Y3nolog oy} OJUI PIAIIIAI SIUAPNIS 250y} S1op1aold ‘J0URWLIOND] o
1si[eroads ut ooed pue Ajnuapr o3 “9opid {[oy [enutA oy jo asodind pue aamypuodxg
pue [euones Y1 no Sumas pado[oadp sem [esodol g 901AIOS [RINIUI UY o i
‘VSIN ‘$10e1UOD pue FunNOBNUOD) e
ays Jo sSuneaw d1porrad puaNe SIAJIJJO IJIAISS UOISIAOLJ JATIRUIONY e iSpPadU JUIPNIS JO JUSWSSISSY o
(VSIN) ‘Juowofeurw UoNBWIO] o
QoueI[Y oIForeng uopuo] yuoN oyl Aq podojoasp jromourelj ‘OUBLIOAOD) e
e y3no1y pajo[dwiod are siopiroid 90IAIAS JO SjuSwssasse Alend) e
:SMO[[0] Se dre s3urpulj Aoy ay ], g T b1/£107
K1 [e2o] 2 Alomers yum  soueidwo) e
“YSU Je $9Anda[qo ‘ uoIsiAoIg
s Juaro oy sind douei[dwoo-uou JO [9AI] YL YSH I8 $IANIa[qO S JudI[d :Seale Juimo[[oj |  UolEINpYH
pajury oy} nd 0) S yYons oIe S[ONUOD [BUINUI JO WIISAS OY) Ul SISSIUNEIA | OUP J9AOD 0] UdNelIopun Sem JIom Jipny [ dApewIdy
‘palIdjsuel) 2q 0) aIe
PUE [00YDS Y1 Je SISIX3 Jey) ‘smiels uoisuad pue ‘Opeis ‘9olAlos S1eak
‘a3e ‘vomisod ‘owreu Aq jyers |[e Suljop PINOYS S[NPAYSIS VID YL e
pue ‘uejd 199{01d ® unyim pausisse
Arespd 2q prnoys oimsop 1oy Anjiqisuodsay ‘pasopd A[LIoloejsies
U39q Sey JUN0dOE Y JBY) ULIJUOD O) PAule)dl pue paulelqo aq proys
UONBIUSWNOO(] AWSpEOY UB O] [OOUYDS Yl JO UOISIDAUOD 9I0Jdq
Pa19[dwiod 9q p[ROYS SIUNOIOE YUBQ [OOYIS PIUTBIUIBW JO INSO[O YL e
‘pousisse Aorendoidde
yser yoea oy Anjiqisuodsar ynm ‘rojsuen Awopedy AIojoejsnes e
103 pajardwoo aq 01 syse) [[e AJnuapt 0} ue|q 199f01d e dofoasp pnoys
dnos3 oy], ‘youwr K193 90u0 (IBI] Je) 390w prnoys dnoin 109foig
9yl ‘smels Awopeoy O) paulejuiewl WOl [OOYdS € JO IdJsuen Jo
ssa001d oYy sBeuew 0) paysijqelss aq pinoys dnoir) 10901 [PWIO] ¥ e
:SMO[[O] SB e SUOTIBPUSWIWOD3I 7 AILIOL] dy L
*S9[NPaYDS Y} UI PApN{OUT UOISISA [9POU Y} SMO[[O] I
ey} WIUOD 0) MIIADX pUe Jsni], AWSpedy yoea pue gy Yl usomioq
JuowI3Y Jutpun paaiSe ay) Jo Adoo e 3sanbas pinoys [1ouno) sy e
SMO[[O] SE SI UONBPUIWIWO0I3I | AILIOLIJ Y
“JUSWIUOIIAUD
10nu02 3y Juiroiduir uf ISISSe PIROYS YOIYM ‘SUOTIBPUSWIUIODDI 7 AILIOLIJ
dueINSSY s3utpuyy Lay/snyerg adoog BaJIe JIpny
V XIANAddV PI/€10C LYOdHY LIANV X TIALAVAO - LIANV TVYNIALINI ALLIOTAd




Page 140

Z1 98eq $1/€10Z Modoy Z 1a1enQ) —Jipny [euwsaju] A93uLrey jo ydnosog uopuo|

‘paljelp UJ9q 9ABY SIUSLIIAIBR [IAJ] IDIAIIS pUB SIOBNUOD PIEpURIS e
pue {uoneonpa Jo 3sInod
® Ul S)UopnIS [enpIAIpul doed 0} pasu oyl UO JIAIS oY) Aq paydadoe
SI siyL ‘suLd) juonbasqns Joj ejer-oxd uoyy pue ‘wed Jo uuR) J[OYM
oy} 10J 9IOY) Sem JUSPMIS A JOYIBYM JO SSO[pIeSar wd], uwniny
2y} JO d[oym Y} Joj adIoAul Ay, "TENOD Woly Jede ‘Wid) yoed 10]
paoeqd st Juapms oYy porrad o) 10j eier-01d pred are SIOI0AUT IOPIAOCI] @
‘UIIAY) PAPNIOUL S[IEIOP Y} JO AJBINDIE YY) WLILJUOD 0 PAro[dwiod
guroq $Y09YD Y WITFUOD O] IDIOAUN Y} JO UONBILJTIID JO IOUIPIAS OU
st a10y) “quowAed 1oy pasuLoyIne sem 9010AUI dY) Y3noyjfe Jeyl punoj
uo3e10() ay1 01 UOpuoT Iseq YUON pue ployuy ‘AsSuurey Jo 939[[0D
oy wolj ¢ ¢ST 1TF 10J €107 TI 8T PAIEP OI0AUL Uk JO UONeUIWIEXH o
‘SJuopmIs [enpIAIpul 0) papraoid aq
01 S9OIAIOS WIIJUOD 0} SIOPIAOId 3DIAISS O) PanssI SI D[I0U [EULIO] ON o
‘Juopnis yoeo AJnuapt
0] PAIBOO[[e SI (IoqUINN d[)) JOqUInRU JOUISJI JUIPNIS [ENPIAIPUI UY e
‘19p[0J pareulisap 2yl
Ul JOU Inq pPaure]al Sem SJUIPNIS Y} UO UOHBULIOJUT JBY} SOUIPIAD Sem
a0 ySnoyy ‘dn 39s usaq J0u pey siy ‘pojdures sjudpMIS ALY JO dUO
10J ySnoyi[e ‘OALIp paseys UOISIAOL] SANBUId)Y dY} UO paulejurew st
JUSpNIS 1Y) O} PaAle[al elep [fe Sulurejuod I9P[OJ JUIPMS [eNPIAIPUI UY e
Joyoen [[0Y
[ENUIA B UO PIUleuIeul SI 90IAIOS JY) O} PILIQJAI SIUIPNIS JO PIOAI Y o
‘901AJ0S SUOISSTWIPY 3y} Aq Siseq A[yiuow e uo
9OIAIOG UOISIAOIJ SANBUID[Y SY) O] PaiIojol oIe Sjuopnis [enplAlpu] e
‘130 paugis jou are spodai ay)
J[NSoI © S pue ‘1001JJO SUISSasse ay) Wolj dJep pue drmeudis e sasnbar
yorym ejduwiay podar JusWSSIsse pIepue)s ayj UO UONIIS Ou SI 1Y, e
‘arerrdoidde a1oym ‘suonepUSWIIOII dpN[OUl
puE JUSI[D SY} JOJ MIIAIOAQ JUSWSSISSE UB SIPR[OUI yolym “poday
JUDWISSISSY UONEBONPY SATBUWIAY JY) 10] pasn sI djejduwio) pIepuels y e
‘ySnotoq ay ur $S e saoe[d [00Yods JO o[ 3y} pue
SpPaau 112yl 0] anp punoj 9q jouued dde[d [0OYOS pauleuleW [EULIOU

ueanssy

ssuipuiy Ady/smyels

adoog

BaJR JIpNY

V XIANIddV

PI/€107 LIOdTY LIANV A TIALAVAO - LIANV TVNIIINI HLLIOTId




Page 141

€1 aded ¥1/€10T Moday 7 Jeureng) — Jipny [eussju] AoFuLrey jo ySnosog uopuo|

*JOPIOY 123pnq JURAJ[AI Y} AQ JudwiAed I10] pasuIOyIne 3uldq S9OIOAUL
oy 0} Joud “ooyd 9y Jo uonddwod uLuod 0) IdJeUBy UOISR[OU]
oy Aq parep pue JJo pouSIs 2q PInNOYS SIJIOAUI Y] 3IdoUepude
JUIPNIS puB SISINOD PIdITe ‘sjuopmis pajoadxd sureSe sadI0AUL
19p1a01d 991A13s [[e JO AJpIfeA 3y JO Fun[dayd 3yl Jo uona[dwiod uQ e
‘s1opraoxd
9J1AIAS JO 310D 2y Jo doue)dadoe 11ay) Jo s1ared Jo syuared s juapnis
9Y} WOIJ UOTIBULIIJUOD UANLIM Fulurelqo JopIsuod piroys juswadeusu
‘aIouLIOYIN] ‘uoSe3d) Syl O} Se [[om Se ‘siared IO sjuared s juopnis
oY} 0] papiemlo] 2q p[nOYs 2910u Y} Jo AdOd Y "JUSWISSISSE SPIdU
119U} UO paseq ‘sjuapmis [enplAIpul O} papiAoid aq 0) SadIAISS o1j10ads
) Jo 2onou [ewoj B Jo Jopiaoid 901AI9S Yy 03 [1ouno)) Yl Aq
UOTIBJIURWIWOD Y} J0] A[ajeIpawul pajudwajdwl 2q pnoys sssooid y e
‘podar oy 9)ep pue u3is 03 Juswaainbas
oy Jo way Fuistape $s900Id JUDWSSISSE JY) UI PIA[OAUI SIIDIIJO
JUBAQ[QI [[B O] PIJedIUNWUIOd 3G P[NOYS OWAW Y "I301JJO SuIssasse Y}
woij a)ep pue armeudis e Suinbar uonoas e apnjoul pinoys Hpodoy
JUSWISSASSY UONBONPH JANBUIAY 2} 10] pasn aje[dwid) pIepuels ay], e
:SMO[[0] SB I8 SUOIJBPUIWIWIOIAI T AJLIOL] 9Y],
‘sasodind SuLnioyuow 10y 19)SI13a1
10enuod 9jelodiod oY) ul PapIodaAI 3q UIY) P[NOYS S10eNUOd paudis
[V °"S9JIAISS [BUONEONPY dANeUId)[E JO uoIsiAoid dy) 10} [IOUNO)
o1 Aq pasn siopraoid [fe yim doepd ur sI joenUOd pauSis e ey
‘Kouafin Jo 1onew e St ‘painsud aq pinoys N ‘pAauswddur Ajewroy
SI J0 awayds j0[id B SB SONUNUOD IJTAIAS Y} JOUIOYM JO dAndadsol] e
:SMO[[O] SB SI UOIBPUIWIWOdAI | AJLIOLIJ 9Y],
“JUSWIUOJIAUD
[onuod ay3 Suraoxdwil ul ISISSE PINOYS YdIYMm ‘SUONBPUIWWIOIAI 7 AJLIOL]
9o1y) pue | AILIOLIJ UO P3ISIel JABY 9M YIOM JIpne Ino JO I[NSAI e SY
‘Apns 1o11d ® Suraq 991A13S ) 0) dnp Ol
paIouo A[[BULIO) U22Q 194 JO SBY 10BIIUOD OU JBy) Pajou Sem 11 y3noylfe

AUeINSS Yy

s3urpury £3ysmyelg

adodg

BaJE JIpNY

V XIANAddV

PI/E10C LIOdTY LIANV ATIALAVAO - LIANV TVNIALNI ALLIOTAA




Page 142

$1 98eg

$1/€107 Moday 7 Jouend) —1pny [ewsaiu] LouLel Jo ySnolog uopuo

opew Sureq smqunu qol pue uonisod 9y ur JnsSal pnom
wdsAs mau ay) Jo uonejudwdfdiur oy 18Y) paroadxa sem 1 ‘Z10Z
Arenuef g uo sioSeuew O] SIOIAIIS YH JO PeIH Y AQ paje[noao
o1om wWIISAS mau o) uo sajepdn pue SAON ‘7107 Arenuef
L UO 9AI[ OF O] anp Sem SSE SABH ‘WQISAS JOPUSA MIu Y],

2107 Saonunf 1 so appdn juawasvuvpy

‘papnyour 1aquinu qof ay3 InoyIm

possacold jou ore swiioj ased[ar Aouade dInsuyg e
pue ‘110doy aurpeoy

oy owr sioqunu uonisod qof oy Syerodioouy e
“uoday suijpesay Ayiuowr ayy uryiim sydeid

oyl Sunuoddns uonewlojul UdPpPIY SYl ISO[PSIT e

ssaadoag uy | 1107 $290100 ré :$90In0SY S A VH 18yl 1senbai pinoys wea1 YyH YL | T
judurddeuey)] 32.1MosY SXVH
LIANV INHWFIND0dd
€107 J2quiada( [ § :aunpwa( pasiaay “UOTIEPUSWIWOIA! [1/010T
“00fo1d qySauQ oY) Jo 1red se passaIppe aq [[im oY} sosIeI-0l pue s$31e10dIOdUl UOTIEPUSWIWIODAT STYL
i) Juowdo[aAsp gy'S uo aoed ur SUONOLISAI JUALIND Y UDALD

‘wAsks dvs oyl o1 suowpuswe soxnbar siy se sampasoxd ‘SIS 9Y) pue 21npasoid oy} yum aouerdwiod Wjuod
pasiaal oy ojur paydope sem uonisod SI se, ay) ‘sd[easown 01 pajdwod oq pnoys syooyd opdwes olpoudg
Aep O¢ a1 sapnjoul yorym ‘ssavoisd Sutuunp Jy'S aYp JO SULId) Uf '550201d 154009 193] ) 10§ SI3] IPA[OUT
“uons9[Iod pinoys pue pojuswo[dwil pue posI[eULIO] 2q P[ROYS
9AdIYOE 0} UudeMopun Julaq AJNANOE SUONID[[Od dAnOROId a1npadold K1A009y 1G9 oY1 ‘Ma1Adl Y1 SUIMO[[O]
Ay} PaqLIOSIp pue aImonns (JAJD) Juswadeuey 1qo eliodio) e
e 0] dA0W Y] 199[ja1 01 paysijqnd a1om sampasord 1Jerp oyl 149P ) UIIIM S3[e0sown polinbol JO JUSWSSASSE e
:€10C Y240 aopdy) Juswasvuvpy 9pR[oul P[NOYS MIIAJI Y], "palinbar aroym ‘papuswie

pajuduwa[dwy Apxed | |10z Jequadog ré PpuUe PaMIIAdI 2q PINOYS AINPa201d A10A009Y 199 YL | T

(s103qa(J AIpung) I[QBAIIINY SHUNOCIDY

SINALSAS TVIONVNIA AT - STDINOSTY HLVIOJIOD

snye)g/ssaigdorg

aulpeaq
uonejudwd[dury

[eui3LQ

Auonny

UOIEPUIWI0IY

2.

Z1/110T SUONEPUIWI0ddY Surpue)sing — 310day ssa1801J paprerdsq

V XIANAddV

PI/€107 LIOdTY LIANV X TIALAVNO - LIANV TVNIAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 143

G1 98eq

$1/€10Z Woday 7 Jaueny) —11pny [eussju] AoSurrel jo ySnolog uopuo

£10Z 12quiaydag :aunpnap pasiaay "“wasks SS¢ SAeH 2yl
Jo uonejuowsduir oY) uerd 03 Joquaydog prwi RIS O} pa[npayos

aIe SuoISSNOSI(] ‘SABH O] popileme UJ9q Sey JOBNUOD YL
€102 1sn3ny appdp) s324n0s3y uvwngy

*SaNSSI [B2IUYDI) JO UOIIN[OSAI Y}

pue sAeH YlIm SUOISSROISIP JO dWO0INO Y} uo juspuadop aq [[Im
SS¢ sAeH jo uonejuowojdwn pue Sunse) Jayuny jo Surwm ayp

"padueydun SUIBWAI MO[JPHIOA, UO ssad01d

Sunsixo oy] ‘woISASs MO[PIOA\ SABH oY1 0} Yoeq sn pajjol
aAey SABH ‘SIY) JO MIIA uf dwrn) ul jutod SIY) Je SWOIIIA0 JOUULRD
M YOIyMm SINSSI [BOIUYD3) PI[eaAal 10[1d Yoom 0m] PI[[ONU0d YL,
‘patoqid Buraq sem 11 o[Iym

‘WsAs SSE SABH 9yl 0] $S990e pey JYH WIYIIM JID1JJO U0 A[Uo
Jeyl palJiuopl pey om quawdFeuew YIIM SUOISSROSIP YSnoJyp

*SS € SAeH 01 spredal

JiIM pajuowd[dwil pue punoj SI UONN[OS [BJIUYIA) © [IUR WIISAS
MOIPIOM SABH 911 YiIM 2NUNUOD O) USYE] SEM UOISIOIP Sy InO
paLLed 3unsa) royung pue ‘parnbail se ‘popeiddn ore swoshs I
S [IoUn0Y) 9y} [NUR puB SINSSI 3Y} 0 USALS SI UOIIBIOPISUOD JOYMIN]
[nuR WaSAS Mau ay) Jo uonejuswsjdwr oy I9Jop 01 JudwaSeurW
AqQ opew sem uoISIOep B Juiesw aY) 0) juanbasqns ‘IoAOMOH
*PoLJIIUIPT SANSST Y SSNOSIP pue

aseyd uoneuswaiduir ayy yim ssaiSoid maraalr 0 7oz Arenuep
0T Uo sAey pue SI30IJJO [IOUNOD) JUBAJ[RI JY) UIIMIAQ POy
sem Suposw v -aFels Sunofid oy Fuunp PaynNUIPI SINSSI I9M
A1y} ‘IOASMOH -dsedfal [[nj paroadxa syt 0y Joud ‘z10g Arenuer
7T-L wolj syaam om] jJo pouad e 10j pajoyid sem walsAs oy,

"SS¢ sAeH woij eyep 2ourwiolad 10enxa 0) spodar umo
Jioy sonpoid 0) oqe Fureq smFeuew ur pue Spidly Alojepuewd

snje)g/ssaasoryg

ulpeaq
uonejudwddury

feuBuQ

Auong

UOBPUIUI0IY

B2 |

V XIANdddV PI/€10C LIOdTY LIANV A THALAVAO - LIANV TVNYALNI ALLIOTAd




9] a8eq +1/€10Z 1oday g 191ren)) —1ipny [ewaju] Aa8uLrel Jo ySnosog uopuo|

InO 19§ 9ARY SJunPowW YIS V71 Y} [Un pasifeul) a9 jouued
ueld p1/€1 V 219y paaoidde sem uejd onud) S,UaIp[iyd
2107 [Hdy 81 UO P[oY Sem NIWWOD) dNUIY) S,UdIP[IYd IS8T ¢

ayy 1o} pajuswepdwr aq pipoys ssa00id e ‘arouLIayIng

“3unoow JUBAS[DI Y} JO SIINUIW 3Y) UT pOPIOIAI
9q pinoys [eaoidde Apog SuIUIGAOD SUIWNOOP

€10C 1IN 9 0 2oueydoooe 01 spreSal yim Apog Suiursao
L UO Yons Se pajnunu - [enuejy [eroueul sjooyo§ Ad3uleH ‘g n 3 B ! PO pee! D
S oY) OoSIApE A[[BULIO] UQY) PIROYS SoNIWWO)) YL

‘Sunosuw 991IUIUIO)) JUBAD[DI

L Sunoow go paroidde pue pajnuru uone3afep Jo dwayds ‘1 BT (T 0 Bt e s e b T (e S

"9)IWWIO)) dNUI)) S,UdIP[IYD) djeredos e aAey J9FUO[ Ou 2I0JoIaY)
OM SOONIWWOD-QNS JUBAJ[AI pue g0 [eloudd [[nJ ay) Jopun "[enueA [eIOURUL] S]OOYDS ASSuLieH e

SOWI0D 2NU3D) S,UIP[IYD eyl OS SNIWWOd o) InO 3Injdnns-a1 pue Z1/110¢ 10] uejd EQEQO~0>0Q QNUID e
M JBY) PIPUAWIWORI ‘7107 12q0100 Ul SunIsiA usym ‘qaLSJO

‘€107 aUn[ 3050 o10pd() uFkSoun ) :[eaoidde pue ma1AI JOJ IPTWWOD) ANUIY) S UIP[IYD
parwuduy Apregq 10T AIng 1 oY1 01 pajuasaid aq pnoys suawnoop Suimo[[o ayL | b

‘uoneSo[a(J [eIOURUL] JO SUIAYDS [RUIDIUL PISIADY e

ANUI)) S WP A0IE) YINOS

IDIAYAES SHTdOAd ONNOA ANV NTIATIHD

Page 144

‘paurejdxa aq p[noys uonerIeA AUy -Jeurioj Jwes

9} Ul MIIADI JudwdSeuew I0J papiaoid uoneuIojul
€10Z 4290320 2mwpd) YH opnpoul 0) paudie 2q P[NOYs $90INOSAY SAVH Aq
ssaxdoad uy | [10T J2qQULAON Z pap1aoid 110doy Sui[pesq pue pIeoaIod§ douefeqg YL | €

JA0QE SV

‘UOTIBPUAWILIODdI 9] JO
uonejuswd[dwi [[n} 9y} JOJ S[BISIWI] Y} JO UoINRdIpUI ue apiacid
uay) [[IM 9m pue SIY) SSNISIp O} $]QT Arenuef PIA Ul NpRY
[euwIaju] yim 390w 0} ueld app 's110dal 2] UT UOTIBULIOJUT JUBAD[DI
3y} JO uoISn[OUl SUIPN{OUl ‘UONBPUSWILIOII JY} Ul PIsIes sanssl
oY) ssaippe 0] Sunue)s 210joq Suruunl SI WIISAS Y [nuUn Jrem
0} Paau [[IM A\ "€10C JPQWIAON 8] U0 2AI[ 03 0) pajoadxa SI
pue pajuswa[dwr Furaq Jo ssa001d oy ur ST WNSAS SS¢ SAeH YL

*€10T 4299120 2wpd) ¥H
ut[pea(q
uonejudwddury
smye)g/ssaasorg [euidQ fuoug UOIJEPUIUIWO0IIY | JOY

V XIANAddV PI/£107 LIOdTY LIANV ATIALAVAO - LIANV TVNIALNI ALLIOTAd




Page 145

L1 9%eq

$1/£107 Moday] 7 owen() — 3ipny feusaju] LoSuLrey jo ySnolog uopuor|

"9 TWWOD
ojerodio) o1 wodar Ixou ino ur orepdn ue opraoxd [Im
am pue ‘Apog Sutuidron) ayy Aq feaosdde 1o0j ‘uelq juawdooasg
Y1/€10C 113y} asi[eul 03 20U S UAIP[IYD) 3} JOJ Wl MOf[e [[Im
9M "€10T 1990150 G UO PIIedIunwuuiod aq [[Ia s1a3I1e) [eulj oy
eyl pauLIjuod Sey IoFeuey sIeax A[Jeq S A1L0yIny [ed0T YL

:SpUUWUWO)) JIpNy puiapuy

‘uaddey [[im SIY) USYM 0 SB T YY) WOIJ
Iedy O] Juniem oI 9p\ pasI[eul) Udaq 1K JOU dABY ISIY Ing
Ajuoyiny 18007 3yl YIm paaiSe uaaq 2ARY S)OFIe] [BUOISIAOI]

:£10T 4290120 77 10 sv awpdy) JuswaSoupy

“pastfeulj oq [[Im
ueld ¥1/£10C Sy yorym 3ummojioy ‘€107 AInf ¢ uo Auoyny
[2007] dyi Aq paaiSe aq [[Im aNUI)) S, UAIP[IYD) Y} I0] s1a81e) oy,

€107 [ $Z v sv appdp) uswaSvuvpy
‘s3uneow Apog SuIuidAon) 10] sajepdn JUSWNOOP pue
Asr1od Surredaid uaym pasn s1 81| sy Y "sarep Andxs noy) pue
ooeyd ur are ey sarorjod oy SISI| Jey) 19ayspealds paulquiod
B OABY QNUQ)) SUAIP[IYD Ppue [OOYIS QYL :SWAWNIO( ‘p
"€10T A1nf Jo pua ayy Aq
auop 3q 01 s1y1 Sjedionue pue vy ay) Sunreme ae ap, s1adie)

"9ONTUIWO)) 21IUI)) § UAIP[IYD)
oyl AQ paulIjuod 3q O) MU Y JO IDUBUIIAOS
9y} Funoodjje SUSWNOOP [[B JO SJUBAI[RI PINUIIUOD

snje)g/ssatdolry

urpe(q
uonejududury

[euidnQ

Auog

UOTJEPUIUWI0Y

LD |

V XIANAddV PI/€107 LIOdTY LIANV ATIALAVAO - LIANV TVNIALINI ALLIOTAd




Page 146

81 98eq

+1/€10Z Moday 7 1auend) —11pny [eurau] AsguLrel Jo y3nolog uopuor

0 0 0 0 0 20| I 5 O ) O 2 [ | PR (8 a0 AnfendsoH pue syin
0 0 0 0 0 € 0 z I € 0 Z I panwry 1S9131U] JO SUOneBIR[0a(]
jJudwrdopaAa(y
[euonesiuediQ pue 3[doa — 2ANNIXY JPIY)
0 0 0 0 ¢ I z 0 ¢ I z o | renueisqng dysAinda(g pue uonos9oid jo :on_
0 0 0 0 0 I 0 I 0 I 0 I o | renueisang ao1A10§ Adesay, reuonednooQ)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1nd Sunsa] 1915139y Jsny SuIsnoH  INpy
0 0 0 0 | ol o Jololo] o |0/l o] o] mnuesans QUILBDI SUIOHI1003G
: 0 0 0 0 z : . 0 7 : : o | renueisans $9SS2001J JUSWISSISSY SSIUSSI[OWOL]
SIDIAIAG SUISNOf] pue )Npy
0 0 0 0 | o o loJo]o] o ]|o]o]o]|mouesans Suipur ASUOpN [E3ai]
0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 o | renueisang puno{ Je)) :$901AJ0S Supjreq
0 0 0 0] ol e li1]lslel s l1]s]e] porrwmt Arenpopy o11qng £s3uLreH
Anpqeure)sng p aoejq
0 0 0 0 0 € 1 z 0 € I z | o | renueisang $$90014 uoneiond) z [erod JoJ aredwo)), jo asn
0 0 0 0 0 € 0 ¢ 0 € 0 ¢ o | renueisang S2INPa201g JuLIOIIUOIA] 15B1IUOD)
JUURINIO0IJ — SIVIN0SIY jesodio)
0 0 0 0 0 1 0 I 0 I 0 1 o | renueisqng | uonei3auf sadlAIes JOWIOISND) %P SIYAUIY ‘SONUIAY
SUIASAG [eIUBUL A3Y] — $32aNn0s3Y Ielrodio)
Suipueising | anp [sseadoig| -duwiy
'Sy JON uy JON | V/N jIB1oL | ¢ [4 I j@&oL| ¢ [4 !
I fyuong paruswajduwy £108a3e)
PAY]
SUOIJEPUIUIUIOIY DURBINSSY vAdYV LIdnV
JI0M\ NPNY €1/710T — AqeL d) mofoq
V XIANHddV P1/€107 LIOdTY LIANV A TIALAVNAO - LIANV TYNIYAINI HLLIOTAA



Page 147

61 33eg $1/£107 Hodoy z 1auenQ) —pny [ewdu] AoguLie Jo ySnoiog uopuo

SUOHEPUSWIWOD3] JO uoneuswddull parre)s aaey sI901JJo — ssaafoag uy

“U9YB) U33q 10U Sey UOIJO. JAI)RUID)[E ‘PISSIIPPE UISQ JOU SBY UOHBPUIUIOIAI Sy} — pjudwdjdun JoN

*){SLI 3y} SSQIPPE O} UINe] U Sey UOIOB JATRUINE IO ‘WwsAs oy ut saueyd o3 anp sjqedtjdde 128uo] ou St UOHIEPUSWILIOIAI Y] — /N

*sasuodsar Jo ojduues e payJLIoA ARy 9p “SUOHEpPUSLLILIODAI JO ssauFoid oy uonesJnIad-§[as YSnosy) paredipur sey sIad1jo — pajyudwdduy
0 0 I 0 0 | 8 | s |st 66 | s |9z | 8 [eloL
0 0 0 0 0 é 0 ré z 0 z o | [ehuelsqng swweidoid sy29YD YiesHy
0 0 0 0 0 0 ol o 0 0 |0 | o] lenusisqng swwreI3old uonessa) unjowrg
Yj[e3H dqnd
0 0 0 0 0 9R| SO [l € 9 | 0| €| ¢ | PuM A19Jes % YieoH
0 0 I 0 0 0 Jo]o T ali 0 |8 1| o] TRRUESANS AienQ) el

Buipueysing | onp [sseaSoag| ~dar
S JON u] ION | VN |[®10L} € (4 [e30L | € (4 !
1 Ayuonag payududdury Ax03338)
[PAY]
SUOI}EPUUIUIOIY DUBINSSY VALV LIdnV
V XIAONAddV PI/€107 LIOdT LIANYV A TIALAVAO - LIANV TYNIALINI ALLIOTAd




Page 148

0z 98eg

$1/€107 voday] g 191end) — 1ipny [ewaju] A38uurey jo ySnosog uopuo|

€10Z/01/1t
Aq 19uenui 9y uo paysiiqnd pue Sunoow 1xau J19Y) J8 PIROE IOUBUIIAOD

uoneutojuy Aq paaoisdde aq o1 ‘c107/01/L1 Aq pavepdn Adijod :opedssuur],

‘uonestjqnd a10jaq
Ka110d 9y jo uoisioA 1sare] 9Y) uo pajepdn pue paplodsal 3q [jim Adijod
3y jo eaoadde pue mataal JO sajep Ay, “JjeIs 03 J[qe[leAR SpeUI pUE JouRIUl
oy uo paysiiqnd aq [[Im swnuesuw Y ul Inq [eaoidde o preog 95UBLISAOD
UONBWLIOJU] XU 3Y1 01 08 01 pa|npayos ua3aq sey £o1j0g O YL IUSWe)s
Kotjog Aouoredsuel] ele B ul pauipno aq [jim Aouoredsuen eep O3
yoeoidde ino jey) uwmny oY) ur awnawos paadxe ) Aq uoneynsuo)
JuwWuIA0D 9yl jo uonesiqnd Fuimolioj 1eyr sduAIRJAI I ZT10T
9ouls sagueyd Jo Junodde axel 01 parepdn usaq sey Adijod Anengd) ereq ayL

:€10Z 13q032Q 3epd() jusuradeuey

*€10T J2quiaydag (¢ JUIpeap pasiAdy

‘€102 Joquiardag jo pua ayy £q parepdn

aq [im Aoijod ayy Jey) paredionue st 1 ‘siy) Suimojjoj pue ‘uoos paonpoid
3q 01 pa1adxa aIe MIIAII JUSWUIIAOD) Y] JO SINSaI Y], "€]0g Anf jo pua
Y Aq suInjar A10)mels 301AIS uaIp[iy) 9jdwos o3 yuswasnbal sy pue
‘Korjod urgum ajesodioour 03 pa1dadxa 11 Yyoym Aduaredsuel) UO UOLBINSUOD
JUSWWISA0N) 3Y) JO sinsar ay) uo Junmem 921AJ9S 3yl 01 anp parojdwod
uoaq 194 10U sey sup ‘Adrjod Anjend) BRQ Y} MIIAI O} UINBLIIpUN
u9aq Sey NJOm SI[Iym eyl paulijuod sey JoSeue]y 9OUBWLIOMS] Y]

*[011U0D UOISIaA JO asn 9y ySnouy) ‘52 paureras
9Q p[nOYs SIY) JO 90USPIAY  JJRIS O} J[qe[leAE

10T gpew pue AJessooou oloym porepdn  ‘Ajjenuue
ssa1gdoxq ug pquadag £ ré pamaiaal aq pinoys Aorjod Anend eeq oayr| I
AypenQ) ere(q
JALLOADIAXH AATHO
utjpeaq
uonejudwdfdury
snje)s/ssaidoa g euwisuQ Auoug uonBpUIWWOdY | JOY

€1/Z10Z SUONEPUIWI0dN Surpue)sing — j10day ssaa3oig papeld(q

V XIANHddV PI/€107 LIOdT LIANV ATIALAVAO - LIANV TVNIALNI ALLIOTAd




Page 149

1Z 9%eg $1/£107 Boday z iouen() —ipny [ewiau] KaSuLrly Jo ySnolog uopuor|

PayiuI’] NS}EWYO], YN0 ], 3JHOPR( JO JIQUIIJA]

*SULIT] Joquiawt S)I pue TLL( Jo 21monns [eda] ay) Jo uonduosap pafie)ap € I0J IN0qe N 03°9NI0[ap MMM
995 aseald ‘sannud juopuadopur pue ojeredos A[eSo) ore sulny soquowr asoym ‘ooyuerens Aq panuwrn Auedwoo oreaud jn e ‘(TLLA,.) POMWIT
nsjewyo], SYonox, aNIo[(] JO WLI) JaqUIsW WOopSuly panun) 9yl ‘g1 MO JO AIeIpisqns € ST PAIWIT NPNY [BWIANU] J0193S dI[qnd SYONoL 2 aNojeqg

"Z9158S¥ ON Sa[eM pue puejSug ut pasaisi3ay ‘wopSury panuf “YLE VPO UOPUOT “1300S MIN SN | ‘aSNOH [[1H :301J0 pasaisidoy
‘paNwII] NIpNY [BUIAU] JO1I3S J1[QNJ YONOL 29 INIO[3( 01 SAOUIIJAI a1t INI0[I(] 0 SIIUIIIYI JUAUNIOP SWY) U]

€102 13010
uopuoy

PayI JIPNY [BUISIU] 1003G JN[qNJ AP0, 73 MOPA

‘pIeog SpJepuR)S ddURINSSY pue JIpny [euonewiu] syl Aq panssi (000€ AV SI) siuswadeSuyg sourInssy uo prepuels
Jeuonewu] 3y YPim opqeredwos jou ST 110dar JIpNe [BUINUI INO Ul POPIEME [AD] SOUBINSSE Y] "WIISAS [ONUOD [BUINUI I[QRI[II B JO JoUBUdUICW IY)
Joj weynodun st juswafeuews £q SUONEBPUIWILIOIDI N0 Jo uonejudwd[dwr A[awn pue 9AND3JJF “SIUSWND0P 3SAY) Jo NONUAYINE 3Y) 2INSUI O pue YIOoMm )Ipne
Ino jo sasodind ay) Joj suornoesuer) pue sp10521 SUNUNOIOE 1Y) O) SSIDOE [[NJ sn apiaoid 0y yuowaFeuew uo AJa1 oM Yons se pue dduedIIuSIS pue ysi1 1531ea13
Jo Buiaq se yudswaeuew Aq pILJHUIPI Se Seare U0 Snd0J O) paugisap are sampadoid jipne [euldu] pnelj JAIsnjjod jsureSe jooid aq jou Aew pue ddueInsse
JInjosqe 10u pue Sjqeuoseal apiroid A[uo ued [ONUOD [eUINUI JO SWISAS PUNOS USAT ‘santre[naun Jo pneyj jo Aijiqissod Y 0) spredar aaey o) pannboa
are “yiom Jay) Sunonpuod ul ‘siolipny  K)re[nSoLr I0 pnelj JO SIOUBISWNDID [{e AJnuopl o) uodn paIjal J0U ‘S[ONUOD [RUINUI Ul SISSIUNRIM pue syiSuans
[[e £ynuapi 03 uodn pat[a1 aq Jou pinoys Npne [eusdul Aq pauriogiad y1om pue JuswaSeurws Yim s1sa1 sonire[nSaul 1oY)o pue pnely Jo Uond)3p pue uonuassid
9y} pue S[ONUOD [RUIAUL Jo WINSAS punos e 1oj Aujiqisuodsar oy tey) asiseyduid opy  soonoeid juswoSeuew punos jo uonesydde oy 10§ sonipiqisuodsal
§ JuowoFeueus 10J ANINSQNS B S UK E) 3] JOU P[NOYS PUR JOU SI SOM Jipne [eussjul Jo dueunsojiad sy, pajuswajdwr are £ay) 21052q wedur [[ny J1IdY) 10§ NoK
Aq passosse 9q pnoys siuawaAoidu 10§ SUOTIEPUIWWOIIY “dpewt 2q WS ey SudwaAodwl [[e 10 ISIXa 1By SISSIAUNEIM 3Y) [[€ JO 1dwels dAtsuoyaidwod
e A[lIEssaaU 10U Jfe pue IOM JIpne [BUIIUL INO JO 3SINOD Y} SuLINp UOHUSYE JNO O} JWed Yomym 3soy) A[uo are podor suy ur pasiel sIoNew dyJ,

*M0[23q N0 135 suonewI| Y} Jo siseq ay) uo paredasd sy yorym uodai sty Joy Anpqisuodsor sye) o

Apqisuodsay Jo Judurdje)s

V XIAN3ddV PI/€107 LIOdT LIANY A TIALAVAO - LIANV TVNIIINI ALLIOTAd



Page 150



Page 151

091'801L3 6 6 6 IvViOL

palidxa

pabpon [eaddy sey N sy}
u| uiewsl oy ybu Ayjiqeuieisng
psssiwsig ! I b ey} uonebayy pue aoe|d

€L/¢0e 4/9

Buidaayy

uayeuapun awl) Jeinbaulj

Bumeg piepueis I I 3 jo uoiebayly

€1/2¢10¢ 4/9

wiejo

pabpon [eaddy Wausq seinbaun |
0} uoiNQqUIUoD BuisnoH
psssiwsiq I L F jo uonebs|y pue s)inpy
uonoy Aeuydiosig
Buipuad x £

091'8013 fessiwsiqg x | 9dInIeg
Buruiepn pneiq yeuag | s,a1doad BunoA
USHUM [euld X | S S S jo uoyebejy pue uaipjiyo

awn

SIOM Ul Ssauisnqg
ajeaud e Buiuuna BAIIN0aX]
psssiwsig I L S jo uonebajly |  jeIyD Juelsissy

uonebjjseAu]
Areuydiosiqg €10¢/60/0¢€
(umouy] y) awoonQD 0} Joeiqns je usaoud | pajebiseaul

(3) enfep Areuydiosiq | s199440 4O "ON S8sed JO 'ON | Sase0 Jo "ON | adA] Aueinbou) 8jeloloaliqg

€L/¢10¢c NOHd 4/88 ¥1/80/1€ -E1/¥0/1L0 QALYOILSIANI SAILIMYINDIHYI - LIANY ISNOH NI

g XIAN3ddv




Page 152



Page 153

Haringey Council - Audit Committee

Disciplinary Case Analysis July 2013 to September 2013
Introduction
The information in this report is taken from SAP, covering the period July 2013 -~ September 2013.
The data is based on Haringey Council employees who
* hold Permanent, Temporary or Fixed Term Contracts
Note that this data excludes:
¢ Casual or Sessional Workers

e Schools
e Agency Workers

Legend

Adults & Housing AS

The Children & Young People’s Service C

Chief Executive CE

Corporate Resources CR

Public Health PH

Place & Sustainability PS

Strategy & Performance SP
Haringey Council HGY

The Council’s Disciplinary Procedure is considered as a tool to assist in good management and not
solely as a means of imposing sanctions or setting out procedures leading to dismissal.

The procedure aims to:

e Allow managers to address issues of unsatisfactory conduct and seek improvements in
behaviour
Ensure that employees covered by the procedure are treated fairly and consistently
Ensure that proper and adequate procedures are observed before any disciplinary decisions are
taken

¢ Help and encourage all employees to achieve and maintain standards of conduct, attendance
and job performance
Maintain discipline essential to the delivery of high quality services
Protect the health, safety and well being of staff, service users and members of the public
Safeguard the integrity and good reputation of the Council
(Disciplinary Procedure September 2012)

| of 6



Page 154

Disciplinary Cases

This section looks at the number of formal actions taken against employees under the disciplinary
procedure.

Disciplinary Cases by Directorate

Directorate Cases Open Cases Closed No of cases No of employees
AS 6 8 14 10
C 4 3 7 7
CE 0 2 2 2
CR 0 0 0 0
PH 0 0 0 0
PS 8 1 9 9
SP 0 0 0 0
Total 18 14 32 28

Please note that the total number of cases is 32, but this only represents 28 employees. The reason
being is that one employee can have more than one case in the same period. For example, an
employee’s dismissal could count as one case and their appeal as another.

o Adults & Housing has the highest percentage of disciplinary cases against its workforce at
1.5% in this quarter

The following table looks at the stages of Disciplinary cases.

Stages of Disciplinary Cases

Stage Cases Open Cases Closed Total %
Invest. - not suspended 3 5 8 25
Invest. - suspended 10 9 19 59
ET 1 0 1 3
Appeal 4 0 4 13
Total 18 14 32 100

¢ 18 cases remain ‘open’ at the end of this quarter.

20f6



Page 155

The following graph looks at the number of disciplinary cases open each quarter.

Discliplinary cases open at the end of each quarter

25
22
20 \_ﬂ\
19
: 18
15
10

Q3 - Oct-Dec12 Q4 - Jan-Mar13 Q1- Apr-Juni3 Q2- Jul-Sep13

The following table identifies the outcomes of the 14 cases that were closed in this period.

Disciplinary Case Outcomes

Invest. -
Outcome not
suspended

Compromise agreement 0

Invest. - Invest. - Invest. -
suspended  appeal ET

0

Total

(=]

Dis. Appeal Dismissed
Dis. Appeal Part Upheld
Dis. Appeal Upheld
Dis. Appeal Withdrawn
Dis. Dismissal
Dis. ET Dismissed
Dis. ET Withdrawn
Dis. Final Written Warning
Dis. No Action
Dis. Other
Dis. Relegation/Demotion
Dis. Resigned
Dis. Verbal Warning
Dis. Warning & Sanction
Dis. Written Warning
Escalated to next stage
Suspension Lifted
Total

O O O - OO0 0 00O 000 O0C OO OO
© - OO NMO OO O WO oo woo o o
O O 0O 0O 0O O 0O 00O OO0 OO O OO O OO
O O 0O O OO 0O 0O 0O OO O OoOOoODODO OO O
-~ 0O =4 N O OO0 O NOOOWOO O O O

sy
-

3ofé6

%

o O O O o

o o

100



Page 156

This table displays reasons for Disciplinary action against employees.

Reasons for Disciplinary Cases

Reason Cases Open Cases Closed Total %
Assault 0 1 1 3
Attendance 0 0 0 0]
Behaviour 6 5 11 34
Fraud / Theft 5 0 5 16
Misuse of resources 1 2 3 9
Negligence 2 4 6 19
Other 4 2 6 19
Total 18 14 32 100

e The highest cause for disciplinary action was for Behaviour at 34% and Other Reasons at 19%

This table looks at the ethnic breakdown and gender split for Disciplinary cases

Disciplinary Case employee representation

by Ethnicity and Gender
Female Male All
Ethnic Class = Total % Total % Total %
BAME 12 55 10 45 22 79
White 2 40 3 60 5 18
Not Declared 1 100 0 0 1 4
Total 15 54 13 46 28 100

e 329% of the workforce is male, but the male representation with disciplinary cases is higher at
46%

o 37.8% of the workforce is female BAME, but the female BAME representation with disciplinary
cases is higher at 55%

The following table looks at the ethnic breakdown across grade bands.

Disciplinary Case employee representation by Ethnicity and Grade Band
(T = Total no. in grade band, WF = % of total disciplined employees)

Ethnic SC1-SC5 SC6-SO2 PO1-PO3 PO4-PO7 P08+ TOTAL

ae Goup T WF T WF T WF T WF T WF T WF
BAME 8 29 6 21 4 14 4 14 0 0 22 81

White 2 11 2 7 0 O 1 4 0 0 5 19
Total 10 39 8 28 4 14 5 18 0 0 27 100

* 1 employee in grade band SC1-SC5 did not declare their ethnicity

40f 6



Page 157

Suspensions

This table shows a summary of suspension cases.

Summary of Suspension Cases

Case status Total
No. of cases heard 10
No. of cases not concluded 9
No. of cases not concluded - leaver 0
Total 19

Timescales (no of days) of Suspension Cases

The table below looks at the 19 suspension cases and identifies the no. of working days each case has
taken. If a case has not concluded by the end of the quarter, the number of working days is calculated
from the start date of the suspension to the end of the quarter.

The table also identifies by directorate, the average number of days suspension for all cases, the
maximum days for a single case and the number of cases heard within that period.

Timescales (no of days) of Suspension Cases

Avg. days Total
Drectorae | 160 35 Yoo a5 0% mes daye OL0W  pAC cases
AS 4 |3 | 0o|o|o/| 7 | s 55 13 5
c 1 | 22|10 6 | 78| 118 | 190 | 2
CE 1 0o o0 1 0 2 23 118 191 2
CR 0o 0 0 0 o0 0 0 0 0 0
PH o|oio|ofo]| o 0 0 9 0
PS 3 i1 | o [ o {4 | 155 39 70 1
sP ol o|o|o]| o] o 0 0 0 0
HGY 9 6 2 2 0 19 1486 78 191 10
Tollcases| 4 | 4 | 0| 2| o0 | 10

On average, 78 days were spent on each suspension case within the quarter.

50f6



Page 158

Suspensions (continued)

The chart below illustrates the average and maximum number of days taken for a suspension case by
Directorate for the quarter.

Average and Maximum Days Taken for Suspension Cases by Directorate

250

190

200 191 191

150
493 118 118

100
70 78
55

50 el

AS C CE CR PH PS SP HGY
Avg. days Max. days

The chart below looks at the number of suspension cases per quarter for a rolling year and highlights
Haringey Council’s average number of days per case.

No. of cases and average days taken per case

by quarter
200
160
120
82 81 78
80 54
40 23 15 22 19
o .
Q3 - Oct-Dec12 Q4 - Jan-Mar13 Q1- Apr-Jun13 Q2- Jul-Sep13

Total Number of Cases Average Days per Case

The average number of days suspended for the quarter was 78 with a total of 19 cases. 9 of these
cases remain open at the end of Quarter 2. '

6of6



e——

Adueby

a xtpueddy

HH 10 PESH wiualy| enueney S 0eL3 JuBWrISeY BUUSY ¥102/S0/LE{ €102/80/50 wuau) HH 30
Koueby Aougjnsuog
awwesboid wesn ewsabeusyy 118
uuojeH aJBjlapm ay) abeuep joslosd /anuaAey [4 00S3 86p3 obipyy ¥102/E0/LE 2102/60/1.0 juBjinsuo) 30
Aouaby Asuejnsuo)
swweiboiy juesn Juswabeuep 118
uuojey asejjlam 8y} sbeuey 1oefoud /anusasy [ 00S3 abp3 ofipu; v 102/E0/LE 2102/60/L0 jugynsuo) 30
“Apisqns ybnoiy)|
BWOJUI INO 8SBOIOUY JBYLN] UBD OM BI8UM 178
seale Uo SaSIApB pue wiejo Apisgng g Jno usym
SIONUOW “AJUO SISBQ [BUOISEI00 UB UO SHIOM anueasy| g se 2ev3 pefojdw3 jles £102/L L/0E 1102/21/10 juB)Nsuo) 30
ssa)dope
aAnoadsosd pue suelpsens) (B19edg se siesed seliwe g USIPIYD
SJ9ISO} PUB SBAIE|3) JO JUBLUSSSSSE 8y} Ul Wes),
uondopy Buiuoddns sossesse juepuadepuj 8NUBASH| 20l | Sve3 pehojdw3 yog £102/eL/Le 1102/90/10 jusjnsuo) SdAD
sJejdope!
aAnoedsosd pue sueipsens) fetoadg se siesed SelIES B UBIPIYD
S18]S0) PUB S3AIB|D) JO JUBLUSSBSSE U} Ul Wes)
uondopy Buipoddns tossesse juepuadepu) anuansy| zol| She3 peAojdw3 jles €L0celL/LE 1 102/90/10 jugynsuoH SdAD
(BUIUOISSIWWIOY) 9ouBINSSE -
liiwed @ uaJp|iyo
j[enb punose suom jo swwreiboid e Jeaep o anusaay g 00v3 pafoidw3 yeg €L02/LL/0E]  £102/60/L2 €102/L0/S1 jugjnsuo) SdAD
_.n1u "SoulipEeP UIYIM 30M 318|dwod 0} painbas P17 81e.I00SSY (18pJem saljiwred @ uaipiyo
.. 82nosal jeuoiippe - 1oy Aaljod §S01 anuaneyd| gz 0523 - peAojdwig Jleg €102/L1/92 €102/80/42 jueynsuo) SdAD
= (buusiso g uondopy) sjuewedeld [23)]
m g Buloissisiwwoy SoH 10} J8A00 wuelu; snusasy S 8153 {euuosiad Aienjoueg v 102/E0/LE £102/v0/62 wiusy)|- ek eIl SdAD
N - uoIsnjou|
al 10SIApY Juswenoidwy [00YoS anueAsy ] 00S3 peAojdw3 e 102/E0/1LE 1 102/60/1L.0 wuajul| P spsepuelg j00yos SdAD
Adueby .
HH SI00Ydg jo pesy wusjuj anusasy S 0093 juawitnuoey Buuad v102/E0/LE|  E€102/2L/LE £102/20/10 wusju| SdAD
[eio}
108fosd oipey Ayun eyj uru pue ebeueyy anuaAsy [ u) 00023 pekojdw3 jias ¥102/L0/1L€ €102/80/10 JuBynsuod =] SdAD
uojjedioiued Ajunwwod pue YinoA Jo pesH anuaaey S 09v3 pekojdw3 yeg ¥102/€0/LE|  €£102/04/#0 £102/L0/10 wusjui 13d SdAD
JuswyinIoay
uewsbeuey souewLOued 8nueasy € S1S3 JBDJBN MOIDOOM|  E102/LE/LO0]  €102/LL/LO]  €102/60/0E £102/20/E1L 13d SdAD
‘uojidadsui Aioyeinbeus Adusby 13d
oy} Joj wey) asedsid pue SOA 84} MOIAGI O [ended [4 S6S3 juswinudey oewy ELOCCL/LE|  €102/60/42 £102/20/£0 jueynsuo) SdAD
uoddng yosees oex3y
Anureg % Bunpom pejesbeyu jo pesH wusu| [eyded 14 S.93 B Wusjuj yed usely £102/21/90 £102/20/80 wuaju| - SdAD
‘yorosdde buiuoiISiLIWod
B 0] 8AOW 0} UOISIACI] BAlBWS}Y Aouaby 13d
PUB SOA ‘uino, Buuedsid yym isissy dnueAneH| v olg 0£93 jusuniniosy oewy €102/LL/0E]  €102/80/0E £102/20/12 ugjnsuo) SdAD
s@oe|d spjo Jeak g o} Ajijenb {oAB)) lequinu
Buirosdwi uo spes) v - £1.02 wouy swwesbosd 00°023+ joy 10§ Bunem 13d
PIO Jea, g Joj saoe|d padojeasp £1-21.02 8anuaasy [4 0S€3 - pehoidw3 jieg v102/€0/LE]  £102/E0/0€ 2102/s0/1LE uBjnsuod SdAD
$UTITSY Ppakojdw3 Jjes,
10 ‘lepden| xoom nJew sjqesjjdde
sljouaq @ yusawoabebua 10} uosesy ‘enuanay| sad |aley Apeg §1 10 Aouabe Sieq|  @ep pul diea pu3 ajep uels snjelg Hun ssauisng ng
pu3 [emay| pasiasy reuibuo . :
woy| sheqg ] Aoueynsuod
Buspungy J0 aweu
Sjuejnsuog Jo isi




- m———

‘uodans

Bunpiom sjiqow pue joenuod skemybiy jo
uonesijiqoyy wes} Buiures} pue | ¥N 40} uolnjos
1| ‘oseqerep jesse Buipjing ‘(uuyuoD) asemyos

Aoueby

EELTIVETS
aupuoi4 9|buig

q xipueddy

J0j Hoddns pue 22o1Ape is|[eloads SapiAold anuaney € 0623 juewnjtruoey Buued ¥102/€0/LE £1002/50/50 UBJNSU0D S®d
*S]S00)
pue asueunopad Buiueeo jeans Apejnoped
puE JOBJJUOD BIOSA 8U} JO 18P 0} SSWOINO! S80IAIRS
By} ssasse 0} pepusix'gLog Bny pus 0} aulpuos aibuig
anp 1oBIJUOD BI[0S/ JO MEIASI B PUE J0BIUOD) Aoueby juswyniosy
sAemybiH auy Jo uonesiiqow ey} Bussyeuly anuaey € 0£S3 wusjyj s186p0 £102/L1/80] €102/80/LE 6002/10/50 jugjnsuo) S%d
syedouyda | je aduBULONSd {BlouBUIY EERIVESS)
aAoidwi 0} suondo uo adiape uedxa epiaod o1 anusAsy ! G8EJ MN suonnios 0dd €1022H/LE £102/90/10 ugynsuoni  Auedoird ajelodiod S%d
A ERIINETS
abeyels epinoid pue meinel Auedosd Aebuuep Aoueynsuon) Ayl aoi. aesodion
8y} Jo sweeu}s Hom Ajuoud yim Isissy enusAey € 08€3 uows :pehodw3 yos £102/2L/LE|  £102/60/0E L1L0Z/0L/10 gy nsuo) S%d
P17 Adus)insuon) CERITNETS
peos ybiH €9 pue 1o8ioid suindg o) pejeial g ubisaq Auedoid Auedoig ajesodion
poddns pue aoinpe ‘siis Apadoid isyeloads renden 2 03 :peAojdw3 48 £L0c/eL/IE]  £102/60/0€ 8002/14/10 JuBjNsuoy) S%d
Aduebyy Jusuntrnuosy 10810
P sjoeloid Joley Qv wusju) Snuaasy S 0523 wusju| s186pO) £L02/2L/Le]  €102/L0/S0 £102/10/£0 wus| . S®d
© Adouaby Juswyinuoey e
+— luswabeuepy JuswdojeAs( Jo pesH Wuelu| anusaey S 0v93 wusjul suebpo £1022H/LE £102/P0/51 wuaju i S%d
yoeousdde uoljeiauabail buisnoy Adueby jusuniniosy o
w s AeBuue no jes o} ABajells B dojanep oL enusAsy 14 G683 uosuepueg Aquejey v102/30/.2 £102/50/22 Juglnsuoy —— S%®d
J 1EMBUB) '3 JUBIISBAU) BUISNoY
© 0} yoeousdde s j1ouno?) dojeaep dioH:SIVH e
po_>mm :ybnosoq 10§ ABajens ymoiB olwouods Aoueby wana
BuipasianQ “10eloid uonessusbey B ymosn anusaay v 0083 juswnInIosy Buued €Loe/LL/Le €102/50/42 JuBjjNSu0) S%d
syjuow
9 JeAo Aoueby Juewyinioey i08nq
MBIABY BPIDILOK dlis8woQ Jo Jreyn anueaay| sAep o1 00t3 103dS34 £102/2L/LE 2102/80/90 ueynsuo) S%®d
Adueoea
da
BuLBA0D - (4AD) BouBUL Jo peaH wual|  enueae| g S6v3 v4di0 102/10/1E] 2102/t 1/S0 wuew| OUBUH 818100100 HO
Aoueby juswyiniosy aoueuld ajesodion
JuBUNODY |BldED JOolusg anusaAsy S 00€3 wiuelu| sue us|iy €1022H/LE|  EL0C/0LHO clLogreLel wuaju| 4O
Aousoea aouguUl{ 91e10d100)
BuuaA0d - eouBul 8)I0dI0D JO PESH WS} anuaney 14 G653 v4dIO $102/20/82).  2L02/€0/L0 wua| ) HO
Ajjiqeded yH o168}el)s Ul sder)
QO/4H J0 ainjonuisey pue abueyn
JueweBBUBW 8SB) fousby ¥102/90/0E| €102/60/0€ weynsuo) HH 30
mainas Aoljod anuaaey [+ 08S3 JuswnnIoey BuUSd
eIn ,pahojdw3 yjes,
10 ‘|eyde: aam Jew ajqesydde -
i L sieq| eweppua| ejeqpuz
sjyauaq @ Juswabebua Jo) uoseay| ‘enuanay| isod |aley Apeq 1 Jo Asuabe ajep uels smels jyun ssauisng g
pu3 |enjoy|  pssined leuibuo
woJly| sAeq / Koueynsuod
Buipung Jo aweu
sjue}Nsuo Jo ist




L e ¥

@ xipusddy

I, 'Se)BIJ0SSY Jasely yyesH augqnd
PPy 82IAIBG UONUBARId AIH lues| pauBA 0053 Ined :pshoidw3 yeg €L02/L1/62}  £102/90/L1 Jueynsuo Hd
= Kousby ajepdn Awouod3
A goe 5293 uswynvey Buusd so Buniem|  €102/60/1€}  6002/10/SH| luelnsuop| uoneiduasbey ‘Buiuueld S@d
A~ "4
(@]
]
o
"8)epIpuUBD [NJSSEIINS JO AJjIq|IBAE
uo puadap jim 8]0s 8y} Jo Buyy wsueuusd seoInes
18q0}20 ul uoneuewseidwi pauueld yim jdes w:__EE. 4 aibuig
/ Bny Buunp uo paynsuod eq 0} pauueid S| siy|
-ainjonulg Aleges Ajunwiwo)) pasiaas pesodosd
ay) jo Ped sk 5|01 & 8je8Id 0} papusiul S| )| pue
deb yueoyubis e se paiyuapt Sem 31om Jo Base Aoueby yawiniosy
siy} melney Alejes Ajunwuo) ey jo Wed sy anuaAey g 08e3 uossepueg Aquejen EL02RL/LEl  £102/90/b2 JuBynsuon S%d
0£21 1005 1s0d sedines Alojeinbey EANS
‘wee uonoy pooynoqubisN quswebeusyy foueby Jusuniruosy eujpuoxg 3ibuis
oyes 1sod 714G AV Jo sued jipoeg dnueAsy) & 0093 wueju} 186p0 ¥L02/P0/0E]  €102/50/20 wusiu| S®d
G620¥ 1206 1sod Alejes Ajunwwo)
0 pea -lequeidag jo pus Joj pauue|d
MBM_ZH:_ Moa w& w_w tﬂ.ﬂg .*mmaoahm SeaaIes
pesiael B ysijqelsa pue Aebuuep uiym Aouaby Juswynioay auipuad abuis
Kejeg Aunwwo) Joy pes) aifeless apinold snuanad| ¢ 0093 uosispueg Aquejen ¥L02/60/0E]  2L02/80/EL wusju| S®d
wein Jpafodwg ylas,
10 ‘jeuden| yoom yJew 3jqeaidde
siyeuaq B uswoabebus 10) uoseay| ‘snuanayd| Jsad | ajey Apeq 3 10 Aduabie becie| B | IRt M v3 ajep uels smelg Mun ssauisng na
woyy| sAeg 1 Aoueynsuod pu3 (emy PetiASH feuibio
Buipung JO aweu
Sjue)Nsuoo Jo ISt




Page 162



Page 163

Appendix E

Proposed implementation of the Single Fraud Investigation Service (SFIS) and the
Implications for local authority counter-fraud investigations

1. Background

1.1 The Single Fraud Investigation Service (SFIS) is the proposed programme to

investigate all welfare benefit fraud through a single, DWP-led, investigation service.
The programme was originally announced by the DWP in October 2010, without any
consultation with local authorities (LAs). Following LA representations to the DWP
highlighting concerns about the proposed arrangements, a consultation exercise
was belatedly undertaken, which overwhelmingly confirmed a preference for
retaining a Housing Benefit counter-fraud presence within LAs.

1.2 In October 2011, the DWP stated: ‘ 7The Government proposes the creation of a

single integrated fraud investigation service with statutory powers to investigate and
sanction all benefit and tax credit offences which will combine relevant resources
across LAs, HMRC, and DWP.’ The DWP subsequently established four ‘pilot’
programmes across the country, including one led by the London Borough of
Hillingdon to explore the options for implementing SFIS with staff working within an
overall DWP framework to develop procedures for the investigation of benefit fraud
in a co-production model. The DWP has not, to date, released any progress
updates, detailed feedback or outcomes from the pilot programmes.

1.3 In October 2013, prior to the completion of the pilot projects, the DWP released a

paper entitled ‘SFIS - Option Decision Rationale’. This paper states that the pilots
continue to provide very useful feedback, without providing any further details, but
states that the SFIS Project made a recommendation that ‘ SF/S should be rolled out
as a single organisation within DWP’. Again, LAs were not consulted in this recent
assessment or recommendation made by the DWP.

1.4 Two of the DWP pilot programmes are LA led, but there is anecdotal evidence that

they have not been provided with management information by the DWP to allow
meaningful comparison of the service they have delivered. LA concerns raised with
the DWP in 2010 remain outstanding and have not been addressed by the DWP in
any of their subsequent papers or announcements. The DWP have stated that SFIS
will become operational in 2014/15; although no specific date has been given.

1.5 The DWP’s Option Decision Rationale paper dismisses all options, including the

existing partnership working arrangements which have been in place to date, and
states that the introduction of Universal Credit (UC) would reduce LA interest in the
welfare benefit arena. This clearly ignores all other benefits and support provided via
local authorities which are planned to continue well beyond the introduction of UC,
despite the DWP remaining silent on when UC will be introduced.

1.6 Recently publicised problems with UC, the rollout having already slipbed from

October 2013 to ‘sometime in 2017, include IT infrastructure and costs, poor project
management, an ill defined project scope, lack of leadership and ownership of
resources and budgets.



Page 164

Appendix E

1.7 Social and private sector landlords have raised concerns with the DWP that giving
their tenants one monthly payment to cover all their family’s outgoings might
increase the instance of rent arrears with consequential implications for their revenue
income. This may increase the pressure on local authorities further as private sector
landlords may withdraw from the social housing market, combined with falling
revenues from their own housing stock.

2. Areas of concern
2.1 With the DWP’s announcement that SFIS will operate as a single organisation within
the DWP, LAs have a number of concerns which are set out below.

2.2 No/limited capacity to address fraud in legacy Housing Benefit cases
2.2.1 There is a strong indication, although no confirmation from the DWP, that LAs will
lose their authority to investigate welfare benefit fraud at the point that SFIS is
implemented, which could be as early as April 2014. ‘Legacy’ Housing Benefit (HB)
cases will remain with LAs at this point and there may be no authority or resource to
investigate claims administered by the council.

2.2.2 Haringey was one of the DWP ‘Pathfinder’ areas and the HB fraud team have
developed excellent working relationships with their DWP counterparts in bringing
benefit fraudsters to court. However, despite this, the DWP’s processes can be
much slower than the council’s and we are still waiting to prosecute six cases from
2012/13 which we worked on jointly, with the DWP taking the lead.

2.2.3We have no indication that the DWP will prioritise cases which remain with LAs with
the implementation of SFIS. In 2012/13, Haringey prosecuted 35 cases worth £747k
in overpaid and fraudulent benefits. Joint working with the police, DWP and HMRC
recently resulted in a confiscation order of £250k against a benefit fraudster; who
had previously been given a custodial sentence for £190k worth of fraudulent claims.

2.3 Impact on other Council investigation work
2.3.1 DWP information is currently available to the Council if there is benefit in payment at
an address that is the subject of an investigation into other fraud types, including
tenancy fraud, council tax discounts, right to buy applications, blue badge and
concessionary passes use, housing waiting list and homelessness application fraud
and assistance provided to persons without recourse to public funds.

2.3.2 DWP held information is unavailable to council investigations unless there is an
associated HB claim that could be affected. If SFIS progresses as it has been stated
by the DWP, there is a high risk that other investigations will be significantly affected.
Even if the information would still be available to us where HB/CTR was in payment,
the LA would lose its current ‘Authorised Officer’ powers to obtain further
information from other sources; and this would negatively impact our investigative
abilities.

2.3.3 This could mean that the HB fraud team’s recently started project to target rogue
landlords may have to be stopped, or seriously reduced in scope if the benefit
information were no longer available. It is the DWP benefit data which is providing



Page 165

Appendix E

the team with the leverage to target and stop rogue landlords from perpetrating
fraud and criminal activity in Haringey.

2.3.4 As stated above, the HB fraud team prosecuted benefit cases worth £747k in
2012/13. During the same year, the HB fraud team also stopped 15 fraudulent Right
to Buy applications with a value of over £1m; and the corporate anti-fraud team
recovered 30 fraudulent tenancies with value of £540k. Housing tenancy and benefit
fraud can co-exist, with landlords claiming benefits fraudulently and sub-letting
properties. Without the ability to look at all aspects of tenancy fraud, the recently
enacted Social Housing Tenancy Fraud Act will not be as an effective weapon for
LAs in counteracting this area of high cost fraud: estimated by the Audit Commission
at over £1bn nationally.

2.4 DWP intention to end joint working on areas of common interest

2.4.1The DWP have already advised that there is to be no joint working with LAs on
Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) cases. This will affect the totality of
sentencing, increase costs of prosecution and runs contrary to the DWP’s own
statements that SFIS will provide ‘a coherent policy, process and procedure aligned
with all required legal powers for investigating all welfare benefit fraud’. A person
who may have defrauded both services may have to attend two separate
investigative interviews and essentially answer the same questions at each.

2.4.2 Working with the DWP jointly, as we do at present, ensures that all elements of the
individual’s fraud are dealt with as part of a single prosecution cases. The HB and
corporate anti-fraud teams are also undertaking joint prosecutions with other LAs on
individuals who have committed multiple benefit and housing frauds against more
than one authority. The DWP do not intend to notify LAs routinely of any UC fraud
investigations, therefore fraud losses and costs to LAs are likely to increase.

2.5 National Fraud Initiative

2.5.1 The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) data matching service has saved over £1 billion
nationally since its inception. It currently includes LA HB data which is matched
against other public sector data including tenancy, housing application, right to buy,
payroll, pension and housing waiting list data. In addition to identifying Housing
Benefit fraud, the NFI also acts as a valuable check against the honesty of all
Council staff, including those involved in administering benefits locally and
investigating fraudulent claims.

2.5.2 The DWP currently provide the HB data for the NFI exercise directly to the Audit
Commission. With the transfer of the NFI function to the Cabinet Office and the
implementation of SFIS with the DWP retaining sole authority to investigate benefit-
related fraud, the HB data may no longer be available to future NFI exercises.

2.6 Reduction in counter-fraud capacities
2.6.1 The November 2011 decision to leave an HB Counter-fraud capacity with the LA
temporarily resolved complex issues around pensions and TUPE rights and retained
a link to other areas of fraud investigation. With the announcement of the DWP
recommendation in the Option Decision Rationale paper, and previous



Page 166

Appendix E

announcements that SFIS will become operational in 2014/15, these issues will need
to be resolved for those staff who are to be transferred to SFIS, although no details
have been provided on the scope and resourcing of SFIS at this time.

2.6.2 Originally, the DWP suggested that an additional 200 investigators across the
country would be engaged by SFIS. Recent statistics from 2010 show that over 200
benefit investigators were employed by London authorities alone. At present, we
have no indication from the DWP about staffing numbers, but it may not be
unreasonable to assume that a reduced number of investigators will be employed by
SFIS. Even if the DWP recognise, after SFIS is implemented, that a joined up
approach to tackling fraud is better than a ‘stand alone’ DWP function, there may not
be the resources available to put this into practice as skills and posts will have been
lost. This is likely to have a negative impact on Haringey as pro-active counter-fraud
work will be reduced in the future.

3. Proposed actions

3.1 This issue and the concerns outlined in this appendix have been raised at various
public sector forum meetings including London Councils, the London Boroughs
Fraud Investigation Group, and the London Audit Group. N

3.2 The various public sector groups have proposed that senior officers and local
councillors write to local MPs (using a template letter attached to this appendix) with
a request that they write to the Secretary of State (DWP), and the Parliamentary
Under-Secretary of State for Welfare Reform and the Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government, expressing their concerns. It is proposed that
the Corporate Committee agrees this course of action.

3.3 It has been further proposed that this Council write separately to the Chair of the
Public Accounts Committee, and the Shadow Secretary of State for Work and
Pensions outlining its concerns with the current proposals for SFIS.



Page 167

TEMPLATE LETTER RE SINGLE FRAUD INVESTIGATION SERVICE (SFIS) FOR USE
BY INDIVIDUAL OFFICERS 70 WRITE TO YOUR LOCAL MPS (please defete this

fext)

( hitp://ffindyourmp.parliament.uk/ - please delete )
MP ADDRESS

DATE

Dear INSERT MP NAME

Local Authority Staff inclusion in the Single Fraud Investigation Service (SFIS)

We are aware that the DWP are about to meet with the Treasury to request funding for
the Single Fraud Investigation Service to be owned, managed and led by the DWP. We
supportive of the concept of a more joined up approach to fraud investigations in the
public sector, but not by the method recommended by the DWP.

We recognise the need to ensure that welfare benefit fraud is prevented and detected, in
the best possible and most cost effective way.

The Single Fraud Investigation Service (SFIS) is a massive opportunity to set up a single
investigation service, which really works. However, there are serious concerns regarding
the following issues:

1. Impact on Local Authority Investigative Resource

All Local Authorities will be left vulnerable to fraud attacks if the proposals go ahead
because significant numbers of investigators will leave local authorities, and current data
sharing between LAs and DWP for counter-fraud purposes will disappear. Of the
estimated £2.1 billion fraud committed against local government, over £1 billion of this
involves tenancy fraud, council tax discounts and parking concessions. The DWP have
been very reluctant in the past to share their data to prevent fraud unless there are
welfare benefit concerns. If DWP information is no longer readily available to these
investigations, as | believe will be the case under the current proposals, then these frauds
will be more difficult to identify, investigate and sanction.

It appears likely that that the overall number of investigators will be cut significantly, even
though this is an area where investment actually delivers a saving to public funds.



Page 168

Retention of local authority investigators within councils is essential to protect the public
purse; however, the fast track of SFIS will harm many authority’s plans for this work.

The DWP are not looking holistically at what is best for the public purse - they are purely
focussing on welfare fraud.

2. Original proposals which made sense to all parties have been killed off, and the new
proposals rushed through

The initial SFIS proposal was made without the courtesy of consulting local Authorities.
When it later became apparent that there were a number of practical issues that had not
been resolved, and some of the issues included in this letter were raised, consultation
took place in 2011. It was agreed at this time that when SFIS was introduced local
authority staff would remain employed by local authorities but work under DWP policy and
procedures. This resolved incredibly complex issues surrounding pensions and TUPE,
and retained the all important local link to councils. It was then agreed that ‘pilot’ LA’s
would be set up to test differing processes, DWP promised to analyse feedback from the
pilots in order to determine how best SFIS would operate. This no longer appears to be
happening.

There appears to have been a move from a sensible process of (belated) consultation
with local authorities to a ‘steamroller approach, ignoring all issues cited in previous
communications.

3. Universal Credit

Universal Credit has been delayed in order to make sure it works correctly; it is only right
that SFIS should also be delayed so that it too works properly. The plans also raise the
prospect of Hackney managing legacy Housing Benefit claims for a while but lacking the
mandate to investigate suspected fraud within them.

If these proposals are rushed through it will then be too late to prevent a haemorrhaging
of skills that could actually be used to prevent fraudulent claims against the public purse
and deliver financial savings to government.

4. Severing the link between Universal Credit and Council Tax Reduction Schemes

(CTRS)

DWP have already advised that there is to be no joint working with LAs on CTRS cases.
This makes no sense, as it will affect the totality of sentencing, increase costs of
prosecution and is completely counter-intuitive. There will be no notification of Universal
Credit frauds to local authorities, and as these individuals are likely to be receiving CTRS,
this will increase fraud loss to councils.

5. Current joined up working arrangements in local government will cease

London Borough of Hackney effectively link different areas of investigation work together.
Joint working will be mandated by DWP to cease. As an example of the impact this will



Page 169

have, social housing fraud valued at £2.88 million was identified in the borough in
2012/13. The exchange of data between Benefits and Housing teams currently provides a
rich source of intelligence to identify fraudulent claims against both services — this liaison
will completely disappear, even though tenancy fraud is a priority area for local
government counter-fraud work and is supported by a dedicated central government
grant.

The process where Social Services clients are given regular sums of money to buy care
packages, known as Direct Payments and Public Health are potentially huge fraud loss
areas and new to local government. Yet again, the severing of benefits data will be highly
detrimental to fraud detection in these areas. Other areas at risk include Council Tax and
payments to those with no recourse to public funds. When this is considered across all of
local govemment, a huge sum is at stake.

The extent to which local authority data benefits the fight against fraud if there is a spirit of
cooperation should not be underestimated as the data sources held within the local
authority are so wide ranging, from Education to Planning and Council Tax to Trading
Standards.

6. Introduction of Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs) & localism

Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs) have been created to drive public sector growth and
reduce administrative burdens. Under the localism agenda, there is likely to be a broader
range of funding coming to local areas and to LEPs, albeit with local authorities being the
accountable bodies for that funding. Therefore, despite localism expanding and new
areas of fraud work being identified, the SFIS proposals are pushing a centralised
approach to investigations — this makes no sense and goes against the ethos of the
localism agenda.

7. National Fraud Initiative

The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) data matching service has been widely recognised as
being an effective way of detecting public sector fraud, so much so that following the
demise of the Audit Commission, it has now been transferred to the Cabinet Office to
continue the good work. The NFI has saved over £1 billion since its inception; however a
lot of the information that yields significant results will be lost. Not only will LA’s lose much
of the benefit of this extremely valuable exercise, they will no longer have the experienced
resources to investigate the matches, again increasing the totality of public sector fraud.

The DWP have never subscribed to the NFI to compare welfare benefit claimant details
against other public sector records. Hackney data (e.g. housing tenancy, right to buy,
payroll, pension, licensing, housing waiting list, etc) is currently compared against
Housing Benefit claims nationwide to identify likely benefit fraud. We have participated in
the NFI since its inception and have always supported this activity. In addition to
identifying Housing Benefit fraud, the NFI also acts as a valuable check against the



Page 170

honesty of all Council staff, including those involved in administering benefits locally and
investigating fraudulent claims. DWP claims and staff are not currently part of the NFI.

| hereby respectfully request that you write to the Ministers below expressing your
concern regarding the proposed implementation of the Single Fraud Investigation Service.

The Minister is The Rt Hon lain Duncan Smith MP who is the Secretary of the State,
Department of Works and Pensions with overall responsibility. Letters may be sent to The
Rt Hon lain Duncan Smith MP

Secretary of State

Department for Work and Pensions

Caxton House

Tothill Street

London

SW1H 9DA Or email: caxtonhouse.clerkpru @dwp.gsi.gov.uk

Please also express your concerns to Lord Freud the Parliamentary Under-Secretary of
State for Welfare Reform, email address: freudd @parliament.uk and Eric Pickles MP in
his role as Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government email address
eric.pickles @ communities.gsi.gov.uk

Yours sincerely,



Eoo.um.v_z.zwccwm.w.ﬁ._m—._o_m 3
Lb2E 82.L 020 L

aAIINo9Xg

neuuag pJeyaiy

woo 1B yn@uipoelined 3
€92€ 8222 020 L

1abeuepy

uipjoer |ned

Agenda ltem 12

woo b yn@nassop-ned 3
081€ 82 £020 L

Jaupied

nassoq |ned

€102 JaqwianoN
102 Y9IBN LE PIPUD Jea)

Page 171

AS3urIe]] JO ySnoiog UOpuoOT| I0J
o1epd ) 9onTwon) aerodion)

uojuIoy | Juel) °



Page 172

-asodmnd rotpo Lue 503 papuarur sou ‘703 paredord Jou sem jx0dor smp
se 930do1 ST JO JUTOD I JO SIseq O VO Junode wory Sururesjor 30 ‘Funoe
fred parp Lue 0) pauorsesdo ssof Aue 303 Amqisuodsar Lue 1dodoe J0u op 94\

“AJnuopr 1Sy voneUTIexo [e1dads

QAISU)IXD 2FOWS ¥ JBI[) [OTTVOD [uFIur Ul sjuawasordwr o[qrssod [[e opnpur

0) JO ‘soNIFe[N3oTIT IAYJO FO SUONEI[LJIP 2SO[ISIP 03 uodn parar 9q Jouured
SFoM IO 90uanbasuod U] No4 03 9591 170doT [ oM ‘SISSIUNEIM [OFIVOD LUE
Aynuopr om ‘Sunsa) mo Jo jred st OIoUM TOAIMO] "SSIUIEIM [OT)TOD JO SBITE
[[¢ AJRUIPT O S[OFIVOD [EUIAIUT [[& 1S9} 0} PIUSISIP JOU ST JIPNE IN() "SIUIWIE)S
rerueuy o vo vorudo rno Jurssardxo jo asodind ot 103 A[rewrd poudisop
9Fe YOIYM $9INPad03d JIpNe [EWIOT FNO JO IONPUOD Y} JUIMP UGONUINE

INO0 0] WD YIIYA STBUF 9SO 0} A[UO 2)B[9F 130d9T ST} JO SIUATOD YT,

abed

| dT1MN uojuioyL uely €10 @

syuowdo(oad(T SurSrouwry]
CT0T TOqUIDAON] € 5891301
UONONPORU]

uonoag

SIU9IUO")



Page 173

| dT1MN uojuioyL uely €10 @

" 9819 GH08 8L0 N €9T€ 8TLL 0T 11, (3Teuey 1uowodeduy) v (e
861 ST06 1640 “IN 081€ 8TL L0T0 =1, (PeaT 3uawadeduy]) 13asso( [ne]

.HOM.NG.NZ pny Jo peo| uﬁoaowmwﬂwm oA JFoUIIe 1081000 Owﬁvﬁ& ‘noA O] 1S919]UT JO 9J% Je] Sonsst O w@uﬁﬁ&ﬂ rewo HESW@H 9ATID9F
O} UOJUJOy T, JUet) Yum H@uw%OH O] Y] p[nom Jo .wwHOQQH uojuioyT, jueto) Aue AMQGQHH@ ST} Ul swalt Aue uo uonewrIojur Joyliny oy pynom noA I

1oedur o[qrssod oy pue saSULYD 9SO JO IINTUWIWOT) Y} WIOJUT pue 2)epdn 01 SNUNTOD [[IA O ‘PIFNUIPT 9TE IS I X\
WM ST} J€ 99NTWWO.) 93830d107) 93 03 pa370daT 9q 03 SPIIV JBY) SPILPUEIS SUNUNOIIE JO YFOMIWETJ unI0dar o) 01 SIFUEYD OU 93¢ I,
"STOJIPNE [PUIAXD JNOA st sonIIqrsuodsor o Surroarop ur ssaxdord uo 330dor e ypim sonrwwon) ayerodion) oy sopraoxd roded sy,

aononponufy




Page 174

"IOM INO JO uona|dwod uo 1odas UONBDIIBD [N} INO BNSSI ||IM B

‘palejdwod Buieq Ajjuarind si yoiym Busal jeuoiippe

Ul payNsal sey YoIym SJ0LId SWOS Paljiluspl Sey Wield ayl Ulylim SpJEME 11jausq [ENPIAIPUI

jo Bunse| -eulpesp Aloinjels €10z JaquianoN 0€ 8yl Aq Buiisa) Jno 819|dwoo 0} 8jNpayds uo aJe
pue wieo Jjsuag Xe] |1ounod pue jysuag BuisnoH s,[1ounoy syl uo iom Buiiadwod osje aie app

‘JuUsWIpUBWE |[eWS B salinbal yoiym
WIe[d suoIsuad s,Jayoea | ay} Jo uoneoiad ayl Bunejdwod jo ssadoud ayy ul Ajjuaiind ase ap

"SJUSWIPUBWE INOYUM PalILIBD alom swieo sidisday [enden
Buijood ay) pue sajey 211SoWO-UON [BUOlBN 8y | saulpeap Alojniels ayl Aq pa1o|dwiod sem Miom
INo swie|o Yloq 104 "paiinbal swiejd Inoyj 8y} JO OM] JO} YIOM UOIBIIILISD 8y} palajdwod aaey S\

"uoISN[oU0d
Aauop\ 1o} enfeA pue Jpne slusWale]s [elouBUl) SHI JO 108dsal Ul 1ouno) 8y} Buioe) sysu Aey eyl
UO PBSNO0} S| YIOM INO BINSUS 0] SIBD1Y0 YIM Burjeaw ale am Buiuued Jipne Jopim INo Jo Led sy

‘seaJe 9say] Ul S|oJuod Bunsal
pue SJ821}J0 Yylm suoissnasip ybnouyl swalsAs [eioueuly Ay jo Buipuelsiapun ino Buiepdn aq |im
aM 1ISIA SIy} Jo Led sy " 1.0z Arenuer Joj pajnpayods si Iipne /€102 8y} 4o} NisiA Bujuueld feniul InQ

'$955920.d Jpne pue uoie|idwod SJUNoJdk 8y} 0}
sjuswanoidwi Loddns 0} Jeah sy} Inoybnoayl wes) aouBUI4 Y} YIIM YIOM [[IM S\ "HPNE $1/€102 94}
1o} aJ1edaid o} 1ounoD syl yum Bunjiom mou ae am ‘Upne g1/ 10z ayl jo uonajdwoo ay) Buimojjo4

‘Bunesw 1xau syl 1 ssaiboid uo ssIWWO) sy} srepdn

[[IM AN UPNE €1/2 102 Y} 8S0|0 pue 8] dljILad HpNne 8y} anss| 0} 8|de 84 |[IM 8M PBA|0S8) 80UQ
‘sisanbal Ajsnes o] uoieluswnoop Yyum wayl apinoid pue 10108|8 [B20] 8yl YIMm aSIel| O} SSNUIUOD
[louUN0D 8yJ - 101088 AlJoylne [eo0| B AQ SJUNODJOE 8y} UOo pasies uoloslgo jeiusiod e 0} anp
919|dwod sk 1pne g1/2 102 a1 Al 0] 9. 10U 81am 9\ aulpeap Jaquiaidas Qg ayl JO douBApE
ul €10z Jeqwialdes g1 UO SludwWaleIS [BlIoUBUl S,|I0UN0Y) 8y} uo uoluido pauenbun ue aneb app

sjuswwo)

| dT1MN uojuioyL uely €10 @

Jealk
leloueuly €1/21L0¢C — )40M UOI1ed}1118d Juels

JeaA jeloueuly v 1/g10g - Buluueld upny

9ledynida) Hpny g1/¢10e

N0

C10Z FQUIDAON] 1€ SS9I307 ]



Page 175

| dT1MN uojuioyL uely €10 @

‘uoieolignd uo 1IPUN0Y By} yum pateys aq [im podal ay |
-A1junod

8} SS0JOB SJUSI|0 JUBWUIBA0H [BD0] INO JO JAQWINU B Je Pajonpuod SMaIAIBlul pue salieuuolisanb
pala|dwod uo paseq aq ||im 1odal InQ "sHjeuaq aJejjom 0} SWI0ja) JUdWUIaA0b Jusdal
ay) pabeuew aaey suonesiuebio moy uo Buissnooy mainal [euoiieu B Builonpuod Ajjuaiind aie apa MOINSY WI0}aY aie} |9\

sjuswwo) NIOM

C10Z FQUIDAON] 1€ SS9I307 ]



Page 176

| dT1MN uojuioyL uely €10 @

'sJoad jsuiebe saajsWay] Yewyduaq o} sjualfo Joj Ajunuoddo ue .

pUB {s8WsYOS UOISUSd JUSWUISAOL) [ED0T 0] sabueyo ueoyiubis ayl uo ayepdn ue .

‘oonoeud 1s8q Buiiodal pue aoueuIBAOB JO BUIINO UB .

1SJIBYO 991109 uoisuad pue s1821jj0 Joluas anIb |im pue sjuswabuele

90oUBUIBA0D ,SBWBYIS UOISUDY JUSWUIBAOL) [BDOT JO M8IABI 1SJ1} INO Jo sBulpuly ay) sjuasald ino
MBINDY 9OUBUIDA0K) S UOISUD JUSWIUIDAOK) [e20T]

‘€102

Jaquwiaoa(g Jo Buiuuibaq ayi je uonedlgnd uo [1IDUN0D Byl YIm paleys aq ||im Lodal ay] "sjo4uod [eioueul) pue Buiuueld jeioueuly o1bsjells ‘eourulanob
[eloueUl ‘@ourwWIOad [Bl1OUBUl JO SI0JBdIpUl ABY SIBPISUOD pue Z|0g Ul paysignd juiod Buiddi] uo dn smojjo} mainal yieay [eloueul) INo /102

1SB9| 1B |IIUN 8nuuod 0} anp AjlI81sSNe [BlouUBUIL YA “JIOQUISAON JO pud 8yl 1B Pases|al 8 [|IM JUSWUISAOL) [B00T Ul 90USI[IS8Y [BIoUBUI OlUI MBIASI INO

JUSWUIBA0Y) [ED0T U] 30Ul|ISaY |eloueul

uojuioy] juein

s1UOWdOOAIP PUE SONSST SUISIOW]



Page 177

)N 09 uojuioy}-juelh

'SJUaI[o 0} SBOINIBS
apinoid Jou S80p [BUOHBUISIU UOJUIOY ] JUBIL) “JBYJOUE BUO JO
1108 10 S8OIAIBS BU} 0} 8|qIsuodsal Jou ale YOIym ‘swily Jaquisw
Aq Apuspuadepur pasaniep ase saoiMeS "diysiauped apimplom

B JOU 8J& SWI} JaquawW 8y} pue [BUOIBUIBIU| UOJUIOY] JUBIS)
*$8JinbaJ 1X8JU00 8U) SB ‘SWllj JaqUIaW 80w IO 8UO O} Jajal pue
ojelado swuly Jaguuaw UOJUIOY ] JUBIS 8U} YIYMm Japun pueiq sy} o}
8Je ,UOJUIOY] JUBID), O} SBOUBISRY “(JEUOIBUIBIU| UOJUIOY] JUBID)
PIT [eUONBUISIU| UOJUIOY ] JUBIL) JO W JaGUIBW B S| UOUIOY ] JuelD)

‘diysssuped Ayjgey|
pajwI| € ‘g7 MN UojuIoy ] Juels) suesw ,uojuioy] Jueln,

‘Paniasel SyBl 1Y dTT MN UolWOoy L Juel €102 ©

uojuloy | Juelc) o



Page 178

This page is intentionally left blank



woo 16 yn@uipoelined 3
€9¢€ 8¢/ L020 L

1abeuep

uipjoer [ned

wo9 16 n®@piojues‘zi| 3
906G Gcec €eclo L
Jabeueyy Joluag

piojues z1

Agenda ltem 13

woo16n@uassop-|ned 3
G6EE 8¢L L020 L

Jaulied

nessoq |ned

€10¢ 1890100
€10C YO4e|N LE PIpud Jeajp

Page 179

AS3urIe]] JO ySnoiog UOpuoOT| I0J
J91397] PNy [BNUUY 9,

uojuIoy | Juel) °



Page 180

01

abed

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

$99] pue panssy qu—OQDMH \Y4

soorpuaddy

SUINJOT PUE SWIE]D JULI3 JO UONEIYNIIN)
KouoTA] 03 onfe A
$)UNODIE I} JO PPNy

Arewrums 9ANNDIXY

h%
¢
K4
T

uonoag

SIU9IUO")



Page 181

€102 1940100 | J19WSTHPNY [EnUUY | dT7MN UoIoyL Jueln €10 ©

suanjai pue swie|d juelb jo uonesyed 0
Asauoyy 10} anjep  "€0

Sjunodde 8y} Jo Upny 20

Alewiwins aAnnoaxg

ATewuwins OATINOOXE] ] UOMDIIS




Page 182

"SIUN022E ¢T /2102
ot ur swoout Juryred Jo ununoode oy 03 HoneRI ur suonsanb Sumsind

[[MS ST JOI29T2 NﬁﬂHOﬂuﬂd [€20][ ® St PIsSO[d St PIJIIad Ua9q uw% jou sey ypne 9y,

"SOUI[PEIP ¢ (T FOqUIDAON]
QABY JEU} SWIED JOUIINJ ¢ MITADF 0] SUTNUNUOD 9I€ 34\ TUIWPUIWE JNOYIIM
POIJIIOD 2FOM TPTYM JO YIO( ‘SUINIOT PUE SWIE[D JULIS 7 POIITIIA0 0ABY M
UorssTuqns
SIUNODDY JUIWUIIAOL) JO IOYA\ §,[PUN0d a1 uo voruido paygrenbun ue
$9OJNOSIT JO ISN SIT UT SSOUDATIIVJJO pue £ouardmyo ‘Awrouosd urmoas
J0J SJUAWRSULITE §,[IDUNOT) 3 JO 109dsar Uy vorsnPUOod pagienbun ue
7294 913 703 oINIPUAdxD
PUE SWOIUT ST PUE ¢ Y2FeIA [ ¢ I¢ st uonisod [epueuy s [1oUNo.)
9T} JO AMJTA JTEJ PUE 90T} € AIS UDTYM SJUNO0dE o1 uo uorurdo paygrenbun ue
1SAOT[0]
SE 9Je ¢ /210 O) UONE[F U papraoid oAy oA UDTYM SUOTISN[DUOD IpNe 9y T,
SuoISN|2uU09d }Ipny

“UOISSTWWON) Ipny 9} £q panss 9ouepms 1po pue (PUERI] pue S[) Sunpny
UO SPFEPULIS [EUONEUINU] (9POD) 91, 991DBIJ IPNY JO 9PO7) S, UOISSTIIWOT)
IPOY Y} I 9DUBPIOIIE UT PAIONPUOD SEM PUE CT()T UITEIA ] TUO POnsst om
JEY) U IPOY 91 [IIM 9DUEPIOIIE U UDYEIFOPUN TII( Sl “YFOM PIUTUIIIP
A[reoo] pue paqrrosard A[reuoneu sopnppur YoIYM ‘Owrwrerdord yFom [enuue 0

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

‘(£ouoTy] 703 onJE A) S9OINOSIT

JO 9SN $IT UT SSOUIATIIVJJD PuE LOUIINJ ‘Awrouods o1ndas 0) syuswaduerre rodord
ooe[d ur Sunind 303 o[qrsuodsar Os[e ST 1] JUIWIEIS IDULUIIAOL) [eNUUY UL £q
poruedwosoe ‘syunodode s37 Jurysiqnd pue Surredord 303 o[qrsuodsor st pUNOY) oY T,

(
v Qoﬂmmﬂaaomu uﬂu5< Dﬂu \Aﬂ ﬁuwﬂwwﬂ wvﬂuom —UQu%S&& UQ& wHOu%5< WO
w@ﬁaﬂﬂmQOﬁwvm MO aﬁuawu.ﬁm wﬂu WO 1X391U0D uﬂa Qﬂ UOH&QQW—Q wan— wmﬂ Hwtw‘H wﬁﬂvﬁ
[19Uno09) 3y} pue siojiphe [eulalxa ayj} Jo saijijiqisuodsay

‘€10Z Fqudag g1 wo 130doy

S3UIpUI,] YIPNY Y} UT 9DULUIIAOS [} PISTLYD 9SOY) 0} YIOM JIPNE INO WOTJ
sgurpury payreop ayp parrodor o orqnd oY) Jo sToqUIDW SUIPNOUT ‘STOP[OYOEIS
[eUIOIXD PUE [IDUNOY) 93 0} So8essowr £33 9JEDTUNTIIOD 0} PIPUIIUT ST JOII O,

*(An03 UON9Q) SUFNIIT PUE STWTE[D JULIS JO UONEIYNIID
(99711 UOMDIG) SIDINOSIT JO IS SIT UT SSIUIANIIJJO
pue £5udKJ0e ‘AWou0d9 SUINIIS J0J SIUSWISUEITE §,[IPUNOT) IY) SUISSISSE o
(om1 yonoag) vorsSTIIqNS
$IUNODDY JUIWUIIA0L) JO J[OY X\ PUE SIUNOIDE ¢ /710 Y Sunipne
'€10C UYPFLIA 1€ PApPUR Feak a1y 30y ([Iounol)
at1p,) 498urIe] JO YSnosog BOPUOTT 1€ INO PALRIED ALY oM JEY) FOoM SUIMO[[0]
o) wo3y Surstre sSUIPUY A9y oy saspewwNS (F21397],) J9I9] NPNY [BNUBY InQ
193391 siyj jo asoding

ATewriuns 9ATINIIXE]



Page 183

€10T 990100
d'T1 3N voiuioy I, 1uein)

"J3eis S [Iuno’) 9yl %n— jipne Jno Mﬁﬁmﬂﬁu Nagext TO@TVOMQ
EOﬁdHum—Olonu pue 20UE]SISSE 9] O] QOﬁdﬂuww—Q@d JNO PFOI3I 9] p[nom 9\

"€10T 3PquPA0N
ON Uo wwuuéeou OHNMOQHOU o] @@ugwwwu& wﬁr :TK/ .TQ& S92INOSIY QHNMOQHOU

mO MOHUMW_MQ @GN ®>.USU®MM woﬂﬂu .uﬁt ﬁﬁg? @QQMMm QU@Q m&ﬂ F9139 T wﬁﬁrﬁ
sjuswabpajmowyoy

"poFOATOP 97 sSuraes pasodord ot

9INSUDY 0) SONUNUOD uonIsod [eULUY ) pue SWIIsAs Jo SuroITUOW JSNqOT O}
e 9rnsud 03 Jueirodwr oq [[im 11 ‘porrod UONEWIOJSUL) STY SUMM(] PIqUd
pue Juow[dwr 03 dwm Jye) [[IA $9559003d IS T, *SIUIWOSULIIE JUIWOTEUEUS
oouewiroyrad 21er0drod 3snqos Surppaquio pue Sunjiom Joulred pue
[PUNOD)-$S0ID UPULYUD J& pawTe a8ueyd [eFm[nd Jo swwesdord e pue soSueyd
woIsAs JULdTUSTS Aq paydIeW 9 [[IA JeY3 9IMIONTIS FI01JJ0 MdU & Fursodord

9TE [IDUNO7) 9} SISUD[EYD [EDUEUT 9IMINJ JULDTUSIS oU) Sunoow jo jred sy

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

“Ue[J [EPULUL,] WD ], WIIPIJA] PISTAST 9} JO 247320

Tenuad o st ded sy SursorD) “wonw 0¢F ST GT /410 FOF [[eIFoys oy T, 'sSuraes
[eUORIPPE VOT[FW 1L PIPNIUL 1LY} 1 /¢T0T F0J 198 2q 01 198pnq paduefeq

e Buqeus 4o Suruued 11/¢10g oy Sumnp vorpw 197 o pomad +1/¢10g
a1 JO 13e3S 9 JE [[eJaFoys sSuraes pa1daford o) PIsod sey [PUNOY) YT, "sFeak
2MINJ UT SUISUD[[BYD 9JOUF UAD (| [[IA uonIsod [edueUl padue[eq & SUTAINDY

“S[IOUNO0D JE[IWIs FYI0 0} uosiedwod ur (armrpuadxs ssox3 jo uonzodord

© SE) SOAJISOT JO [9A9] MO[ A[PANE[F B P[OY O} SONURTOD [IDUNOY) 93 YSnoyie
‘C1/T10T UT $9AT9593 JO S[2A9] $37 2a0xdwi A[eurdrews 0} [PUNOY) 9 PI[qLud

se ST, 1/ 110 uF puadsiopun vorpw /4 ¢ 3uimo[[oy (93pnq 3o o/z) vorpw

197 4q 1uadszopun 193pnq anuaAdT 19U PUN,] [EIUID) 3 ¢T-C10T YT "¢1/210C
UT S90TATIS 91} $50308 PaiFodo 07oM sodUBIIEA JOSPN( ISIOADPE JULITUSIS OU

pUe QuoweSeuewr 193png aNUIAIT JANIIJJD JO PIOIIF YOrI) POOS € Sky| [JoUN0T) AT,

"syuawaSuesre 3unyodal [EULUI S [IOUNOY)
oy} ped[ 01 #1/¢10T ¥0J 350d 1ULIUNOIIE JOTYD MIU & U JUIUASIATT 9} 2STUG0093
oM pue $59203d 2IMSOP [EPUEUY 1 /¢TOT 2 JO Peaye s1udwoA03duwr 25313 Bo

PPN FURINg TED I1 Jey) $astuS0093 [puno’) ay |, 's1eak snoradrd ueyy vorurdo sorpres
U I Uo7 9 Surpraosd sn pue Jipne 305 popraoid sJUIWDIEIS [BDULU ) JO
Lrrenb o ur JuoweA0IdwT J[qEIOU € UT PAIMST STy T, *ssed0i1d 31pne oy Sunsoddns

01 10oWNTWWIOD JO [9A9] 9] PasealtoUul put S1UoWialels [e0ULUl) S1 MQMMNQMH&
10J mwmwOUOW—& ol ®>OH—&EM 0] 1J0OJJ9 9[qeJopPISUOd ¥ opelWr SeY [I0UN0.) 9YT,

"IN 9} UT [IOUNO7) ) Suroe] sonsst 403 SunySrysry se [[oA St JOPISTOD
0} [IPUNO7) 9} JOJ JIPNE JNO WOoIJ SUrsITe soSessow Lo ) 930 ISITEUFWNS X\
uoIjuUd}je [I2UNO0) 10} sease Aoy



Page 184

€102 1940100 | J19WSTHPNY [EnUUY | dT7MN UoIoyL Jueln €10 ©

suinjai pue swieo juelb Jo uoneosyie) “Ho

Asuoyy 10} anjep g0

Sjunodde ay} Jo upny

Alewwins annoaxg 1o

S1UnodJdt 9yl JO JIpny g UONO3§




Page 185

“TPUNOT) 91 AQ PIPIOIIF AFMIPUIIXd PUE SWOIUT o1}

Jo pue vonsod [ePULUY § [IPUN0T) ) JO MITA J[BJ PUL 9N} B JAIS SJUNOIOE
a1 I SWIUO0d uoruido Q) JUIWUIIA0L) [ED0] PUE SINTUNUIWO))

703 yuouniedo(T a3 £q 39 duIpEap oY) Funodw ‘¢z Fquandog

61 UO S1UNO0D2E ¢ /ZT0T S,PUN0)) a1 uo uorurdo pagenbun ue panssy 94\

*JO1JO ST UT $93essour 40y o3 A[uo

ISIEUWIWNS PUE ¢ (g Fqualdag ¢ uo sanrurwo’) aerodror) a3 03 3rodar
o payuasard o\ *(IPUNOY) I} I8 99NTWWIOT) 91eI0dI0T) ) SE PAUTJOp)
,20URUIIA0S 1M PASTEYD SOT]), 01 JIPNE Y} WOT] SUISIFE SIILW JULITUSIS
130do3 03 pasmbaz are om ‘sjunodde oy vo vorurdo o FurArd 03 JOTx

uoisnj2uo)n

€10 #9015 {7 JO 2ulptop UONEI1JNII 9] %Q Jrom
no Ouwﬁ&aOU O] 9[qe oFom 9 X\ .MQQEUOHWN JNo yym ouI ur ¢10¢ HOQEQHQQW

¢ uo u%ﬁd MOM MUNAH QOﬁmﬂuﬂOmQOU (N@\X/ w.w._meu wﬁ Uoﬁﬁ.ﬁnﬁ»m ﬁuﬁSOU QL,H
(VOM) SIUN022Yy JUSWUIDAOL JO S|OYM

"SIUWINOOP ) JO SUOTSIIA [EUTJ ST} OIUT
parerodroour Jusuradeuew YoIYM ‘syusunsnfpe pasodord rourw jo aydnoo
© 0 109[qns PPUNOT) o) JO IPIMOTY INO A JUISISTOD dIIM PIOMITO,]
£y0yeue[dX] PUE JUSWAILIS DUBUIIAOL) [ENULY 9} JEY) PIPNPTOD dA\

JUsWaje)s 2UBUIDIA0L [enuuy

"$90UL[eq pUN,] [eIOUIL) Uo Joedwr Jou

PIP PUE [E110)EUT JOT 9F0M PIUIIIUOD SJUNOUIL ) ST SJUIWIILISSTUF 98I}
JOJ S)UDWIAIEIS [EDULUT) JIDY) PUSWE O} 30U pa3do [1DUNOT) 9Y T, eI} e
JOU 93¢ UDTUA JI9US 2DUL[E( Y} UO SIOUE[Lq YSED S[OOYDS PUE SIOIGI(]
9uowrdmbyy pue yue £H79d0IJ 9 UTYRIA SIUDWIOIEISSTUT PITJRUIPT 9 A\

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

'S]1UoWAlE]SSTW JO SIOJI9 [erIaleld .\mCd Pa1nuopt
10U PIp sjuowialels [eroueur} 9Ul UIYliM sadueleq 94l JO maﬁwwu JApuelIsqns Q)

sjunodsde 3y} Jo }ipne ayj) wolj Buisue sanssj

“dunzodoas [erpueury 31

Suraozdwr 031 JUSUNTWWOD § [IDUNOT) Y SAILISTOWIP PUE JUIWA0FdWT poquro
0} d[ay p[noys 3s0d JUr)UN0c0Y JOIY) MU € UT JUSWISIAUT U |, "APUSIOIJo
a70wr pajo[dwod 9q 0} JFOM MO[[E PUE UONEWIOJUT [EUONIPPE JOJ sisanbax
20NPaT ‘UIM UT ‘PINOYS YOTYM BITE ST UT suawsordwr 1oypang 3roddns

0] [PUNOY) Y} PIA JIOM 0} INURTOD [[IA 2\ “d[qerrea surewas Aienb oy

ng ‘Suraoxdu st 3rpne 303 papraord szaded Sunyrom oty jo Lenb [rezoso oy T,

*SIUIWIRIE]S

[EIDURUT 91} UT SJUSWIIEISSTW [EII91e AUE PIIJIIUAPT JOU PIP 9M J[NsoT &

SV 1SNQOT 970W 9q 0) PaA0Id OS[E SJUIWIIE]S [LIOULUTJ I} UTYIIA SIOUL[e] PUL
suonoesuer) ay3 Sunroddns eiep Surdopun oy 1, ‘ypne 103 papraord syuowolels
[erueury o Jo Lmenb oy ur JuswoordwT S[qEIOT € UT PIAI[NSIT SIY T, 'ss2001d
yipne o) Sunroddns 03 JUIWNIWIWOD JO [9AI[ ) PISLITOUT PUE S)UIWIJEIS
[erueury st Suredord 103 sossooord o1y va0rdwr 01 130330 S[qEIIPISTOD

€ opewW [PUN0Y) YT "¢10Z A[n[ T UO Pasuawuod YOTYM YIOAP[RT JIPNE ) JO
1738 9T) WOIJ J[(L[IeAL opews a7oM s1oded Sun{ro x| DUIPEIP [EUONEU ) TPIM
9OULPIOIDE UT ‘CT ()7 2uN[ §g TO SIUNOIIE JJLIP P 1 pajuasard [pUnon) oy,

sjunod2e ayj} jo uonesedaid

:MO[Q PISIFEWIWNS 938 SJUNOIIE 3} JO JIPNE INO JO mwc.ﬂcm %u& AT,

sjunodsde a3y} Jo }pny

S1UnoJd2¥ 9yl JO pny



Page 186

€102 1940100 | J19WSTHPNY [EnUUY | dT7MN UoIoyL Jueln €10 ©

suinjai pue swieo juelb Jo uoneoyiey “Ho

Aauoyy 10} anjep

Sjunodde 8y} Jo Upny 20

Alewwins annoaxg 1o

ASUOTN JOJ oNJEA € UONDIG




Page 187

10T Y2TeIN T¢

Burpua 7ea£ 913 JOJ $IOINOSIT JO ISN SIT UT $SIUANIIYJO pue £Louamnys ‘Awouord
omoas 03 syuowaduesre 7odoid ooerd ur ind [ounon) oy s30odsor JuedTUSTS

[[¢ UT 38U} PITJSHES 93¢ IM “TOTSSIWWON) JIpNY 9} Aq paysiqnd erraim

pogads oy Uo 20uEpMS oY) 03 PFLSaT SUTABRY PUE “YFOM JNO JO SIseq 91 U
uoISN|ouod N4A lIe4dA0

“BdTE ST} UT JIOM INO JO J[NSIT & S& PIYNUIPT 9FOM SINSST JULIYTUSIS ON]

“UR[J [EIOULUL] WD T, WNIPIA]

o} UT SUIPUNJ JUEIS SE YONS SEITE UO JUIWI[IOS JUIWUIIA0S 913 Jo suoneddur
o1 pasieut sey [PUNON) Y T, *(399pnq jo o/,z) vorw 197 £q 3uodszopun
198pnq 9NUDAJT JOU PUTL] [BFOUIL) O CT-Z 10T U FUOWRSeur 103pnq onuaAdx
9ATID9JJO JO PFOII OEF) POOST B SBY [IDUNOT) Y} Je} PAYSYSIY JFom Q)

*saPdUINJR pue A1anonpord parordwr pue STONINPIT 1SOD PIAITYDL

PEY 31 IOYIOYM PUE UM 3e39do 01 parmbar ST 31 s)UTETISUOD 193Y3N 93 JO
JUNODOE 23] 0] $ADIN0SF )T PAsNIIOLId PEY [PUNOY) ) FOYPIYM PINITAIT A\
SSOUQANIIJYD pue ADUIIDIPI ‘Awrouodd Furduaqrey)

"¢10T Pquardag

Uy pansst 3170dox 9OUII[ISIY [EIDUEUL] JNO UT PIPTa0Fd oFe S[reIdp JOUIINn,]

130d23 90UDISAT [EIDULUTJ 91} WOIJ STUIPUTJ

7204 snoraord Sunuowordwr ur opews usaq sey ssardord poo3 pue oyenbope

93e 2JUDI[ISAT [EDUEUY SUTASIYDE JOJ SIUIWASULITE JUAIIND § [DUNOY) A}

JEY) POPNPUTOD oM TIAIMOL] "UONEXE) [ED0] PUL TEJ[2M UO $101[0d JUIWUIIA0S
mou jo suonedrduwr [eURUY puE [B100s 91} SUISEURW UT puk sTed4 oning

UT QAT [[IA 3T SUIPUNJ JUSWUIIA0S [ET}TID JO JUNOWE SUIONPIT 33 0) PIedar
U7 s9SuR([eYd JULdTUSIS Arenonied saoey [PUNOY) 91 1Y) PAIYSIYSIY JIoM JnQ0)

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

[OTIUOD [EDUEUY
Suruuerd eoueuy

9DUBUIIAOS [EDUEUY o

“UOTSSTUIIO)

upny oy Aq paungep st syuaweduerre 1odoid Jo sonsmeIdereyd pa1dadxa 29I o
JsuTeSe SIUWSURIIE S [IDUNOY) OU) PIFIPISTOD YDTYM MITAIF B UIYLIFOPUN dALY 3\
90UDI[ISA [eIdULUL SULINDIg

sBuipuiy Aoy

“fyranonpord pue £ouamigge

Suraozdurr £4q pue suononpas 1500 Suradryde Aq opdurexo Jo ‘s3109pnq JIYSINH UTPIM
$92JNO0SIT $37 SUISNIFOTId ST [IDUNOT) JY ], *SSIUIANIIYJI PUE ADUIIONJI ‘AWOU0Id
$9INd3s 11 Moy SurSudyreyd Joj spudwasuesre yodoid sey [pPuno) ay T,
"2IMINJ 9[LIISITOJ A J0J 91eF2d0o 01 INUNUOD 0] IT SA[QLUD

ey uontsod [erduRUTy [qeIs ¥ aInd9s 03 pue ‘sontumzoddo pue sysiI [eurury
A[0A109330 98eurws 0 $9559001d pUE SWIOISAS ISNQOT SeY [IOUNOT) I T, *IOUII[ISIX
reroueuyy Supnoas 3oy 2o¢e[d ur syjuowaSuesse yodoid sey [pPUNno) Ay,

PpoO7) A} IPpuUN

sanmqrsuodsar Sunzodor o 130ddns yomym vorssTIIWO)) IIPNY 91 Aq payads
©II11I0 0M] SUIMO[O] 9} VO PIskq TOISNPUOD L] A & JAIS 01 parmbax axe o4\

“SIUWDSULIIE 98I JO SSOUDANIIJJO pue Loenbope oy Arendor morasr
20ueuIA03 put dryspremals odoxd ormsuo

$9OINOSIT JO ISN ST UT SSIUIATIOIJJO pue £oUamnye ‘AWOU09 211098 o

:0} syuswadueIre

3odoxd aoeyd ur 1nd 03 sapyIqIsuodsar s [IPUNOY) Ay} SAQIIDSIP PO YT,
340M Jo 2doog

ASUOTA 703 onfeA



Page 188

€102 1940100 | J19WSTHPNY [EnUUY | dT7MN UoIoyL Jueln €10 ©

suinjal pue swie|d jueb jo uonesyey -

Asauoyy 10} anjep  "€0
SJunodde ay} jo Upny ‘20

Arewwns aannoaxg "o

SUINIOT PUE SWIE[D JUBIS JO UONEIYNIYY) f UONIIG




Page 189

L

WIe oY) UM sa0Ue[eq o) pajroddns
aaey popraoxd sroded Surrop

‘popuawre pue payrenb oq [

W 9 T, "PIIE[NI[ED 9 O} STOFTI I}

Jo suopejodenxo a[qeud [[IA Jer SunsA
+0t [euonIppe Surjelzopun APUoIINd oI
pouno)) oy T, "s7eak Jorrd uey Jjouaq

ur JuowidedroA0 01 SUrped] $IOTID dTOW
POINUIPT SBY WTE]D J1JoUdq Xe) [IDUNO0))
PUE SUISNOT] 9} UMM SIS ()8 JO
Bunsa) [enTuT IO "STIDFJO PIM WL
UOISUD ] ,STOUDEI T, Y} O} JUIWPUIWE
JOUTWS B PaaIde 9ALY 94\ ‘uonedyenb
PUE JUSWPUIWE JNOYIIA PIJITWNS
aram suInyar s3dreoay] [enrden) jo Suroog
PUE $91BY] ONSOWO(] UON] [BUONEN] 9 T,

"SOUIPEap Uomﬂuwﬁwm I 20UepIodde
UT SWITE[D 93 PIATIIIT 9ATY 9\

Sunes
oV S93eSSIA A9y

syoded Sunyrom
Sunyoddng

suoneoyirenb

29 SIUDWPUIWE
Surpnpour)

30})IpNE Y}

0} pPaIwWgns SWIOf
WIE[d JO A2eIndoy

UonNEOYIID
2@ yorssfuqng

sjuowasSurIIe
UoNedYNID
Jo103dsy

sjuswabuelie s,[Iouno) ay) jo Aiewwing

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

*CT0T FQUIIdI(J UT pansst

w@ (02} HMOQMW_ COﬁNUmﬁwuu Jno QM muw.muTwOHQ wn— Eg wﬁ.ﬁu@ Moﬁﬁusm .BO#@O— wﬁﬁ.ﬁ
wﬂu Gﬂ @UmﬂmEESw 21 uuwﬁ o) MMO\K/ QOﬁ&U@EH@U Jno EOU@ mww.&mmue %u& uﬂrﬁ
sabessaw A3y

“UIN}OT JO WL
syads yoed 303 (1)) UONINNSU] UONELIYNIOD) & 1M sToIpne sonsst pue ‘Aouode
30 JuounIedop JUSWIUIIAOS JUBADI[OT DD (IM YFOM o) JO 9d0Dds JY) $90I3e
UOTYM ‘TOTSSTUIO)) JIPOY 913 Aq Paqriosard o7e TONEIYNIID JOJ SIUIWRSURITY
uoljesi}13499 0} }X3ajuod pue yoseoiddy

SIUPEIP €10¢

FOQUIDAON] JO PUD 9ABY JBY} SWIE 11JOUA] X¥) [IOUNOT) PUE SUISNOL] PUE UOTSUD ]
,STOYDEA T, 211 UO SUTYIOM [[AS 98 3\ "UOI[IW ()'g9F JO armpuadxa 03 Sune[as
€1/210¢C FedL [e12URUY 9} JOJ SUINIDT PUL SWIE[D g PITNIID ALY 9M 91EP O,

“Furpuny 03 JUSWIPNUD § [IPUNOT) o)

wiIFuod 03 $$9003d 91 jo 1red Jueyrodwr Ing [eury € sjuasardor pue porrod wrepd
O} F93J€ SYIUOW JUTU 03 XIs dwos 20e[d saxes A[eord&y voneoynzad sy 1 pounon)
oU3 Aq panTWIqNS SUIMYDT PUE SWIL 93U JO UTEIFD £JN190 03 parmbaz oxe o\
uoi3onpoajuj

SUINIOF PUEB SWITE[D JULIS JO UONEINIIN)



Page 190

4

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

soorpuaddyy

soolpuaddy



Page 191

€l

€10¢ 1900100 | JoNeT HPNY [ENUUY | dT1MN UOIOYL JUe1) €10 ©

€10z Joqwadag pasodoid uJodai uoneoiie)
€10¢ 1290100 Jape Hpny |enuuy
€10z Joqualdeg uoday aousl|Isay [BIoUBUIH — IA 96€°'c.S 000°StS S99} 1Ipne [ejo|
96898 005°06 uoneodIled Juels
€102 Joquisides yoday sbuipul upny 005987  00G'PSH 1pNE [10UN0Y
3 3
€10c YoreN UEld UpnY s99} |lenjoy ueld upny Jad
panssi ajeq Hoday soa4 Jojesedwod Z1/1L1L0Z
panssi sjioday €102 Jeqwiada ul
panssi aq 0] 1J0daJ YI0M UOIBDILISD INO Ul PALLIUOD
aq [|IM YJOM UOIIBOIHIIISD JNO 10} 88} [eul} 8y} — oq}
so9y [e10]
oq} 05625 ©9] UO0IeOI}ILI0 1URIL)
N BUON 00.'2/2  00.'2L2 004 1PNy
3 so94 ERINVETS 3 3
s99} |enjoy uejd Jipny Jad

S92IAI9S 19Y}O0 .10} S99 s03) £1-210Z

pne oy} 303 UQMMNQU 99] 9y} MOT2q WIJUOId 9 X\

$99] pue pansst sy10doy v xipuaddy



Page 192

)N 09 uojuioy}-juelh

'SJUaI[o 0} SBOINIBS
apinoid Jou S80p [BUOHBUISIU UOJUIOY ] JUBIL) “JBYJOUE BUO JO
1108 10 S8OIAIBS BU} 0} 8|qIsuodsal Jou ale YOIym ‘swily Jaquisw
Aq Apuspuadepur pasaniep ase saoiMeS "diysiauped apimplom

B JOU 8J& SWI} JaquawW 8y} pue [BUOIBUIBIU| UOJUIOY] JUBIS)
*$8JinbaJ 1X8JU00 8U) SB ‘SWllj JaqUIaW 80w IO 8UO O} Jajal pue
ojelado swuly Jaguuaw UOJUIOY ] JUBIS 8U} YIYMm Japun pueiq sy} o}
8Je ,UOJUIOY] JUBID), O} SBOUBISRY “(JEUOIBUIBIU| UOJUIOY] JUBID)
PIT [eUONBUISIU| UOJUIOY ] JUBIL) JO W JaGUIBW B S| UOUIOY ] JuelD)

‘diysssuped Ayjgey|
pajwI| € ‘g7 MN UojuIoy ] Juels) suesw ,uojuioy] Jueln,

‘Paniasel SyBl 1Y dTT MN UolWOoy L Juel €102 ©

uojuloy | Juelc) o



Page 193 Agenda Iltem 14

X

e

Haringey
y . Item
Report for: Corporate Committee Number:
Title: Senior Management Review and Restructure Update Report

Report ’
Authorised by: | | 8
vy

Lead Officer: Nick Walkley, Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service

Ward(s) affected: All Report for Key/Non Key Decisions:

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1. At Corporate Committee on 19 September 2013 |, as Head of Paid Service,
confirmed my intention to review and reorganise the Council’s structures and to
commence a period of consultation. This report provides:

The themes of the responses to the consultation
The conclusion and outcomes as a result of consultation
Details of the new structure including the positioning of the key departments of
the Council

e Details of the transition period and interim arrangements including governance
and statutory responsibilities
Outline of the approach to recruitment and selection

e |mpact of the new senior management structure on other structures and a
proposal as to how these will be dealt with.

2. Recommendations

That Members note this report.

Page 1 of 12



Page 194

X

-—+

Zal

Haringey
3. Organisation context

3.1.

The report to the Committee on the 19 September 2013 detailed the proposals to
review and restructure the senior management team arrangements and provided
the rationale for the change. ‘The Council faces a series of significant challenges
and opportunities over the medium term. Responding to these will require a
Council structure that is flexible, has the capacity to develop strategic options and
also ensure excellent outcomes and service delivery .

4. Consultation Activity and Responses

4.1.

4.2

Consultation

Following the September committee meeting, wide ranging consultation and
engagement took place with staff, members and partners. This included:

o Staff briefing sessions attended by over 400 staff.
Newsletters and emails to all staff with a specific email mailbox set up to
respond to any queries.

e Meetings with local Trade Unions.

The CE also wrote to a number of national and local stakeholders and attended a
series of meetings to brief and discuss the proposals including with:

Political groups and individual members

The Secondary and Primary Heads Forums

Local Safeguarding Children Board

Public sector partners, through regular meetings and one-to-ones

Homes for Haringey Board and separately its Interim Chairman accompanied by
a tenant board member.

e The lead Partner of the External Auditor

All those who responded to the consultation will receive a formal response from or
on behalf of the Chief Executive.

Issues raised in the consultation:

Overall, feedback on the restructure proposals was positive. It was recognised that
structural change was needed to provide stronger leadership to the council, but as
expected there were some issues raised about the detail and wider improvements
that might be required at the council. These are detailed below:

Page 2 of 12



q-—

%

Haringey
General Issues - culture and process

4.2.1.

4.2.2,

Page 195

Cultural change

While most staff welcomed the proposals, some noted “we have been here
before” and sought assurance on the officer and member commitment to wider
change, and to a review of capacity and capability across the organisation. The
development centres for staff at Assistant Director and Head of Service level
have already begun to support such a change.

Pace

Some staff expressed concern about the pace of change and the associated
risks. Some respondents were particularly concerned to ensure a rapid
restructuring of the Council was not at the expense of equity and fairness.

This paper includes proposals for interim arrangements and the phasing of the
implementation of parts of the restructure which address concerns about the
disruption to important services. In addition, the engagement of an established
HR partner to support the Development Centres and the proposed ring-fencing
of suitable appointments should give internal candidates the maximum
opportunity to succeed.

Specific roles and consequent changes

4.2.3.

Children’s Services

There were very few respondents who disagreed with the revised approach to
children’s services but issues were raised about the statutory requirements of
the Director of Children’s Services role. These will be addressed by:

o Appraisal of the Director for Children’s Services (DCS) by the Chief
Executive

» Agreement of clear terms of reference for the newly formed Statutory
Officers Group, to further ensure the DCS has direct access to the CE, 151
Officer and Monitoring Officer to deal with safeguarding and other risks

o Compiletion and publication of a new Accountability Framework covering the
DCS, Director of Adult Social Services and Director of Public Health to
provide clarity on leadership and management accountabilities in the
organisation.

There are a number of external changes impacting upon Children’s Services,
including the new Ofsted framework for inspection, as well as the direction of
travel set out in the paper on the Haringey 54,000 change programme
considered by Cabinet on 12 November. These necessitate a number of
subsequent changes to the management of Children’s Services.

Page 3 of 12



X

i

A

Haringey

4.24,

4.2.5.

Page 4 of 12

Page 196

To ensure that leadership and management arrangements in place are both
sufficiently robust to ensure effective management of the service and effective
safeguarding practice, a number of changes will be proposed to structures
within children’s services. These will be reported to this committee.

Interim arrangements are already in place for a number of posts within the area
to be covered by the new DCS structure. Further consultation will take place
with staff in children’s services over the coming weeks on a proposed
structure.

Education and Schools

Head teachers and other stakeholders responded positively to the new
structure, though some did raise a concern that it could potentially lead to a
downgrading of the council’s role in education. This is not intended to be the
case and the strengthening of the new AD role, and the continued prominence
given to education in the corporate plan should address these concerns. In
addition it should be remembered that it is intended that the new structure will
see greater delegation to all services to Assistant Director level.

The structures reporting to the AD, Schools and Learning will require some
consequent changes and these will also be the subject of consultation over the
coming weeks.

Homes for Haringey/AD Housing.

This proposal provided the greatest level of debate. Aimost all respondents
recognised the need to create a more unified housing service but differed as to
how to achieve this. The Board of Homes for Haringey, welcomed the
proposals, but some members of the Board were concerned that this should
not be seen as a ‘council imposition’.

Good progress has been made on addressing issues raised in relation to this
proposal and a separate report, supported by the Cabinet Member and HfH
Board will be presented to this Committee and Cabinet in 2014.

A key issue for resolution is whether the council or HfH should be the
employer for the new joint post. In other boroughs with similar arrangements,
the ALMO appoint the post-holder and second him/her back to the authority.
Given the principles of an ALMO are to create arms-length capacity with
accountability through a separate board, the arguments for such an
arrangement are strong. The Board of HfH are of the view that if they can
remain an accountable decision maker then it ought to be accountable for its
officer leadership — the council of course retaining control through its
ownership of HfH. These details, along with other governance changes will be
the subject of a separate report to the next meeting of this committee.



Page 197

Xy

R

.

Haringey
4.2.6. Commissioning

Partners and staff welcomed the creation of a commissioning function with
appropriate corporate ownership. Where there were concerns they focused on
the balance between procurement and commissioning and the potential for
loss of insight as a result of too rapid change.

In the first instance the AD Commissioning will lead a joint Adults/Children’s
function which is already under development and further expansion and
definition will only follow once these new functions are up and running. In
addition, to manage this process further the Deputy Chief Executive will lead a
Commissioning Board to bring together internal and external stakeholders on
the development of commissioning in Haringey.

4.3. Strategy and Performance

As changes to the senior management team and operating model of the
council are now being implemented there are consequences for line
management arrangements of various teams across the organisation including
the Strategy and Business Intelligence unit.

Proposals for new and interim line management arrangements for the 4 teams
currently within the unit plus the Consultation Manager post and the
Administration Assistant post will be circulated to the staff affected for
consultation. Informal meetings have already taken place with staff and trade
union representatives and further meetings have been offered to discuss the
detail of the proposals.

4.4. Executive Assistants & Political Assistants

As changes to the senior management team are now being implemented, a
review of the Executive Assistant support to be provided to the senior posts
covered in this report will be undertaken.

This review will take place during December and January in consultation with
affected staff and the senior leadership team. Likewise, there will be
consultation on moving the PA post reporting to the Assistant Director of
Corporate Governance.

Service and line management changes
Whilst it was not the intention of the September report to create the wholescale

movement of service units around the council, the consultation raised a
number of issues that should be addressed.

Page 5 of 12



Page 198

X

e

/?

Haringey
44.1. Youth Offending Service

It is proposed that line management of the Youth Offending Service should
transfer from CYPS to the new Head of Community Safety, once s/he is
appointed. This is a move that was recommended by respondents to the
consultation and makes sense given the growing capacity in the Community
Safety Team.

4.4.2, Internal Audit

The September 26™ Report proposed the strengthening of corporate
governance arrangements and the creation of a Corporate Governance
function. Some responses to consultation proposed that moving the line
management of the Head of Internal Audit would further strengthen the role of
the corporate governance function. It is proposed to make this change.

443 Scrutiny

As with Internal Audit, feedback indicated that aligning scrutiny with the
Corporate Governance function might bolster its status and capacity to hold
the Executive and Council to account. This is a common arrangement in many
councils and it is proposed to consult with Scrutiny Members about such a
change as part of this reorganisation.

Other changes:

4.5. Corporate Infrastructure
Programmes and Projects was another issue regularly raised, with wide support for
a stronger corporate approach. Establishing a Corporate Infrastructure Service
was therefore welcomed, but the title of the service was unpopular. Reflecting the

functional descriptions of other services this will be known as the AD, Corporate
Programme Office and Chief Information Officer .

4.6. Policy, Performance and Support

The review of Policy and Support and a review of the council’s information and
intelligence functions are now well underway. | expect any staffing implications to
be reported to the January 2014 meeting of this committee.

5. Implementing the Structure
5.1. Affected Posts
In summary; eleven posts will be deleted, one post will have significant changes

although will retain its existing title, three posts have some changes but not
significant enough in terms of accountability to justify deleting and creating a new

Page 6 of 12



Page 199

X

-*‘_

>

Haringey
post, three posts will have a change to the post they report to, and ten new posts
will be created.

Posts to be deleted from the Council’s establishment list:
Director of Corporate Services

Director of Aduit and Housing Services

Assistant Chief Executive

Deputy Director of Community Housing

Deputy Director of Adults & Community Services
Head of Legal Services

Assistant Director of Front Line Services

Haringey Efficiency and Savings Programme Director
Head of Business Strategy and Information

Head of IT

Head of Organisation Development

New Posts to be established

Chief Operating Officer

Deputy Chief Executive

Assistant Director Customer Services

Assistant Director HR

Assistant Director for Housing and Chief Executive of Homes for Haringey
Assistant Director, Corporate Programme Office and Chief Information Officer
Director of Adult Social Services

Assistant Director for (Integrated) Commissioning

Assistant Director (Social & Economic Regeneration)

Assistant Director for Governance (Monitoring Officer)

Posts with Significant Change
¢ Director of Children’s Services

Posts with some change

¢ Director of Place and Sustainability

» Assistant Director of Schools and Learning

e Deputy Director of Environmental Services & Community Safety

Posts with a change to reporting line

¢ Assistant Director of Finance

¢ Director of Public Health

¢ Assistant Director of Communications

5.2. Transition Period

As the Council moves to a new structure the priority is to ensure stability at a senior
level and the continued delivery of the Corporate Plan and business as usual

Page 7 of 12



Page 200

Haringey
activities. Transition planning is in place to implement the new structure and this
plan will help manage the impact of the new arrangements, ensure services to our
residents are not affected and will enable the recruitment and selection process to
conclude. This planning will also make certain that a detailed handover of
objectives, budgets, risks and performance management can be completed to
maintain business continuity.

In addition, once the senior leadership team are in place, it may be necessary for
each Chief Officer to undertake a further review of their own organisation structures
to ensure that they are fit for purpose to deliver the key objectives within the
Corporate Plan.

5.2.1. Interim arrangements

The success of this transition plan is dependent on a number of key interim
arrangements, which include:

¢ Appointment of an interim Chief Operating Officer which is a priority to
manage financial risk, fulfil statutory responsibilities and establish and lead
the operational aspects of the organisation. The process to make an
interim appointment is underway and the recruitment of a permanent
replacement will follow in the New Year.

e The Director of Strategy, who is currently on secondment from central
Government, will act as the Deputy Chief Executive to provide immediate
direction, stability and assurance to the organisation until the selection and
recruitment process to this role is concluded. This process will commence
immediately.

e The continuation of current interim arrangements for the Director of
Children’s Services role.

e The Director of Adults and Housing to remain in the organisation for an

extended period to provide direction and implement the significant changes
to Adults Social Care as health integration continues during 2014.

There will be a number of Assistant Director posts that will require interim
arrangements until the recruitment and selection process is concluded.

5.3. Governance arrangements including statutory responsibilities
The new structure will, as noted above, require a review of the current governance

arrangements and this will be undertaken by the Assistant Director for Corporate
Governance during the transition period in readiness for Approval by the Council.

Page 8 of 12



Page 201

X

-—*—

>

Haringey

5.4.

This review will include establishing an Accountability Framework and a Statutory
Officers Group that will obtain internal and external evidence that any risks of not
achieving corporate objectives are being mitigated effectively. The group will also
provide assurance to the Chief Executive that; governance arrangements are being
followed by Chief Officers and senior managers, statutory functions are being
discharged by Chief Officers, and internal systems and controls are working
effectively.

Within the Council’'s Constitution there is requirement to identify Chief Officers and
those posts allocated statutory responsibilities. The statutory roles with regards to
corporate governance will be as follows:

Statutory Responsibility Post

Head of Paid Service Chief Executive

Finance Director — Section | Chief Operating

151 Officer Officer

Deputy Section 151 Officer | Assistant Director of
Finance

Monitoring Officer Assistant Director of
Corporate
Governance

Director of Children’s Director of Children’s

Services Services

Director of Adult Social Director of Adult

Services Social Services

Director of Public Health Director of Public
Health

Approach to Recruitment and Selection

There will be a phased approach dealing with a number of ring-fenced roles first,
and the other new Assistant Director posts providing opportunity for internal
applicants to be benchmarked with external candidates.

The new posts will be advertised internally and externally, and the selection process
will include an assessment centre approach followed by panel interviews. This will
give the organisation an opportunity to observe a number of skills and behaviours
that may not have been required previously, and provides the applicant with an
opportunity to demonstrate their current capabilities and future stretch potential.
For internal candidates this process will provide them with valuable feedback from
the information gathered during the process, and will support the creation of
personal development plans.

Page 9 of 12



X

i

)

Haringey
The table below shows the recruitment and selection timetable

Page 202

Phase

Role

Phase 1 - ring fence

Assistant Director Corporate Governance

December — End of February

December
Assistant Director, Corporate Programme
Office and Chief Information Officer
Phase 1 Deputy Chief Executive

Assistant Director Customer Services

Assistant Director Commissioning

June — End of September

Phase 2 Director of Children’s Services
January - End of March
Phase 3 Director of Adults Social Care
March - End of June

Head of Office
Phase 4 Chief Operating Officer

6. Background information

6.1. Atthe Corporate Committee on 22 January 2013 a report on Temporary

Director/Senior Management Arrangements were discussed by the committee and it

resolved:

¢ That the implementation of the proposals set out in the report as from 1

February 2013 be agreed
¢ That the creation of a temporary Director of Strategy and Performance post to

be filled on a secondment basis be agreed

¢ That the creation of a temporary Deputy Director of Place and Sustainability post

to be appointed from amongst the existing management team be agreed

6.2 At the Corporate Committee on 27 June 2013 a report on Temporary Assistant

Director Arrangements were discussed by the committee and it resolved

That the following be noted:
e The temporary changes set out in this report at Assistant Director and Head of

Service level to be enacted by 1 August 2013

Proposal to enhance the programme management approach of the Council.
¢ That the formation of a Delivery Unit on a temporary basis from 1 July 2013 be

agreed

Page 10 of 12




Page 203

X

—-*- k

>

Haringey
6.3.1 At the Corporate Committee on the 19 September 2013 the Committee received a
report on Proposals to Review and Restructure of the Senior Management Team

Arrangements. The recommendations inciuded:

e For the Head of the Paid Service to implement consultation in line with the
Councils restructuring policy with Councillors, staff, trades unions and partners
on the proposals

e Forthe Head of the Paid Service to implement the proposals including any
changes that were accepted as a result of that consultation

* Notwithstanding the above point, to provide a progress report back to this
Committee in November.

7. Comments of the Deputy Chief Finance Officer and financial implications

The cost of the new senior management structure will be contained within existing
resources. This is made possible by the deletion of the posts specified, and the transfer
of existing budget provision for the continuing roles, as set out in this report.

Budget virements will be actioned during the transition period with the aim to complete
these by the beginning of the financial year 2014-15.

8. Head of Legal Services and legal implications
The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report.

At its meeting of 19 September 2013, the Corporate Committee delegated authority to
the Chef Executive and Head of Paid Service to implement the proposals, including
any changes to the senior management restructure that were accepted as a result of
the consultation.

In reaching his final decisions on the structure, the Chief Executive will need to take
into account the outcome of the consultation with staff and the findings of an equalities
impact assessment.

The dismissal and appointment of staff as a result of the final proposals must comply
with the Council’s procedures regarding organisational change, together with the legal
and constitutional requirements set out at Part 4 K of the Constitution.

9. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

An employee Equalities Analysis will be undertaken and this will look at the
Equality impacts at four milestones.
The Milestones will be:-
* At the start of formal consultation on the proposal to review and restructure the
senior management team — 20 September
» At the conclusion of consultation — This report will be available and published by
the end of November

Page 11 of 12



Page 204

Haringey
¢ At the end of the recruitment and selection assessment process
¢ At the end of the final panel interview

10.Head of Procurement Comments
No implications

11.Policy Implication
No implications

12.Use of Appendices
Appendix 1 — Structure

13.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Page 12 of 12



Page 205

wea| Jouonoung -
amesjospesH [

1030841 Juesissy l
Joypau1g D

wea] diyssapeaq oi8ajens l
BAINDBX3 J3IyD l

Y3ESH 1|qNd $0 4033841 |

3210 3AIIN23NT Ja1y) g Japea

ECRITVETS
€190 YNPY 30 JopauQg

SIAIBS
S,ua1pjIyd 0 10393119

wea) n__e_m..mvm_m._ loluag



Page 206



Page 207 Agenda ltem 15

Haringey
Report for: Corporate Committee | Item
26 November 2013 number
Title: Delegated Decisions /Significant Actions/ Urgent
Actions

Report authorised -
by - Rz Arou

Head of Legal Services

Lead Officer: Helen Chapman (Tel. 020 8489 2615)
Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decision:
Not applicable For information

1. Describe the issue under consideration

To inform the Corporate Committee of Non Executive delegated
decisions and significant actions taken by Directors.

To further advise of any urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation
with the Chair of the Corporate Committee since the previous meeting.

The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors
under delegated powers. Significant actions (decisions involving
expenditure of more than £100,000) taken during the same period are
also detailed.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction
Not applicable

3. Recommendations

That the report be noted.

Page 1 of 3



Page 208

X

e

>

Haringey
4. Other options considered

Not applicable
5. Background information

To inform the Corporate Committee of non executive delegated
decisions and significant actions taken by Directors

The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors
under delegated powers. Significant actions) decisions involving
expenditure of more than £100,000) taken during the same period are
also detailed.
In keeping with usual practices and working procedures used for
Cabinet, the attached report details urgent actions taken by Directors in
consultation with Corporate Committee Chair since last reported. Part
three, Section E, under the scheme of delegation paragraph 4.03, of the
Council Constitution provides guidance on the action that needs to be
taken on any urgent matter between meetings of the Cabinet, or any
committee or Sub Committee of the Cabinet or the Council.
6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and financial Implications
Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations.
7. Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications
Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations.
8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments
Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations.
9. Policy Implications
Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations.
10.Use of Appendices
The appendices to the report set out by number and type decisions
taken by Directors under delegated powers. Significant actions

(Decisions involving expenditure of more than £100,000) taken during the
same period are also detailed.

Page 2 of 3



Page 209

Y

>4

Haringey

11.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

This report contains exempt and non-exempt information. Exempt
information is contained in Part B and is not for publication. The
information is exempt under the following category (identified in the
amended Schedule 12 A of the Local Government Act 1972).

Information relating to any individual and information which is likely to
reveal the identity of an individual.

Backaround Papers

The following background papers were used in the preparation of this
report;

Delegated Decisions and Significant Action Forms
Those marked with ¢ contain exempt information and are not available
for public inspection.

The background papers are located at River Park House, 225 High
Road, Wood Green, London N22 8HQ.

Page 3 of 3



Page 210



Page 211

QU2 -» )R

10j9a41Q wue)u)

TN M  -wejpay esn
n V w» : paubig
0SY'vv3 seniqede) diysispes buidojensg
00t'913 adueinssy Aujenp Buippequi3 pue Buircadw) — sebeueyy 108ouyg swn-ued
G66'663 Jeuped jo juswiuodde — SdAD Jo uoneuuojsuel | ay; Bupoddng
0s2'ce3 uoneonp3 0} ssoiues Ayenp) ybi Jo Bujuoissjwwon — labeuepy 108fo1g 206
UOISiA0ld aAjjewa)y Jo pesH Jo uswjuioddy
8ouaI8juon
000'023 uondsiold piyo ul aidoad BunoA pue ueipiiyo Joj eoinieg AoedoApy jo uoisinold
000'sH3 juejinsuoo Jo jusunuiodde — swuweiBo.d sp|O Jeap om | JO uoisuedxy 20’8
odky |
uonoy pajebajeq
yun ewdojenrsg
8onoeld (MSd) £L'6°L
peaibe ebueyo Juawysyqe)sg J9NIOM [e100g jediouud
S8dIAeg
JoweAoy jo Buunprusey
-4ElS Jo siequisw (074
peeibe ainjoruis pesodoid |  uewy ssej o) Awoyny pejebejeq £L02°6'02
Hpang
uoisiRag SpLL >a§8co ON

‘Jdwex3 ese ssaded Punoibxoeq sejouap ¢
€102 4890100 0} sunp — y /8102 uonoy peebaje( - Suoisioap juesiiubig

SdAJ 4O HOL1O3HIq



Page 212



Page 213

]

uoloy pajebajeq
i 4
Jeak Jeyun e 10} puaixa o} uondo Yim Jeak | Joj uonensiuiwpe || sixy POOMASH JO [emausy BAINOBXJ JaIYD) Juelsissy €L/01/1L0 €
193140 LG uonoesg
G8'¢/SEZ13 JO pung uUoisusd ay} woyy Juesn yiesq wng dwn jo JuawAed $824nosay ajelodion) Jo 10j0aaQg £1L02/01ve

dwax3 ase siaded punoibxoeq sejousp ¢
90/500¢ uooy pajebsjsq - suoisioap jueoyiubig

JOIAH3S FAILNDAXI 43IHD 40 HOLO3HId



Page 214



Page 215 Agenda Item 18

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 216

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 217

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 221

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 222

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 223

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 224

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 225 Agenda ltem 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 226

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 227 Agenda ltem 20

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Pension Fund: Actuarial Valuation 31st March 2013
	Valuation Discussion Document 8nov2013

	7 Pension Fund Quarterly Update
	8 Local Government Pension Scheme IT System - Contract Renewal
	9 Treasury Management Update
	10 Treasury Management Strategy Statement - 2014/15 - 2016/17
	1.1 Draft TMSS 14-15 13 November 2013 v2

	11 Internal Audit progress report - 2013/14 Quarter 2
	12 External audit progress update
	13 Annual Audit letter
	14 Senior Staff Structures Update
	15 Delegated Decisions, Significant Actions, Urgent Actions
	18 Exempt Minutes
	Draft minutes - CEJCC 2 July
	Draft minutes - Special Committee, 1 October 2013 - approved by Chair
	Draft Exempt Minutes Special Committee 231013

	19 Local Government Pension Scheme IT system - contract renewal
	20 Delegated Decisions / Significant Actions / Urgent Actions

